
 

Lloyd White 

Head of Democratic Services 

London Borough of Hillingdon, 

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 

www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

 Putting our residents first 

   

Pensions 

Committee 

  

Councillors on the Committee 
 
Philip Corthorne (Chairman) 

Michael Markham (Vice-Chairman) 

Peter Davis 

Beulah East 

Tony Eginton 

 
 
 
 
 

   

Date: MONDAY, 25 SEPTEMBER 
2017 
 

 

Time: 6.00 PM 
 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 3 - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE UB8 
1UW 
 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting  
 

 

  

Published: Friday, 15 September 2017 

 Contact:  Khalid Ahmed 
Tel: 01895 250833 
Email: kahmed@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 

This Agenda is available online at:  

http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=125&Year=2012 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 
 

 

Useful information for  
residents and visitors 
 
 
Travel and parking 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services. Please enter from the 
Council’s main reception where you will be 
directed to the Committee Room.  
 
Accessibility 
 
For accessibility option regarding this agenda 
please contact Democratic Services.  For those 
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is 
available for use in the various meeting rooms.  
 
Attending, reporting and filming of meetings 
 
For the public part of this meeting, residents and the media are welcomed to attend, and if 
they wish, report on it, broadcast, record or film proceedings as long as it does not disrupt 
proceedings. It is recommended to give advance notice to ensure any particular 
requirements can be met. The Council will provide a seating area for residents/public, an 
area for the media and high speed WiFi access to all attending. The officer shown on the 
front of this agenda should be contacted for further information and will be available at the 
meeting to assist if required. Kindly ensure all mobile or similar devices on silent mode. 
 
Please note that the Council may also record or film this meeting and publish this online. 
 
Emergency procedures 
 
If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest 
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless 
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer. 
 
In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire 
Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make their 
way to the signed refuge locations. 
 

 



 

 

Pensions Committee Terms of Reference 
 

1. To review and approve all aspects of investment policy relating to the 
Pensions Fund, including agreeing the strategic asset allocation and 
authorisation or prohibition of particular investment activities. 

2. To review the Investment Strategy Statement and amend it when 
necessary. 

3. To agree benchmarks and performance targets for the investment of the 
Fund’s assets and review periodically. 

4. To agree to transfer funds into mandates managed by the London 
Collective Investment Vehicle (CIV) as soon as appropriate opportunities 
become available. 

5. To receive regular reports from the London CIV and to agree and resultant 
actions from a review of the investments held with the London CIV. 

6. To keep the performance of the investment managers under regular 
review and extend or terminate their contracts as required. To appoint new 
managers when necessary. 

7. To agree policy guidelines for the exercise of voting rights attached to the 
Fund’s shares. 

8. To review the appointment of specialist advisors and service providers and 
make new appointments as necessary. 

9. To consider the overall implications of the Council’s policies for 
employment and benefits issues and their impact on the Pension Fund 
and agree any strategic changes.. 

10. To approve the appointment of persons to hear appeals under the Internal 
Dispute Resolution Procedure. 

11. To consider issues concerning the administration of the Fund, including 
approving responses to consultation papers. 

12. To consider and decide whether to approve proposals for discretionary 
enhanced early retirement packages for officers. 

13. The Corporate Director of Finance be authorised to take urgent decisions 
in relation to the pensions fund and investment strategy on behalf of the 
Committee, reporting back to the Pensions Committee any exercise of 
these powers for ratification. 

 



 

Agenda 
 
 
 

 

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

PART I - Members, Public and Press 

1 Apologies for Absence  
 

2 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting  
 

3 Minutes of the meeting - 14 June 2017 1 - 4 
 

4 To confirm that items marked Part I will be considered in public and 
those marked Part II will be considered in private 

 
 

5 External Auditor Report on the Pension Fund Accounts 5 - 110 
 

6 Investment Strategy and Fund Manager Performance (Part I) 111 - 132 
 

7 Implementation of the Markets in Financial Instruments Derivative 
(MiFID II) 

133 - 160 
 

8 Pensions Administration Report 161 - 186 
 

9 Local Pension Board - Annual Report 187 - 190 
 

 

PART II - Members Only 

10 Investment Strategy and Fund Manager Performance 191 - 252 
 

11 Pension Fund Risk Register 253 - 256 
 

 



  
Pensions Committee 
 
14 June 2017 
 
Meeting held at Committee Room 5- Civic Centre, 
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW 
 

 Committee Members Present: 
Councillors Michael Markham (Vice-Chairman - In the Chair), Peter Davis, Beulah 
East, Tony Eginton and Susan O'Brien. 
 
Apology: 
Councillor Philip Corthorne (Councillor Susan O'Brien substituting). 
 
Also Present: 
David O'Hara (Advisor). 
 
Pensions Board Members:  
Councillor John Morse. 
 
LBH Officers Present: 
Tunde Adekoya, Sian Kunert, Nancy Le Roux and Khalid Ahmed. 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE 
THIS MEETING 
 
Councillor Tony Eginton declared a Non-Pecuniary Interest in all 
agenda items as he was a retired member of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme. He remained in the room during discussion on the 
item.  
 

 

4.    MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS HELD ON 22 MARCH AND 11 MAY 
2017 
 
Agreed as accurate records. 
 

 

5.    TO CONFIRM THAT ITEMS MARKED PART I WILL BE 
CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THOSE MARKED PART II WILL BE 
CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE   
 
It was agreed that Agenda Items 7 and 8 would be considered in 
private. 
 

 

6. INVESTMENT STRATEGY AND FUND MANAGER PERFORMANCE 
 
Consideration was given to a report which provided Members with an 
overview of fund performance as at 31 March 20017, an update on 
recent investment decisions and progress on the London CIV. 
 
The Committee was informed that the total size of the fund was £956m 
at 31 March 2017 which was an increase from £931m at the end of the 
last quarter. This represented an overall investment return over the 
quarter of 2.88% which was a relative underperformance of the 
benchmark by 0.26%. 

 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



  

 
Discussion took place on the Fund performance and Members were 
informed that the most notable attributer to the underperformance on 
investments had been Newton and Private Equity with a positive swing 
from GMO shortly before these funds had been disinvested. 
 
Outperformance over a one year rolling programme had been 1.55% 
ahead of the benchmark, with the largest contributions from UBS UK 
Equity and Ruffer Funds. The GMO mandate had been terminated and 
transferred into a passive portfolio. Members were reminded that that 
excess cash had been invested into the JP Morgan bond portfolio 
which had been agreed by this Committee at its meeting in March.   
 
In Part II of the agenda, discussion took place on possible options for 
future investment strategies as well as the performance of individual 
Fund Managers. 
 
Discussion took place on the uncertainties in the market and the overall 
financial climate and Members agreed not to make any decisions in 
relation to the investment strategy at this stage.  
 
An update was also provided on the progress of the London CIV.    
 
RESOLVED:  

 
(1) That the Committee discussed and noted the performance 

update and asked that officers submit a further report to 
the next meeting on options which were available in 
respect of future investments in view of the current 
financial climate. 

 
(2) That the follow up activity to previous decisions and 

progress in the development of the London CIV be noted 
and a further report be submitted to the next meeting of 
the Committee. 

 

7. PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION REPORT 
 
The Committee was provided with an update on the administration of 
the London Borough of Hillingdon Fund of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme, both in relation to Surrey, and internally at Hillingdon. 
 
In addition, consideration was given to a draft Communications 
Strategy for the Pension Fund.   
 
Members were informed that Surrey was struggling to cope with the 
volume of issues which had been transferred from Surrey. Steps were 
being taken to increase staffing to clear the backlog of data and 
outstanding workloads which had been inherited from Capita. 
 
The Committee was informed that Uxbridge College would be merging 
with Harrow College from 1 August 2017 with increased contributors 
into the Hillingdon Pension Fund. Discussions were still ongoing. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



  

Discussion took place on the Communications Strategy and suggested 
amendments were made which included in the Mission Statement 
replacing the term "customer focused" in the first bullet point, to 
"stakeholder focused". 
 
In addition, in relation to the Communication Aims and Objectives, the 
final bulleting should read "Annually evaluate the effectiveness of 
communications and shape future communications appropriately". 
 
RESOLVED:  

 
(1) That, subject to the amendments outlined above, approval 

be given to the Communications Strategy for the London 
Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund.   

 

8. INVESTMENT STRATEGY AND FUND MANAGER PERFORMANCE 
 
This item was discussed as a Part II item without the press or public 
present as the information under discussion contained confidential or 
exempt information as defined by law in the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985.  This was because it discussed ‘information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information)’ (paragraph 3 of the 
schedule to the Act). 
 
The Committee was provided with a report, prepared by KMPG, on 
investments held by the fund.  
 
RESOLVED:  

 
(1) That the information be noted, together with the 

performance of Fund Managers. 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9 PENSION FUND RISK REGISTER 
 
This item was discussed as a Part II item without the press or public 
present as the information under discussion contained confidential or 
exempt information as defined by law in the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985.  This was because it discussed ‘information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information)’ (paragraph 3 of the 
schedule to the Act). 
 
The report provided details of the main risks to the Pension Fund which 
enabled the Committee to monitor and review.  
 
RESOLVED:  

 
(1) That the Committee considered the Risk Register and 

noted the measures which were being taken to mitigate 
the indentified risks.  

 

 

 The meeting, which commenced at 7.00pm closed at 7.45pm 

 These are the minutes of the above meeting.  For more information on any of the 

Page 3



  

resolutions please contact Khalid Ahmed on 01895 250833.  Circulation of these 
minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public. 

Page 4



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 

External Auditor Report on the Pension Fund Accounts 
 

Contact Officers  Sian Kunert, 01895 556578 

   

Papers with this report  EY: Report on the financial statement audit for the year 
ended 31 March 2017  

Pension Fund Annual Report 2016/17 

 
SUMMARY 
 
The attached draft report details the work of the External Auditor on the audit of the 
2016/17 Pension Fund Accounts.  The auditor has indicated that, subject to clearance of 
final points they expect to issue an unqualified audit opinion on the financial statements.   
 
Also attached to this report is a draft of the Pension Fund Annual Report for 2016/17 for 
Committee approval for publication which includes the Pension Fund Accounts from page 
33. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

1. To note the auditor’s findings on the audit of the Pension Fund accounts for 
2016/17. 

2. To delegate authority to the Pension Committee Chairman to sign the Pension 
Fund accounts on completion of the audit. 

3. To approve the Fund Annual Report for publication. 
 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Council as an administering authority under the Local Government Pension Scheme 
Regulations is required to produce a separate set of accounts for the scheme’s financial 
activities and assets and liabilities. 
 
The contents and format of the accounts are determined by statutory requirements and 
mandatory professional standards as established by the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance (CIPFA) in their Code of Practice (The Code). 
 
The Pension Fund Accounts were subject to a separate audit by the Council’s external 
auditors, EY LLP, which must be completed by 30 September 2017. 
 
Whilst Audit Committee formally approves the Council’s Statements of Accounts, which 
incorporates the Pension Fund Accounts, the Pension Fund Accounts also requires the 
approval of Pensions Committee.  This report on the Pension Fund accounts will also be 
taken to Audit Committee on 27 September 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 

SCOPE OF THE EXTERNAL AUDIT 
 
Auditors are required to communicate to elected Members matters of governance that 
arise from the audit of the financial statements.  These cover, in addition to an update on 
the audit status: 
 

• Significant audit risks 

• Accounting and internal controls 

• Consideration of Fraud 
 

In addition, the Auditor requires a “Representation Letter” to be signed by management. 
The contents of this letter are set out at Appendix D to the attached EY report. The letter 
has to include representations from management on matters material to the statement 
where sufficient appropriate evidence cannot reasonably be expected to exist.  

 
 
COMMENT ON THE CONTENTS OF THE AUDITOR'S REPORT 
 
The report gives a comprehensive account of the work undertaken during the audit and 
includes several auditor mandatory reporting requirements.  The report is positive and 
reports satisfactorily on the key audit risks.  There are no uncorrected misstatements in the 
Pension Fund accounts. There are 3 changes to disclosure notes from the draft accounts 
to the final audited version; however these do not impact on the primary statements or the 
overarching position of the fund.  

 
ANNUAL REPORT 
 

The fund is required to produce an Annual Report and to publish by 1 December each 
year.  The draft report for 2016/17, attached, contains information on the Fund's activities 
over the last year and is brought to Committee for consideration and approval to publish. 
 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The financial implications are contained within the body of the report 
 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The legal implications are mentioned within the report. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



Lo
nd

on
 Bo

rou
gh

 of
Hil

lin
gd

on
 Pe

nsi
on

 Fu
nd

Au
dit

 re
sul

ts 
rep

ort
Yea

r e
nd

ed
 31

 Ma
rch

 20
17

Page 7



Pri
vat

e a
nd

Co
nfi

de
nti

al
01

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
17

De
ar 

Co
mm

itte
e M

em
be

rs
We

 ha
ve 

sub
sta

nti
ally

 co
mp

let
ed

 ou
r a

ud
it o

fH
illin

gd
on

 Pe
nsi

on
 Fu

nd
 fo

r th
e y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 31
Ma

rch
20

17
.

Su
bje

ct 
to 

con
clu

din
g t

he
 ou

tst
an

din
g m

att
ers

 lis
ted

 in 
ou

r re
po

rt,
 we

 co
nfi

rm
 th

at 
we

 ex
pe

ct 
to 

iss
ue

an
 un

qu
alif

ied
 au

dit
 op

inio
n o

n t
he

 fin
an

cia
l st

ate
me

nts
 in

 th
e f

orm
 at

 Se
cti

on
 3,

 be
for

e t
he

 st
atu

tor
y

de
ad

line
 of

 30
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

17
.

Th
is r

ep
ort

 is 
int

en
de

d s
ole

ly f
or 

the
 us

e o
f th

e P
en

sio
ns 

Co
mm

itte
e a

nd
 Au

dit
 Co

mm
itte

e, 
oth

er
me

mb
ers

 of
 th

e F
un

d, 
an

d s
en

ior
 m

an
ag

em
en

t. I
t s

ho
uld

 no
t b

e u
sed

 fo
r a

ny
 ot

he
r p

urp
ose

 or
 giv

en
to 

an
y o

the
r p

art
y w

ith
ou

t o
bta

inin
g o

ur 
wr

itte
n c

on
sen

t.
We

 wo
uld

 lik
e t

o t
ha

nk
 yo

ur 
sta

ff f
or 

the
ir h

elp
 du

rin
g t

he
 en

ga
ge

me
nt.

We
 lo

ok
 fo

rw
ard

 to
 dis

cus
sin

g w
ith

 yo
u a

ny
 as

pe
cts

 of
 th

is r
ep

ort
 or

 an
y o

the
r is

sue
s a

ris
ing

 fro
m 

ou
r

wo
rk.

Yo
urs

 fa
ith

ful
ly

Tim
 Sa

dle
r

Ex
ecu

tiv
e D

ire
cto

r
Fo

r a
nd

 on
 be

ha
lf o

f E
rns

t &
 Yo

un
g L

LP
Un

ite
d K

ing
do

m

Page 8



Co
nte

nts
Ar

ea
s o

f
Au

dit
 Fo

cu
s

Au
dit

Dif
fer

en
ces

Ap
pe

nd
ice

s
Ot

he
r

Re
po

rti
ng

Iss
ue

s

Ex
ec

uti
ve

Su
mm

ary

In 
Ap

ril 
20

15
 Pu

blic
 Se

cto
r A

ud
it A

pp
oin

tm
en

ts 
Ltd

 (P
SA

A) 
iss

ue
d “

Sta
tem

ent
 of

 re
spo

nsi
bili

tie
s o

f a
ud

ito
rs 

an
d a

ud
ite

d b
od

ies
”. I

t is
 av

aila
ble

 fro
m 

the
 PS

AA
 we

bsi
te 

(ww
w.P

SA
A.c

o.u
k).

Th
e S

tat
em

en
t o

f re
spo

nsi
bili

tie
s s

erv
es 

as 
the

 fo
rm

al t
erm

s o
f e

ng
ag

em
en

t b
etw

ee
n a

pp
oin

ted
 au

dit
ors

 an
d a

ud
ite

d b
od

ies
. It

 su
mm

ari
ses

 wh
ere

 th
e d

iffe
ren

t re
spo

nsi
bili

tie
s o

f a
ud

ito
rs 

an
d a

ud
ite

d b
od

ies
 be

gin
 an

d e
nd

, a
nd

 wh
at 

is t
o b

e
ex

pe
cte

d o
f th

e a
ud

ite
d b

od
y in

 ce
rta

in a
rea

s.
Th

e “
Te

rm
s o

f A
pp

oin
tm

en
t (u

pd
ate

d F
eb

rua
ry 

20
17

)” 
iss

ue
d b

y t
he

 PS
AA

 se
ts 

ou
t a

dd
itio

na
l re

qu
ire

me
nts

 th
at 

au
dit

ors
 m

ust
 co

mp
ly w

ith
, o

ve
r a

nd
 ab

ove
 th

ose
 se

t o
ut 

in 
the

 Na
tio

na
l A

ud
it O

ffic
e C

od
e o

f A
ud

it P
rac

tic
e (

the
 Co

de
) a

nd
 in

leg
isla

tio
n, 

an
d c

ove
rs 

ma
tte

rs 
of 

pra
cti

ce 
an

d p
roc

ed
ure

 wh
ich

 ar
e o

f a
 re

cur
rin

g n
atu

re.
.

Th
is r

ep
ort

 is 
ma

de
 so

lely
 to

 th
eA

ud
it C

om
mi

tte
e, 

the
 Pe

nsi
on

 Fu
nd

 Co
mm

itt
ee

, a
nd

 ot
he

r m
em

be
rs 

of 
the

 Fu
nd

 an
d m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f L

on
do

n B
oro

ug
h o

f H
illin

gd
on

 in
 ac

cor
da

nce
 wi

th 
the

 st
ate

me
nt 

of 
res

po
nsi

bili
tie

s. O
ur 

wo
rk 

ha
s

be
en

 un
de

rta
ke

n s
o t

ha
t w

e m
igh

t s
tat

e t
o t

he
Au

dit
 Co

mm
itt

ee
, th

e P
en

sio
n F

un
d C

om
mi

tte
e, 

an
d o

the
r m

em
be

rs 
of 

the
 Fu

nd
 an

d m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f L
on

do
n B

oro
ug

h o
f H

illin
gd

on
 th

ose
 m

att
ers

 we
 ar

e r
eq

uir
ed

 to
 sta

te 
to 

the
m 

in t
his

rep
ort

 an
d f

or 
no

 ot
he

r p
urp

ose
. T

o t
he

 fu
lles

t e
xte

nt 
pe

rm
itte

d b
y la

w w
e d

o n
ot 

acc
ep

t o
r a

ssu
me

 re
spo

nsi
bili

ty 
to 

an
yon

e o
the

r th
an

 th
eA

ud
it C

om
mi

tte
e, 

the
 Pe

nsi
on

 Fu
nd

 Co
mm

itt
ee

, a
nd

 ot
he

r m
em

be
rs 

of 
the

 Fu
nd

 an
d

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
of 

Lo
nd

on
 Bo

rou
gh

 of
 Hi

llin
gd

on
 fo

r th
is r

ep
ort

 or
 fo

r th
e o

pin
ion

s w
e h

ave
 fo

rm
ed

. It
 sh

ou
ld n

ot 
be

 pr
ovi

de
d t

o a
ny

 th
ird

-pa
rty

 wi
tho

ut 
ob

tai
nin

g o
ur 

wr
itte

n c
on

sen
t.

Co
nte

nts

As
ses

sm
en

t
of 

Co
ntr

ol
En

vir
on

me
ntAu

dit
Re

po
rt

01
02

04
03

05
06

07

Page 9



Ex
ec

uti
ve

 Su
mm

ary
01

Page 10



Ex
ec

uti
ve

 Su
mm

ary

5

Ov
erv

iew
 of

 th
e a

ud
it

St
atu

s o
f t

he
 au

dit
We

 ha
ve 

sub
sta

nti
ally

 co
mp

let
ed

 ou
r a

ud
it o

f L
on

do
n B

oro
ug

h o
f H

illin
gd

on
‘s P

en
sio

n F
un

d f
ina

nci
al s

tat
em

en
ts 

for
 th

e y
ea

r e
nd

ed
 31

 Ma
rch

 20
17

 an
d h

ave
 pe

rfo
rm

ed
the

 pr
oce

du
res

 ou
tlin

ed
 in 

ou
r A

ud
it p

lan
.S

ub
jec

t to
 sa

tis
fac

tor
y c

om
ple

tio
n o

f th
e f

ollo
win

g o
uts

tan
din

g it
em

s w
e e

xpe
ct 

to 
iss

ue
 an

 un
qu

alif
ied

 op
inio

n o
n t

he
 Fu

nd
’s

fin
an

cia
l st

ate
me

nts
 in

 th
e f

orm
 wh

ich
 ap

pe
ars

 at
 Se

cti
on

 3.
 Ho

we
ver

 un
til 

wo
rk 

is c
om

ple
te,

 fu
rth

er 
am

en
dm

en
ts 

ma
y a

ris
e:

•
com

ple
tio

n o
f s

ub
seq

ue
nt 

eve
nts

 re
vie

w
•

rev
iew

 of
 th

e f
ina

l ve
rsi

on
 of

 th
e f

ina
nci

al s
tat

em
en

ts a
nd

 an
nu

al r
ep

ort
•

rec
eip

t o
f th

e s
ign

ed
 m

an
ag

em
en

t re
pre

sen
tat

ion
 let

ter
•

cle
ara

nce
 of

 an
y o

uts
tan

din
g r

evi
ew

 co
mm

en
ts

Sc
op

e a
nd

 m
ate

ria
lity

In 
ou

r A
ud

it P
lan

 pr
ese

nte
d t

o t
he

16
 Ma

rch
 20

17
 Au

dit
 Co

mm
itte

e m
ee

tin
g, 

we
 ga

ve 
yo

u a
n o

ver
vie

w o
f

ho
w w

e in
ten

de
d t

o c
arr

y o
ut 

ou
r re

spo
nsi

bili
tie

s a
s y

ou
r a

ud
ito

r. W
e c

arr
ied

 ou
t o

ur 
au

dit
 in

 ac
co

rda
nce

wit
h t

his
 pla

n.
We

 pla
nn

ed
 ou

r p
roc

ed
ure

s u
sin

g a
 m

ate
ria

lity
 of

 £8
.01

2m
. W

e r
eas

ses
sed

 th
is u

sin
g t

he
 ac

tua
l ye

ar-
en

d
fig

ure
s, w

hic
h h

as 
inc

rea
sed

 th
is a

mo
un

t to
 £9

.56
7m

. T
he

 th
res

ho
ld 

for
 re

po
rtin

g a
ud

it d
iffe

ren
ces

 ha
s

als
o i

ncr
eas

ed
 fro

m 
£6

.07
7 m

 to
 £7

.71
5 m

 fo
r c

orr
ect

ed
 m

iss
tat

em
en

ts.
 Th

e b
asi

s o
f o

ur 
ass

ess
me

nt 
of

ma
ter

iali
ty 

ha
s r

em
ain

ed
 co

nsi
ste

nt 
wit

h p
rio

r y
ea

rs 
at 

1 %
 of

 Ne
t A

sse
ts.

Page 11



Ex
ec

uti
ve

 Su
mm

ary

6

Ex
ecu

tiv
e s

um
ma

ry 
(co

nti
nu

ed
)

Ob
jec

tio
ns

We
 ha

ve 
no

t re
cei

ved
 an

y o
bje

cti
on

s t
o t

he
 20

16
/17

 ac
cou

nts
 fro

m 
me

mb
ers

 of
 th

e p
ub

lic.

Au
dit

 di
ffe

ren
ces

We
 cu

rre
ntl

y h
ave

 no
 un

ad
jus

ted
 au

dit
 di

ffe
ren

ces
.

We
 ha

ve 
ide

nti
fie

d a
 nu

mb
er 

of 
au

dit
 dif

fer
en

ces
 wh

ich
 ha

ve 
be

en
 ad

jus
ted

 by
 m

an
ag

em
en

t. D
eta

ils 
can

 be
 fo

un
d in

 Se
cti

on
 4 

Au
dit

 Di
ffe

ren
ces

.

Ar
eas

 of
 au

dit
 fo

cu
s

Ou
r A

ud
it P

lan
 ide

nti
fie

d k
ey

 ar
ea

s o
f fo

cus
 fo

r o
ur 

aud
it o

f L
on

do
n B

oro
ug

h o
f H

illin
gd

on
 Pe

nsi
on

 Fu
nd

’s f
ina

nci
al s

tat
em

en
ts.

 Th
is r

epo
rt s

ets
 ou

t o
ur 

ob
ser

vat
ion

s a
nd

con
clu

sio
ns,

 in
clu

din
g o

ur 
vie

ws
 on

 ar
eas

 wh
ich

 m
igh

t b
e c

on
ser

vat
ive

, a
nd

 wh
ere

 th
ere

 is 
po

ten
tia

l ri
sk 

an
d e

xpo
sur

e. 
We

 su
mm

ari
se 

ou
r c

on
sid

era
tio

n o
f th

ese
 m

att
ers

,
an

d a
ny

 ot
he

rs 
ide

nti
fie

d, 
in 

the
 "A

rea
s o

f A
ud

it F
ocu

s" 
sec

tio
n o

f th
is r

ep
ort

.

We
 as

k y
ou

 to
 re

vie
w t

he
se 

an
d a

ny
 ot

he
r m

att
ers

 in
 th

is r
ep

ort
 to

 en
sur

e:
•

Th
ere

 ar
e n

o o
the

r c
on

sid
era

tio
ns 

or 
ma

tte
rs 

tha
t c

ou
ld h

ave
 an

  im
pa

ct 
on

 th
ese

 iss
ue

s
•

Yo
u a

gre
e w

ith
 th

e r
eso

lut
ion

 of
 th

e is
sue

•
Th

ere
 ar

e n
o o

the
r s

ign
ific

an
t is

sue
s t

o b
e c

on
sid

ere
d.

Th
ere

 ar
e n

o m
att

ers
, a

par
t fr

om
 th

ose
 re

po
rte

d b
y m

an
ag

em
en

t o
r d

isc
los

ed
 in

 th
is r

ep
ort

, w
hic

h w
e b

elie
ve 

sho
uld

 be
 br

ou
gh

t to
 th

e a
tte

nti
on

 of
 th

e P
en

sio
n F

un
d

Co
mm

itte
e o

r th
e A

ud
it C

om
mi

tte
e.

Page 12



Ex
ec

uti
ve

 Su
mm

ary

7

Ex
ecu

tiv
e s

um
ma

ry 
(co

nti
nu

ed
)

Ot
he

r r
ep

ort
ing

 iss
ue

s
We

 ha
ve 

rev
iew

ed
 th

e in
for

ma
tio

n p
res

en
ted

 in 
the

 An
nu

al 
Re

po
rt f

or 
con

sis
ten

cy 
wit

h t
he

 au
dit

ed
 fin

an
cia

l st
ate

me
nts

 an
d o

ur 
kn

ow
led

ge
 of

 th
e F

un
d. 

We
 ha

ve 
no

ma
tte

rs 
to 

rep
ort

 as
 a r

esu
lt o

f th
is w

ork
.

We
 ha

ve 
no

 ot
he

r m
att

ers
 to

 re
po

rt.

Co
ntr

ol 
ob

ser
va

tio
ns

We
 ha

ve 
no

t id
en

tifi
ed

 an
y s

ign
ific

an
t d

efi
cie

nci
es 

in t
he

 de
sig

n o
r o

pe
rat

ion
 of

 an
 int

ern
al c

on
tro

l th
at 

mi
gh

t re
sul

t in
 a m

ate
ria

l m
iss

tat
em

en
t in

 yo
ur 

fin
an

cia
l st

ate
me

nts
.

We
 did

 ho
we

ver
 no

te 
tha

t a
s p

art
 of

 ou
r re

vie
w o

f th
e b

an
k r

eco
nci

liat
ion

s t
ha

t w
e w

ere
 un

ab
le t

o c
om

me
nt 

up
on

 th
e t

im
elin

ess
 of

 th
e r

eco
nci

liat
ion

s a
s t

he
y w

ere
 no

t
da

ted
. T

he
re 

wa
s n

o c
lea

r e
vid

en
ce 

tha
t th

ey
 ha

d b
ee

n r
evi

ew
ed

.
We

 wo
uld

 re
com

me
nd

 th
at 

all 
rec

on
cili

ati
on

s a
re 

sig
ne

d o
ff a

s d
ate

d a
nd

 re
vie

we
d a

s e
vid

en
ce 

of 
tim

ely
 re

vie
w.

Ple
ase

 re
fer

 to
 Ap

pe
nd

ix B
 fo

r o
ur 

up
da

te 
on

 In
dep

en
de

nc
e.

Ind
ep

en
de

nc
e

Page 13



Ar
ea

s o
f A

ud
it F

oc
us

02

Page 14



Ar
ea

s o
f A

ud
it F

oc
us

Au
dit

 iss
ues

 an
d a

pp
roa

ch:
 Ri

sk 
of 

Inc
orr

ect
 Va

lua
tio

n o
f In

ves
tm

ent
s

Wh
at 

are
 ou

r c
on

clu
sio

ns
?

We
 ha

ve 
con

clu
ded

 ou
r w

ork
 in 

res
pec

t
of 

thi
s S

ign
ific

ant
 Ri

sk 
and

 ha
ve 

not
ide

nti
fied

 an
y m

ate
ria

l er
ror

s.

Ris
k o

f In
cor

rec
t

Va
lua

tio
n o

f In
ves

tm
ent

s
Ou

r a
ppr

oac
h t

o In
ves

tm
ent

 Va
lua

tio
n in

clu
ded

 th
e fo

llow
ing

:
•

We
 ob

tai
ne

d t
hir

d p
art

y c
on

firm
ati

on
s f

or 
inv

est
me

nt 
va

lua
tio

ns
fro

m 
bo

th 
the

 cu
sto

dia
n a

nd
 th

e in
ves

tm
en

t m
an

ag
er;

•
We

 ob
tai

ne
d t

he
 lat

est
 au

dit
ed

 ac
co

un
ts 

for
 th

ese
 fu

nd
s a

nd
rev

iew
ed

 an
y c

om
me

nts
 m

ad
e b

y t
he

ir a
ud

ito
rs;

•
We

 co
mp

are
d t

he
 va

lua
tio

ns 
as 

at 
the

 da
te 

of 
the

 au
dit

ed
rep

ort
s a

nd
 as

 at
 31

 Ma
rch

 20
17

 an
d w

e in
ves

tig
ate

d a
ny

un
exp

ect
ed

 flu
ctu

ati
on

s;
•

We
 re

vie
we

d in
ves

tm
en

t v
alu

ati
on

 po
lici

es 
use

d b
y N

ort
he

rn
Tru

st o
n w

ho
se 

val
ua

tio
n t

he
 PF

 pr
ima

rily
 re

lies
;

•
We

 ob
tai

ne
d t

he
 lat

est
 av

aila
ble

 IS
AE

 34
02

 re
po

rts
 fo

r th
e

cu
sto

dia
n a

nd
 th

e in
ves

tm
en

ts 
ma

na
ge

rs 
an

d r
evi

ew
ed

 th
e

co
ntr

ols
 en

vir
on

me
nt 

in 
pla

ce 
aro

un
d t

ho
se 

po
lici

es.

Wh
at 

did
 we

 do
?

Ba
sed

 on
 ini

tia
l p

lan
nin

g w
ork

 on
 th

e P
en

sio
n F

un
d a

nd
dis

cus
sio

ns 
wit

h m
an

ag
em

en
t w

e n
ote

 th
at 

the
 Pe

nsi
on

Fu
nd

 ho
lds

 a s
ign

ific
an

t b
ala

nce
 of

 in
ves

tm
en

ts 
in

alt
ern

ati
ve 

inv
est

me
nts

, in
clu

din
g P

riv
ate

 Eq
uit

y f
un

ds.
By

 th
eir

 ve
ry 

na
tur

e t
he

se 
inv

est
me

nts
 ar

e m
ore

dif
fic

ult
 to

 va
lue

 an
d t

he
ir v

alu
ati

on
 inc

lud
es 

an
ele

me
nt 

of 
jud

ge
me

nt.

Wh
at 

is 
the

 ris
k?

Page 15



Ar
ea

s o
f A

ud
it F

oc
us

Au
dit

 iss
ue

s a
nd

 ap
pro

ach
: M

an
ag

em
en

t O
ver

rid
e

Wh
at 

are
 ou

r c
on

clu
sio

ns
?

We
 ha

ve 
not

 ide
nti

fied
 an

y m
ate

ria
l

we
akn

ess
es 

in c
on

tro
ls o

r e
vid

enc
e o

f
ma

ter
ial 

ma
na

gem
ent

 ov
err

ide
.

We
 ha

ve 
not

 ide
nti

fied
 an

y in
sta

nce
s o

f
ina

ppr
opr

iate
 jud

gem
ent

s b
ein

g
app

lied
.

We
 did

 no
t id

ent
ify

 an
y o

the
r

tra
nsa

ctio
ns 

du
rin

g o
ur 

aud
it w

hic
h

app
ear

ed 
unu

sua
l or

 ou
tsid

e t
he

Fun
d‘s

 no
rm

al c
ou

rse
 of

 bu
sin

ess
.

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
ove

rrid
e

Ou
r a

ppr
oac

h t
o M

ana
gem

ent
 Ov

err
ide

 inc
lud

ed 
the

 fo
llow

ing
:

•
We

 te
ste

d t
he

 ap
pro

pri
ate

ne
ss 

of 
jou

rna
l en

trie
s r

eco
rde

d i
n t

he
ge

ne
ral

 le
dg

er 
an

d o
the

r a
dju

stm
en

ts 
ma

de 
in 

pre
pa

rin
g t

he
fin

an
cia

l st
ate

me
nts

;
•

We
 re

vie
we

d a
cco

un
tin

g e
sti

ma
tes

 fo
r e

vid
en

ce 
of 

ma
na

ge
me

nt
bia

s; a
nd

•
We

 ev
alu

ate
d t

he
 bu

sin
ess

 ra
tio

na
l fo

r a
ny

 sig
nif

ica
nt 

un
usu

al
tra

nsa
cti

on
s.

Wh
at 

did
 we

 do
?

Ris
k o

f m
ana

gem
ent

 ov
err

ide
As 

ide
nti

fied
 in 

ISA
 24

0, 
ma

nag
em

ent
 is 

in a
 un

iqu
e

po
siti

on 
to 

per
pet

rat
e f

rau
d b

eca
use

 of
 its

 ab
ility

 to
ma

nip
ula

te 
acc

ou
nti

ng 
rec

ord
s d

ire
ctly

 or
 ind

ire
ctly

 an
d  t

o
pre

par
e fr

aud
ule

nt 
fina

nci
al s

tat
em

ent
s b

y o
ver

rid
ing

con
tro

ls t
hat

 ot
her

wis
e s

eem
  to

 be
 op

era
tin

g e
ffe

ctiv
ely

.
We

 ide
nti

fy a
nd

 re
spo

nd
 to

 th
is f

rau
d r

isk
 on

 ev
ery

 au
dit

en
gag

em
ent

.

Wh
at 

is 
the

 ris
k?

Page 16



Ar
ea

s o
f A

ud
it F

oc
us

Au
dit

 iss
ues

 an
d a

pp
roa

ch:
 Pe

nsi
on

s A
dm

inis
tra

tor
 Tr

an
sit

ion
Pe

nsi
on

s
Ad

mi
nis

tra
tor

Tra
nsi

tio
n

Wh
at 

are
 ou

r c
on

clu
sio

ns
?

As 
a r

esu
lt o

f th
e w

ork
 pe

rfo
rm

ed 
we

did
 no

t id
ent

ify 
any

 ma
ter

ial 
iss

ues
 in

res
pec

t o
f th

e t
ran

siti
on

.

Ou
r a

ppr
oac

h t
o t

he 
tra

nsi
tio

n o
f p

ens
ion

s a
dm

inis
tra

tor
 inc

lud
ed 

the
foll

ow
ing

:
•

We
 re

vie
we

d t
he

 na
tur

e o
f th

e n
ew

 ag
ree

me
nt 

wit
h S

urr
ey

Co
un

ty 
Co

un
cil;

•
We

 re
vie

we
d p

roj
ect

 pla
nn

ing
 do

cum
en

ts 
an

d m
inu

tes
 in 

res
pe

ct
of 

the
 tra

nsi
tio

n. 
Th

is i
ncl

ud
ed

 re
vie

win
g c

orr
esp

on
de

nce
 fro

m
the

 ex
ter

na
l o

rga
nis

ati
on

 (A
qu

ila 
He

yw
oo

d) 
wh

o o
ver

saw
 th

e
da

ta 
tra

nsf
er;

•
We

 co
mp

let
ed

 an
aly

tic
al p

roc
ed

ure
s t

o e
sta

blis
h a

ny
 de

via
tio

ns
in 

me
mb

ers
hip

 nu
mb

ers
 an

d v
alu

es 
of 

be
ne

fits
 pa

ym
en

ts 
fro

m
exp

ect
ed

 va
lue

s;
•

We
 re

vie
we

d m
inu

tes
 of

 Pe
nsi

on
s C

om
mi

tte
e m

eet
ing

s t
o

un
de

rst
an

d a
ny

 po
ten

tia
l is

sue
s a

ris
ing

 fro
m 

the
 tra

nsi
tio

n.
•

We
 te

ste
d a

n e
xte

nsi
ve

 sa
mp

le o
f b

en
efi

ts 
pa

ym
en

ts 
ma

de
 to

me
mb

ers
 ba

ck 
to 

sup
po

rtin
g d

ocu
me

nta
tio

n a
nd

 th
e s

yst
em

.

Wh
at 

did
 we

 do
?

Pe
nsi

on
s A

dm
inis

tra
tor

 Tr
ans

itio
n

Th
e P

en
sio

n F
un

d c
ha

ng
ed

 th
e p

rov
ide

r o
f p

en
sio

ns’
ad

mi
nis

tra
tio

n s
erv

ice
s f

rom
 Ca

pit
a t

o S
urr

ey
 Co

un
ty

Co
un

cil 
in y

ear
.

Giv
en

 th
e s

ize
 of

 th
e F

un
d a

nd
 th

e n
um

be
r o

f m
em

be
rs

the
re 

is a
 ris

k t
ha

t n
ot 

all 
da

ta 
wa

s c
orr

ect
ly t

ran
sfe

rre
d

to 
the

 ne
w a

dm
inis

tra
tor

.
Th

ere
 is 

a f
urt

he
r ri

sk 
tha

t, i
n t

he
 fir

st 
few

 m
on

ths
 as

ne
w a

dm
inis

tra
tor

, p
roc

ed
ure

s a
nd

 co
ntr

ols
 m

ay
 no

t
ye

t b
ee

n e
mb

ed
de

d a
nd

 th
us 

err
ors

 m
ay

 be
 m

ore
 lik

ely
to 

oc
cur

.

Wh
at 

is 
the

 ris
k?

Page 17



Ar
ea

s o
f A

ud
it F

oc
us

Au
dit

 iss
ue

s a
nd

 ap
pro

ach
: In

ves
tm

en
t M

an
age

r T
ran

sit
ion

s
Inv

est
me

nt 
Ma

nag
er

Tra
nsi

tio
ns

Ou
r a

ppr
oac

h t
o in

ves
tm

ent
 ma

nag
er 

tra
nsi

tio
ns 

inc
lud

ed 
the

 fo
llow

ing
:

We
 re

vie
we

d t
he

 au
dit

 tra
il o

f th
ese

 m
ove

me
nts

 an
d p

roc
eed

s
an

d v
eri

fie
d s

ign
ific

an
t tr

an
sac

tio
ns 

to 
ext

ern
al a

ud
it e

vid
en

ce;
We

 ob
tai

ne
d a

de
qu

ate
 as

sur
an

ce 
to 

sup
po

rt t
ha

t th
e c

ha
ng

es
ha

ve 
be

en
 ac

cou
nte

d f
or 

an
d d

isc
los

ed
 as

 ex
pe

cte
d;

We
 ob

tai
ne

d a
nd

 re
vie

we
d t

he
 inv

est
me

nt 
ma

na
ge

r’s
 co

ntr
act

s
to 

un
de

rst
an

d t
he

 na
tur

e o
f th

e n
ew

 in
ves

tm
en

ts,
 an

d a
ny

rel
ev

an
t a

ud
it r

isk
s

We
 ob

tai
ne

d e
xte

rna
l co

nfi
rm

ati
on

s t
o s

up
po

rt t
he

 in
ves

tm
en

t
va

lua
tio

n.

Wh
at 

did
 we

 do
?

Inv
est

me
nt

Ma
nag

er
Tra

nsi
tio

ns
We

 un
de

rst
an

d t
he

 sig
nif

ica
nt 

cha
ng

es 
to 

inv
est

me
nts

are
: Tra

nsf
er 

of 
inv

est
me

nt 
po

rtf
olio

 fro
m 

Sta
te 

Str
ee

t
to 

Le
ga

l an
d G

en
era

l;
Tra

nsf
er 

of 
inv

est
me

nt 
po

rtf
oli

o f
rom

 Ke
mp

en
 to

Ne
wt

on
;

Tra
nsf

er 
of 

inv
est

me
nt 

po
rtf

oli
o f

rom
 GM

O t
o L

eg
al

an
d G

en
era

l;
Tra

nsf
er 

of 
the

 Ru
ffe

r p
ort

fol
io i

nto
 th

e L
on

do
n

Co
llec

tiv
e In

ves
tm

en
t V

eh
icle

Wi
th 

an
y in

ves
tm

en
t c

ha
ng

es 
the

re 
is a

n a
ud

it r
isk

 th
at

tra
nsa

cti
on

s m
ay

 be
 om

itte
d f

rom
 th

e f
ina

nci
al

sta
tem

en
ts 

or 
no

t b
e r

ep
ort

ed
 fa

irly
.

Wh
at 

is 
the

 ris
k?

Wh
at 

are
 ou

r c
on

clu
sio

ns
?

We
 ha

ve 
com

ple
ted

 ou
r w

ork
in 

thi
s

are
a a

nd
 ha

ve 
no

t id
en

tifi
ed

 an
y

ma
ter

ial 
iss

ue
s.

Page 18



Au
dit

 Re
po

rt
03

Page 19



Au
dit

Re
po

rt

14

Dra
ft a

ud
it r

epo
rt

IND
EP

EN
DE

NT
 AU

DIT
OR

’S 
RE

PO
RT

 TO
 TH

E M
EM

BE
RS

 OF
 LO

ND
ON

 BO
RO

UG
H O

F H
ILL

ING
DO

N

Op
ini

on
 on

 th
e p

en
sio

n f
un

d f
ina

nc
ial 

sta
tem

en
ts

We
 ha

ve 
au

dit
ed

 th
e p

en
sio

n f
un

d f
ina

nci
al s

tat
em

en
ts f

or 
the

 ye
ar 

en
de

d 3
1 M

arc
h 2

01
7 u

nd
er 

the
 Lo

cal
 Au

dit
 an

d A
cco

un
tab

ilit
y A

ct 
20

14
. T

he
 pe

nsi
on

 fu
nd

 fin
an

cia
l

sta
tem

en
ts 

com
pri

se:
 th

e F
un

d A
cco

un
t,

 th
e N

et 
As

set
s S

tat
em

en
t; a

nd
 th

e r
ela

ted
 no

tes
 1 

to 
24

.
Th

e f
ina

nci
al r

ep
ort

ing
 fra

me
wo

rk 
tha

t h
as 

bee
n a

pp
lied

 in 
the

ir p
rep

ara
tio

n i
s a

pp
lica

ble
 law

 an
d t

he
 CI

PF
A/

LA
SA

AC
 Co

de
 of

 Pr
act

ice
 on

 Lo
cal

 Au
tho

rity
 Ac

cou
nti

ng
 in 

the
 Un

ite
d

Kin
gd

om
 20

16
/17

.
Th

is r
ep

ort
 is 

ma
de

 so
lely

 to
 th

e m
em

be
rs 

of 
Lo

nd
on

 Bo
rou

gh
 of

 Hi
llin

gd
on

 in
 ac

cor
da

nce
 wi

th 
Pa

rt 5
 of

 th
e L

oc
al A

ud
it a

nd
 Ac

cou
nta

bili
ty 

Ac
t 2

01
4 a

nd
 fo

r n
o o

the
r p

urp
ose

, a
s

set
 ou

t in
 pa

rag
rap

h 4
3 o

f th
e S

tat
em

en
t o

f R
esp

on
sib

ilit
ies

 of
 Au

dit
ors

 an
d A

ud
ite

d B
od

ies
 pu

blis
he

d b
y P

ub
lic 

Se
cto

r A
ud

it A
pp

oin
tm

en
ts 

Lim
ite

d. 
To

 th
e f

ulle
st 

ext
en

t p
erm

itte
d

by
 law

, w
e d

o n
ot 

acc
ep

t o
r a

ssu
me

 re
spo

nsi
bili

ty 
to 

an
yon

e o
the

r th
an

 th
e a

uth
ori

ty 
an

d t
he

 au
tho

rity
’s m

em
be

rs 
as 

a b
od

y, 
for

 ou
r a

ud
it w

ork
, fo

r th
is r

ep
ort

, o
r fo

r th
e o

pin
ion

s
we

 ha
ve 

for
me

d.

Re
spe

cti
ve

 re
spo

nsi
bil

itie
s o

f th
e D

ire
cto

r o
f F

ina
nce

 an
d a

ud
ito

r
As

 ex
pla

ine
d m

ore
 fu

lly
 in 

the
 St

ate
me

nt 
of 

the
 Re

spo
nsi

bili
tie

s o
f th

e D
ire

cto
r o

f F
ina

nce
 se

t o
ut 

on
 pa

ge
 10

, th
e D

ire
cto

r o
f F

ina
nce

 is 
res

po
nsi

ble
 fo

r th
e p

rep
ara

tio
n o

f th
e

Au
tho

rity
’s S

tat
em

en
t o

f A
cco

un
ts,

 wh
ich

 inc
lud

es 
the

 pe
nsi

on
 fu

nd
 fin

an
cia

l st
ate

me
nts

, in
 ac

cor
da

nce
 wi

th 
pro

pe
r p

rac
tic

es 
as 

set
 ou

t in
 th

e C
IPF

A/
LA

SA
AC

 Co
de

 of
 Pr

act
ice

 on
Lo

cal
 Au

tho
rity

 Ac
cou

nti
ng

 in 
the

 Un
ite

d K
ing

do
m 

20
16

/17
, a

nd
 fo

r b
ein

g s
ati

sfie
d t

ha
t th

ey
 giv

e a
 tru

e a
nd

 fa
ir v

iew
. O

ur 
res

po
nsi

bili
ty 

is t
o a

ud
it a

nd
 ex

pre
ss 

an
 op

inio
n o

n t
he

fin
an

cia
l st

ate
me

nts
 in 

acc
ord

an
ce 

wit
h a

pp
lica

ble
 law

 an
d In

ter
na

tio
na

l S
tan

da
rds

 on
 Au

dit
ing

 (U
K a

nd
 Ire

lan
d).

 Th
ose

 sta
nd

ard
s r

eq
uir

e u
s t

o c
om

ply
 wi

th 
the

 Au
dit

ing
 Pr

act
ice

s
Bo

ard
’s E

thi
cal

 St
an

da
rds

 fo
r A

ud
ito

rs.

Ou
r o

pin
ion

 on
 th

e f
ina

nc
ial

 st
ate

me
nts

Page 20



Au
dit

 Re
po

rt

15

Dr
aft

 au
dit

 re
po

rt 
(co

nti
nu

ed
)

Sc
op

e o
f th

e a
ud

it o
f th

e f
ina

nc
ial

 st
ate

me
nts

An
 au

dit
 inv

olv
es 

ob
tai

nin
g e

vid
en

ce 
abo

ut 
the

 am
ou

nts
 an

d d
isc

los
ure

s in
 th

e f
ina

nci
al s

tat
em

en
ts 

suf
fic

ien
t to

 giv
e r

eas
on

ab
le a

ssu
ran

ce 
tha

t th
e f

ina
nci

al s
tat

em
en

ts 
are

 fre
e f

rom
ma

ter
ial 

mi
sst

ate
me

nt,
 wh

eth
er 

cau
sed

 by
 fra

ud
 or

 er
ror

. T
his

 inc
lud

es 
an

 as
ses

sm
en

t o
f: w

he
the

r th
e a

cco
un

tin
g p

oli
cie

s a
re 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 to
 th

e f
un

d’s
 cir

cum
sta

nce
s a

nd
 ha

ve 
bee

n
con

sis
ten

tly
 ap

plie
d a

nd
 ad

eq
ua

tel
y d

isc
los

ed
; th

e r
ea

son
ab

len
ess

 of
 sig

nif
ica

nt 
acc

ou
nti

ng
 es

tim
ate

s m
ad

e b
y t

he
 Di

rec
tor

 of
 Fin

an
ce 

an
d t

he
 ov

era
ll p

res
en

tat
ion

 of
 th

e f
ina

nci
al

sta
tem

en
ts.

 In
 ad

dit
ion

, w
e r

ea
d a

ll t
he

 fin
an

cia
l an

d n
on

-fin
an

cia
l in

for
ma

tio
n i

n t
he

 St
ate

me
nt 

of 
Ac

cou
nts

 20
16

/17
 to

 ide
nti

fy 
ma

ter
ial 

inc
on

sis
ten

cie
s w

ith
 th

e a
ud

ite
d f

ina
nci

al
sta

tem
en

ts 
an

d t
o i

de
nti

fy 
any

 inf
orm

ati
on

 th
at 

is a
pp

are
ntl

y m
ate

ria
lly 

inc
orr

ect
 ba

sed
 on

, o
r m

ate
ria

lly 
inc

on
sis

ten
t w

ith
, th

e k
no

wle
dg

e a
cqu

ire
d b

y u
s in

 th
e c

ou
rse

 of
 pe

rfo
rm

ing
the

 au
dit

. If
 we

 be
com

e a
wa

re 
of 

an
y a

pp
are

nt 
ma

ter
ial 

mi
sst

ate
me

nts
 or

 inc
on

sis
ten

cie
s w

e c
on

sid
er 

the
 im

plic
ati

on
s fo

r o
ur 

rep
ort

.
Op

ini
on

 on
 fin

an
cia

l st
ate

me
nts

In 
ou

r o
pin

ion
 th

e p
en

sio
n f

un
d f

ina
nci

al s
tat

em
en

ts:
•

giv
e a

 tru
e a

nd
 fa

ir v
iew

 of
 th

e f
ina

nci
al t

ran
sac

tio
ns 

of 
the

 pe
nsi

on
 fu

nd
 du

rin
g t

he
 ye

ar 
en

de
d 3

1 M
arc

h 2
01

7 a
nd

 th
e a

mo
un

t a
nd

 dis
po

sit
ion

 of
 th

e f
un

d’s
 as

set
s a

nd
liab

ilit
ies

 as
 at

 31
 Ma

rch
 20

17
; a

nd
•

ha
ve 

bee
n p

rop
erl

y p
rep

are
d in

 ac
cor

da
nce

 wi
th 

the
 CI

PF
A/L

AS
AA

C C
od

e o
f P

rac
tic

e o
n L

oca
l A

uth
ori

ty 
Ac

cou
nti

ng
 in 

the
 Un

ite
d K

ing
do

m 
20

16
/17

.
Op

ini
on

 on
 ot

he
r m

att
ers

In 
ou

r o
pin

ion
, th

e in
for

ma
tio

n g
ive

n in
 th

e L
on

do
n B

oro
ug

h o
f H

illin
gd

on
 St

ate
me

nt 
of 

Ac
cou

nts
 20

16
/17

 fo
r th

e f
ina

nci
al y

ea
r fo

r w
hic

h t
he

 fin
an

cia
l st

ate
me

nts
 ar

e p
rep

are
d is

con
sis

ten
t w

ith
 th

e f
ina

nci
al s

tat
em

en
ts.

Ou
r o

pin
ion

 on
 th

e f
ina

nc
ial

 st
ate

me
nts

Page 21



Au
dit

 Re
po

rt

16

Dr
aft

 au
dit

 re
po

rt 
(co

nti
nu

ed
)

Ma
tte

rs 
on

 wh
ich

 we
 re

po
rt 

by
ex

ce
pti

on
We

 re
po

rt t
o y

ou
 if:

•
we

 iss
ue

 a r
ep

ort
 in

 th
e p

ub
lic 

int
ere

st 
un

de
r s

ect
ion

 24
 of

 th
e L

oca
l A

ud
it a

nd
 Ac

cou
nta

bili
ty 

Ac
t 2

01
4;

•
we

 m
ake

 wr
itte

n r
eco

mm
en

da
tio

ns 
to 

the
 au

dit
ed

 bo
dy 

un
de

r S
ect

ion
 24

 of
 th

e L
oca

l A
ud

it a
nd

 Ac
co

un
tab

ilit
y A

ct 
20

14
;

•
we

 m
ake

 an
 ap

plic
ati

on
 to

 th
e c

ou
rt f

or 
a d

ecl
ara

tio
n t

ha
t a

n it
em

 of
 ac

cou
nt 

is c
on

tra
ry 

to 
law

 un
de

r S
ect

ion
 28

 of
 th

e L
oca

l A
ud

it a
nd

 Ac
cou

nta
bili

ty 
Ac

t
20

14
;

•
we

 iss
ue

 an
 ad

vis
ory

 no
tic

e u
nd

er 
Se

cti
on

 29
 of

 th
e L

oca
l A

ud
it a

nd
 Ac

cou
nta

bili
ty 

Ac
t 2

01
4; 

or
•

we
 m

ake
 an

 ap
plic

ati
on

 fo
r ju

dic
ial 

rev
iew

 un
de

r S
ect

ion
 31

 of
 th

e L
oca

l A
ud

it a
nd

 Ac
cou

nta
bili

ty 
Ac

t 2
01

4.
We

 ha
ve 

no
thi

ng
 to

 re
po

rt i
n t

he
se 

res
pe

cts

Tim
 Sa

dle
r (s

en
ior

 st
atu

tor
y a

ud
ito

r)
for

 an
d o

n b
eh

alf
 of

 Er
nst

 & 
Yo

un
g L

LP
, A

pp
oin

ted
 Au

dit
or

Re
adi

ng
25

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
17

.

Th
e m

ain
ten

an
ce 

an
d in

teg
rity

 of
 th

e L
on

do
n B

oro
ug

h o
f H

illin
gd

on
 we

b s
ite

 is 
the

 re
spo

nsi
bili

ty 
of 

the
 dir

ect
ors

; th
e w

ork
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
by

 th
e a

ud
ito

rs 
do

es 
no

t
inv

olv
e c

on
sid

era
tio

n o
f th

ese
 m

att
ers

 an
d, 

acc
ord

ing
ly,

 th
e a

ud
ito

rs 
acc

ept
 no

 re
spo

nsi
bili

ty 
for

 an
y c

ha
ng

es 
tha

t m
ay

 ha
ve 

occ
urr

ed
 to

 th
e f

ina
nci

al s
tat

em
en

ts
sin

ce 
the

y w
ere

 in
itia

lly 
pre

sen
ted

 on
 th

e w
eb

 sit
e.

Le
gis

lat
ion

 in 
the

 Un
ite

d K
ing

do
m 

go
ver

nin
g t

he
 pr

epa
rat

ion
 an

d d
iss

em
ina

tio
n o

f fi
na

nci
al s

tat
em

en
ts 

ma
y d

iffe
r fr

om
 leg

isla
tio

n i
n o

the
r ju

ris
dic

tio
ns.

Ou
r o

pin
ion

 on
 th

e f
ina

nc
ial

 st
ate

me
nts

Page 22



Au
dit

 Di
ffe

ren
ce

s
04

Page 23



Au
dit

Dif
fer

en
ce

s

18

Au
dit

 dif
fer

en
ces

We
 ha

ve 
inc

lud
ed

 all
 kn

ow
n a

mo
un

ts 
gre

ate
r th

an
 £7

.17
5m

 re
lat

ing
 to

 Hi
llin

gd
on

 Pe
nsi

on
 Fu

nd
 in 

ou
r s

um
ma

ry 
of 

mi
sst

ate
me

nts
 ta

ble
 be

low
.

We
 hi

gh
lig

ht 
the

 fo
llo

win
g m

iss
tat

em
en

ts 
in 

the
 fin

an
cia

l st
ate

me
nts

 or
 dis

clo
sur

es 
ide

nti
fie

d d
uri

ng
 th

e a
ud

it. 
Th

ese
 ha

ve 
be

en
 co

rre
cte

d b
y m

an
ag

em
en

t:
•

In 
No

te 
15

 (F
air

 Va
lue

) th
ere

 wa
s a

n a
dju

stm
en

t b
etw

ee
n L

eve
l 1

 an
d L

eve
l 2

 in 
the

 Fa
ir V

alu
e H

ier
arc

hy
. T

he
 to

tal
 tra

nsf
er 

be
tw

ee
n t

he
se 

cat
eg

ori
es 

is a
s f

ollo
ws

:
20

16
/17

: L
eve

l 1
 £7

25
.42

3m
 to

 £1
40

.93
6m

 & 
Le

vel
 2 

£1
14

.91
6m

 to
 £6

99
.40

3m
.

20
15

/16
: L

eve
l 1

 £5
92

.57
0m

 to
 £1

76
.47

8m
 & 

Le
vel

 2 
£1

06
.36

8 m
 to

 £5
22

.45
9m

.
Th

ese
 ar

e d
isc

los
ure

 ad
jus

tm
en

ts 
on

ly a
nd

 th
ere

 is 
no

 im
pa

ct 
on

 th
e p

rim
ary

 sta
tem

en
ts.

•
In 

No
te 

17
 (N

atu
re 

an
d E

xte
nt 

of 
Ex

po
sur

e t
o R

isk
s A

ris
ing

 fro
m 

Fin
an

cia
l In

str
um

en
ts)

 th
e p

rio
r y

ea
r ta

ble
 ‘A

sse
ts 

exp
ose

d t
o c

urr
en

cy 
ris

k’ w
as 

am
en

de
d f

rom
£8

.51
2m

 to
 £1

39
.99

6m
. T

his
 er

ror
 ar

ose
 as

 a r
esu

lt o
f a

n e
rro

r in
 on

e o
f th

e f
orm

ula
 co

mp
uta

tio
n f

ield
s. T

his
 is 

a d
isc

los
ure

 ad
jus

tm
en

t o
nly

 an
d t

he
re 

is n
o im

pac
t o

n
the

 pr
im

ary
 sta

tem
en

ts.
•

In 
No

te 
17

 (N
atu

re 
an

d E
xte

nt 
of 

Ris
ks 

Ari
sin

g f
rom

 Fin
an

cia
l In

str
um

en
ts)

 th
e a

mo
un

t fo
r B

on
ds 

(Po
ole

d F
un

ds)
 wa

s a
me

nd
ed

 fro
m 

£1
33

.16
0m

 to
 £1

48
.81

7m
. T

his
err

or 
wa

s id
en

tifi
ed

 by
 of

fic
ers

. O
ffic

ers
 ide

nti
fie

d a
n e

rro
r in

 th
e c

las
sifi

cat
ion

 of
 an

 as
set

 by
 th

e c
ust

od
ian

 an
d r

est
ate

d t
his

 No
te.

 Th
is i

s a
 dis

clo
sur

e a
dju

stm
en

t o
nly

an
d t

he
re 

is n
o im

pa
ct 

on
 th

e p
rim

ary
 sta

tem
en

ts.
Th

ere
 ar

e c
urr

en
tly

 no
 un

cor
rec

ted
 mi

sst
ate

me
nts

.

Su
mm

ary
 of

ad
jus

ted
 di

ffe
ren

ce
s

In 
an

y a
ud

it, 
we

ma
yid

en
tify

 m
iss

tat
em

en
ts 

bet
we

en
 am

ou
nts

 we
 be

liev
es

ho
uld

be
 re

co
rde

d in
 th

e f
ina

nci
al s

tat
em

en
ts a

nd
 dis

clo
sur

es 
an

d a
mo

un
ts

act
ua

lly
rec

ord
ed

.
Th

ese
 dif

fer
en

ces
 ar

e c
las

sifi
ed

 as
 ‘kn

ow
n’ o

r ‘j
ud

ge
me

nta
l’. K

no
wn

 dif
fer

en
ces

 re
pre

sen
t it

em
s t

ha
t c

an
 be

 ac
cur

ate
ly q

ua
nti

fie
d a

nd
 re

lat
e t

o a
 de

fin
ite

 se
t o

f fa
cts

 or
cir

cum
sta

nce
s. J

ud
gem

en
tal

 di
ffe

ren
ces

 ge
ne

ral
ly i

nv
olv

e e
stim

ati
on

 an
d r

ela
te 

to 
fac

ts o
r c

irc
um

sta
nce

s th
at 

are
 un

cer
tai

n o
r o

pe
n t

o i
nte

rpr
eta

tio
n.

Page 24



Ot
he

r r
ep

ort
ing

 iss
ue

s
05

Page 25



Ot
he

r r
ep

ort
ing

 iss
ue

s

20

Ot
he

r re
po

rtin
g is

sue
s

We
 m

ust
 giv

e a
n o

pin
ion

 on
 th

e c
on

sis
ten

cy 
of 

the
fin

an
cia

l an
d n

on
-fin

an
cia

l in
for

ma
tio

n in
 th

eS
tat

em
en

t o
f A

cco
un

ts 
20

16
/17

wit
h t

he
 au

dit
ed

 fin
an

cia
l

sta
tem

en
ts.

Fin
an

cia
l in

for
ma

tio
n i

n t
he

 St
ate

me
nt 

of 
Ac

cou
nts

 20
16

/17
 an

d p
ub

lish
ed

 wi
th 

the
 fin

an
cia

l st
ate

me
nts

 wa
s c

on
sis

ten
t w

ith
 th

e a
ud

ite
d f

ina
nci

al s
tat

em
en

ts.

Co
ns

ist
en

cy
 of

 ot
he

r in
for

ma
tio

n p
ub

lish
ed

 wi
th 

the
 fin

an
cia

l st
ate

me
nts

, in
clu

din
g t

he
 An

nu
al 

Re
po

rt

We
 ha

ve 
a d

uty
 un

de
r th

e L
oca

l A
ud

it a
nd

 Ac
cou

nta
bili

ty 
Ac

t 2
01

4 t
o c

on
sid

er 
wh

eth
er 

to 
rep

ort
 on

 an
y m

att
er 

tha
t c

om
es 

to 
ou

r a
tte

nti
on

 in 
the

 co
urs

e o
f th

e
au

dit
, e

ith
er 

for
 th

e F
un

d t
o c

on
sid

er 
it o

r to
 br

ing
 it 

to 
the

 at
ten

tio
n o

f th
e p

ub
lic 

(i.e
. “a

 re
po

rt i
n t

he
 pu

blic
 int

ere
st”

). W
e d

id n
ot 

ide
nti

fy 
an

y is
sue

s w
hic

h r
eq

uir
ed

us 
to 

iss
ue 

a r
ep

ort
 in

 th
e p

ub
lic 

int
ere

st.
We

 als
o h

ave
 a d

uty
 to

 ma
ke 

wr
itte

n r
eco

mm
en

dat
ion

s t
o t

he
 Fu

nd
, co

pie
d t

o t
he

 Se
cre

tar
y o

f S
tat

e, 
an

d t
ake

 ac
tio

n in
 ac

co
rda

nce
 wi

th 
ou

r re
spo

nsi
bili

tie
s u

nd
er

the
 Lo

cal
 Au

dit
 an

d A
cco

un
tab

ilit
y A

ct 
20

14
. W

e d
id 

no
t id

en
tify

 an
y is

sue
s.

Ot
he

r p
ow

ers
 an

d d
uti

es

Page 26



Ot
he

r r
ep

ort
ing

 iss
ue

s

21

Ot
he

r re
po

rtin
g is

sue
s

As
 re

qu
ire

d b
y IS

A (
UK

&I)
 26

0 a
nd

 ot
he

r IS
As

 sp
eci

fyi
ng

 co
mm

un
ica

tio
n r

eq
uir

em
en

ts,
 we

mu
st 

tel
lyo

u s
ign

ific
an

t fi
nd

ing
s f

rom
 th

e a
ud

it a
nd

 ot
he

r m
att

ers
if t

he
y

are
 sig

nif
ica

nt 
to 

yo
ur 

ov
ers

igh
t o

f th
e F

un
d’s

 fin
an

cia
l re

po
rtin

g p
roc

ess
. T

he
y in

clu
de

 th
e f

ollo
win

g:
•

Sig
nif

ica
nt 

qu
alit

ati
ve 

asp
ect

s o
f a

cco
un

tin
g p

rac
tic

es 
inc

lud
ing

 ac
cou

nti
ng

 po
lici

es,
 ac

cou
nti

ng
 es

tim
ate

s a
nd

 fin
an

cia
l st

ate
me

nt 
dis

clo
sur

es;
•

An
y s

ign
ific

an
t d

iffi
cul

tie
s e

nco
un

ter
ed

 du
rin

g t
he

 au
dit

;
•

An
y s

ign
ific

an
t m

att
ers

 ar
isin

g f
rom

 th
e a

ud
it t

ha
t w

ere
 dis

cus
sed

 wi
th 

ma
na

ge
me

nt;
•

Wr
itte

n r
ep

res
en

tat
ion

s w
e h

ave
 re

qu
est

ed
;

•
Ex

pe
cte

d m
od

ific
ati

on
s t

o t
he

 au
dit

 re
po

rt;
•

An
y o

the
r m

att
ers

 sig
nif

ica
nt 

to 
ov

ers
ee

ing
 th

e f
ina

nci
al r

ep
ort

ing
 pr

oce
ss;

•
Re

lat
ed

 pa
rtie

s;
•

Ex
ter

na
l co

nfi
rm

ati
on

s;
•

Go
ing

 co
nce

rn;
 an

d
•

Co
nsi

de
rat

ion
 of

 law
s a

nd
 re

gu
lat

ion
s

We
 ha

ve 
no

thi
ng

 to
 re

po
rt i

n r
esp

ect
 of

 th
ese

 ar
ea

s.

Ot
he

r m
att

ers

Page 27



As
ses

sm
en

t o
f C

on
tro

l
En

vir
on

me
nt

06

Page 28



As
ses

sm
en

t o
f C

on
tro

l E
nv

iro
nm

en
t

As
ses

sm
en

t o
f c

on
tro

l en
vir

on
me

nt

It i
s t

he
 re

spo
nsi

bili
ty 

of 
the

 Fu
nd

 to
 de

vel
op

 an
d im

ple
me

nt 
sys

tem
s o

f in
ter

na
l fi

na
nci

al c
on

tro
l an

d t
o p

ut 
in 

pla
ce 

pro
pe

r a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 

to 
mo

nit
or 

the
ir

ad
eq

ua
cy 

an
d e

ffe
cti

ven
ess

 in 
pra

cti
ce.

 Ou
r re

spo
nsi

bili
ty 

as 
yo

ur 
au

dit
or 

is t
o c

on
sid

er 
wh

eth
er 

the
 Fu

nd
 ha

s p
ut 

ad
eq

ua
te 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
 in

 pla
ce 

to 
sat

isf
y

its
elf

 th
at 

the
 sy

ste
ms

 of
 in

ter
na

l fi
na

nci
al c

on
tro

l ar
e b

oth
 ad

eq
ua

te 
an

d e
ffe

cti
ve 

in 
pra

cti
ce.

As
 pa

rt o
f o

ur 
au

dit
 of

 th
e f

ina
nci

al s
tat

em
en

ts,
 we

 ob
tai

ne
d a

n u
nd

ers
tan

din
g o

f in
ter

na
l co

ntr
ol 

suf
fic

ien
t to

 pl
an

 ou
r a

ud
it a

nd
 de

ter
mi

ne
 th

e n
atu

re,
 tim

ing
an

d e
xte

nt 
of 

tes
tin

g p
erf

orm
ed

. A
s w

e h
ave

 ad
op

ted
 a f

ull
y s

ub
sta

nti
ve 

ap
pro

ach
, w

e h
ave

 th
ere

for
e n

ot 
tes

ted
 th

e o
pe

rat
ion

 of
 co

ntr
ols

.
Alt

ho
ug

h o
ur 

au
dit

 wa
s n

ot 
de

sig
ne

d t
o e

xpr
ess

 an
 op

ini
on

 on
 th

e e
ffe

cti
ven

ess
 of

 int
ern

al c
on

tro
l w

e a
re 

req
uir

ed
 to

 co
mm

un
ica

te 
to 

yo
u s

ign
ific

an
t

de
fic

ien
cie

s in
 in

ter
na

l co
ntr

ol.
We

 ha
ve 

no
t id

en
tifi

ed
 an

y s
ign

ific
an

t d
efi

cie
nci

es 
in t

he
 de

sig
n o

r o
pe

rat
ion

 of
 an

 in
ter

na
l co

ntr
ol t

ha
t m

igh
t re

sul
t in

 a m
ate

ria
l m

iss
tat

em
en

t in
 yo

ur
fin

an
cia

l st
ate

me
nts

 of
 wh

ich
 yo

u a
re 

no
t a

wa
re.

We
 did

 ho
we

ver
 no

te 
tha

t a
s p

art
 of

 ou
r re

vie
w o

f th
e b

an
k r

eco
nci

liat
ion

s t
ha

t w
e w

ere
 un

ab
le t

o c
om

me
nt 

up
on

 th
e t

im
elin

ess
 of

 th
e r

eco
nci

liat
ion

s a
s t

he
y

we
re 

no
t d

ate
d. 

Th
ere

 wa
s n

o c
lea

r e
vid

en
ce 

tha
t th

ey
 ha

d b
ee

n r
evi

ew
ed

.
We

 wo
uld

 re
com

me
nd

 th
at 

all 
rec

on
cili

ati
on

s a
re 

sig
ne

d o
ff a

s d
ate

d a
nd

 re
vie

we
d a

s e
vid

en
ce 

of 
tim

ely
 re

vie
w.

Fin
an

cia
l c

on
tro

ls

Page 29



Ap
pe

nd
ice

s
07

Page 30



Ap
pe

nd
ix A

25

Re
qu

ire
d c

om
mu

nic
ati

on
s w

ith
 th

e A
ud

it C
om

mi
tte

e
Th

ere
 ar

e c
ert

ain
 co

mm
un

ica
tio

ns 
tha

t w
e m

ust
 pr

ovi
de

 to
 th

e A
ud

it C
om

mi
tte

e o
f U

K c
lien

ts.
 We

 ha
ve 

do
ne

 th
is b

y:

Ou
r R

ep
ort

ing
 to

 yo
u

Re
qu

ire
d c

om
mu

nic
ati

on
s

Wh
at 

is r
ep

ort
ed

?
Wh

en
 an

d w
he

re
Te

rm
s o

f e
ng

ag
em

en
t

Co
nfi

rm
ati

on
 by

 th
eA

ud
it C

om
mi

tte
e o

f a
cce

pta
nce

 of
 te

rm
s o

f e
ng

ag
em

en
t a

s w
ritt

en
 in 

the
en

ga
ge

me
nt 

let
ter

 sig
ne

d b
y b

oth
 pa

rtie
s.

Th
e s

tat
em

en
t o

f re
spo

nsi
bili

tie
s s

erv
es 

as
the

 fo
rm

al t
erm

s o
f e

ng
ag

em
en

t b
etw

ee
n

the
 PS

AA
’s a

pp
oin

ted
 au

dit
ors

 an
d a

ud
ite

d
bo

die
s.

Pla
nn

ing
 an

d a
ud

it a
pp

roa
ch

Co
mm

un
ica

tio
n o

f th
e p

lan
ne

d s
co

pe 
an

d t
im

ing
 of

 th
e a

ud
it, 

inc
lud

ing
 an

y li
mi

tat
ion

s.
Au

dit
Pla

n p
res

en
ted

 to
 th

e A
ud

it
Co

mm
itte

e o
n 1

6M
arc

h 2
01

7.
Sig

nif
ica

nt 
fin

din
gs 

fro
m 

the
au

dit
•

Ou
r v

iew
 of

 th
e s

ign
ific

an
t q

ua
lita

tiv
e a

spe
cts

 of
 ac

cou
nti

ng
 pr

act
ice

s in
clu

din
g a

cco
un

tin
g

po
lici

es,
 ac

cou
nti

ng
 es

tim
ate

s a
nd

 fin
an

cia
l st

ate
me

nt 
dis

clo
sur

es
•

An
y s

ign
ific

an
t d

iffi
cul

tie
s e

nco
un

ter
ed

 du
rin

g t
he

 au
dit

•
An

y s
ign

ific
an

t m
att

ers
 ar

isin
g f

rom
 th

e a
ud

it t
ha

t w
ere

 dis
cus

sed
 wi

th 
ma

na
ge

me
nt

•
Wr

itte
n r

ep
res

en
tat

ion
s w

e h
ave

 re
qu

est
ed

•
Ex

pe
cte

d m
od

ific
ati

on
s t

o t
he

 au
dit

 re
po

rt
•

An
y o

the
r m

att
ers

  si
gn

ific
an

t to
 ov

ers
ee

ing
 th

e f
ina

nci
al r

ep
ort

ing
 pr

oce
ss

Au
dit

 Re
sul

ts
Re

po
rt p

res
en

ted
 to

 th
e

Pe
nsi

on
 Fu

nd
 Co

mm
itte

e o
n 2

5 S
ept

em
be

r
20

17
 an

d A
ud

it C
om

mi
tte

e o
n 2

7
Se

pte
mb

er.

Go
ing

 co
nce

rn
Ev

en
ts 

or 
con

dit
ion

s id
en

tifi
ed

 th
at 

ma
y c

ast
 sig

nif
ica

nt 
do

ub
t o

n t
he

 en
tity

’s a
bili

ty 
to

co
nti

nu
e a

s a
 go

ing
 co

nce
rn,

 inc
lud

ing
:

Wh
eth

er 
the

 ev
en

ts 
or 

con
dit

ion
s c

on
stit

ute
 a m

ate
ria

l u
nce

rta
int

y
Wh

eth
er 

the
 us

e o
f th

e g
oin

g c
on

cer
n a

ssu
mp

tio
n is

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 in
 th

e p
rep

ara
tio

n a
nd

pre
sen

tat
ion

 of
 th

e f
ina

nci
al s

tat
em

en
ts

Th
e a

de
qu

acy
 of

 re
lat

ed
 dis

clo
sur

es 
in t

he
 fin

an
cia

l st
ate

me
nts

No
 co

nd
itio

ns 
or 

eve
nts

 we
re 

ide
nti

fie
d,

eit
he

r in
div

idu
ally

 or
 to

get
he

r to
 ra

ise
 an

y
do

ub
t a

bo
ut 

Lo
nd

on
 Bo

rou
gh

 of
 Hi

llin
gd

on
’s

ab
ilit

y t
o c

on
tin

ue
 fo

r th
e 1

2 m
on

ths
 fro

m
the

 da
te 

of 
ou

r r
ep

ort
.

Mis
sta

tem
en

ts
Un

cor
rec

ted
 m

iss
tat

em
en

ts 
an

d t
he

ir e
ffe

ct 
on

 ou
r a

ud
it o

pin
ion

Th
e e

ffe
ct 

of 
un

co
rre

cte
d m

iss
tat

em
en

ts 
rel

ate
d t

o p
rio

r p
eri

od
s

A r
eq

ue
st 

tha
t a

ny
 un

cor
rec

ted
 m

iss
tat

em
en

t b
e c

orr
ect

ed
Sig

nif
ica

nt 
cor

rec
ted

 m
iss

tat
em

en
ts,

 in 
wr

itin
g

Au
dit

 Re
sul

ts 
Re

po
rt p

res
en

ted
 to

 th
e

Pe
nsi

on
 Fu

nd
 Co

mm
itte

e o
n 2

5 S
ept

em
be

r
20

17
 an

d A
ud

it C
om

mi
tte

e o
n 2

7
Se

pte
mb

er.

Page 31



Ap
pe

nd
ix A

26

Ou
r R

ep
ort

ing
 to

 yo
u

Re
qu

ire
d c

om
mu

nic
ati

on
s

Wh
at 

is r
ep

ort
ed

?
Wh

en
 an

d w
he

re
Fra

ud
As

kin
g t

he
 Au

dit
 Co

mm
itte

e w
he

the
r th

ey
 ha

ve
 kn

ow
led

ge
 of

 an
y a

ctu
al,

 su
spe

cte
d o

r
alle

ge
d f

rau
d a

ffe
cti

ng
 th

e F
un

d
Un

les
s a

ll t
ho

se 
cha

rge
d w

ith
 go

ver
na

nce
 ar

e in
vol

ved
 in

 m
an

ag
ing

 th
e e

nti
ty,

 an
y f

rau
d

ide
nti

fie
d o

r in
for

ma
tio

n o
bta

ine
d in

dic
ati

ng
 th

at 
a f

rau
d m

ay
 ex

ist
 in

vo
lvin

g:
(a)

 m
an

ag
em

en
t;

(b)
 em

plo
yee

s w
ith

 sig
nif

ica
nt 

rol
es 

in 
int

ern
al c

on
tro

l; o
r

(c)
 ot

he
rs 

wh
ere

 th
e f

rau
d r

esu
lts

 in
 a m

ate
ria

l m
iss

tat
em

en
t in

 th
e f

ina
nci

al s
tat

em
en

ts.
A d

isc
uss

ion
 of

 an
y o

the
r m

att
ers

 re
lat

ed
 to

 fra
ud

, re
lev

an
t to

 Au
dit

 Co
mm

itte
e

res
po

nsi
bili

ty.

We
 ha

ve 
ask

ed
 ma

na
gem

en
t a

nd
 th

ose
ch

arg
ed

 wi
th 

go
ver

na
nce

 ab
ou

t
arr

an
gem

en
ts 

to 
pre

ven
t o

r d
ete

ct 
fra

ud
.

We
 ha

ve 
no

t b
eco

me
 aw

are
 of

 an
y f

rau
d o

r
ille

ga
l ac

ts 
du

rin
g o

ur 
au

dit

Re
lat

ed
 pa

rtie
s

Sig
nif

ica
nt 

ma
tte

rs 
ari

sin
g d

uri
ng

 th
e a

ud
it i

n c
on

ne
cti

on
 wi

th 
the

 Fu
nd

’s r
ela

ted
 pa

rtie
s

inc
lud

ing
, w

he
re 

ap
plic

ab
le:

No
n-d

isc
los

ure
 by

 ma
na

gem
en

t
Ina

pp
rop

ria
te 

au
tho

ris
ati

on
 an

d a
pp

rov
al o

f tr
an

sac
tio

ns
Dis

ag
ree

me
nt 

ov
er 

dis
clo

sur
es

No
n-c

om
plia

nce
 wi

th 
law

s a
nd

/or
 re

gu
lat

ion
s

Dif
ficu

lty
 in 

ide
nti

fyi
ng

 th
e p

art
y t

ha
t u

ltim
ate

ly c
on

tro
ls t

he
 en

tity

We
 ha

ve 
no

 m
att

ers
 to

 re
po

rt.

Su
bse

qu
en

t e
ven

ts
Wh

ere
 ap

pro
pri

ate
, a

ski
ng

 th
e A

ud
it C

om
mi

tte
e w

he
the

r a
ny

 su
bse

qu
en

t e
ven

ts 
ha

ve
oc

cur
red

 th
at 

mi
gh

t a
ffe

ct 
the

 fin
an

cia
l st

ate
me

nts
.

We
 ha

ve 
ask

ed
 ma

na
gem

en
t a

nd
 th

ose
cha

rge
d w

ith
 go

ver
na

nce
. W

e h
ave

 no
ma

tte
rs 

to 
rep

ort
.

Ot
he

r in
for

ma
tio

n
Wh

ere
 m

ate
ria

l in
con

sis
ten

cie
s a

re 
ide

nti
fie

d i
n o

the
r in

for
ma

tio
n in

clu
de

d in
 th

e
do

cum
en

t c
on

tai
nin

g t
he

 fin
an

cia
l st

ate
me

nts
, b

ut 
ma

na
gem

en
t re

fus
es 

to 
ma

ke 
the

rev
isio

n.
We

 ha
ve 

no
 m

att
ers

 to
 re

po
rt.

Ex
ter

na
l co

nfi
rm

ati
on

s
Ma

na
ge

me
nt’

s r
efu

sal
 fo

r u
s t

o r
eq

ue
st 

con
firm

ati
on

s
We

 we
re 

un
ab

le t
o o

bta
in 

rel
eva

nt 
an

d r
elia

ble
 au

dit
 ev

ide
nce

 fro
m 

oth
er 

pro
ced

ure
s.

We
 ha

ve 
rec

eiv
ed

 all
 re

qu
est

ed
co

nfi
rm

ati
on

s.
Co

nsi
de

rat
ion

 of
 law

s
an

d/o
r  r

eg
ula

tio
ns

Au
dit

 fin
din

gs 
of 

no
n-c

om
plia

nc
e w

he
re 

it i
s m

ate
ria

l an
d b

elie
ved

 to
 be

 in
ten

tio
na

l. T
his

co
mm

un
ica

tio
n is

 su
bje

ct 
to 

com
plia

nce
 wi

th 
leg

isla
tio

n o
n “

tip
pin

g o
ff”

As
kin

g t
he

 Au
dit

 Co
mm

itte
e a

bo
ut 

po
ssi

ble
 ins

tan
ces

 of
 no

n-c
om

plia
nce

 wi
th 

law
s a

nd
/or

reg
ula

tio
ns 

tha
t m

ay
 ha

ve
 a m

ate
ria

l ef
fec

t o
n t

he
 fin

an
cia

l st
ate

me
nts

, a
nd

 kn
ow

n t
o t

he
Au

dit
 Co

mm
itte

e.

We
 ha

ve 
ask

ed
 ma

na
gem

en
t a

nd
 th

ose
cha

rge
d w

ith
 go

ver
na

nce
. W

e h
ave

 no
t

ide
nti

fie
d a

ny
 m

ate
ria

l in
sta

nce
s o

r n
on

-
com

plia
nce

 wi
th 

law
s a

nd
 re

gu
lat

ion
s.

Page 32



Ap
pe

nd
ix A

27

Ou
r R

ep
ort

ing
 to

 yo
u

Re
qu

ire
d c

om
mu

nic
ati

on
s

Wh
at 

is r
ep

ort
ed

?
Wh

en
 an

d w
he

re
Sig

nif
ica

nt 
de

fici
en

cie
s in

int
ern

al c
on

tro
ls i

de
nti

fie
d

du
rin

g t
he

 au
dit

Sig
nif

ica
nt 

de
fici

en
cie

s in
 in

ter
na

l co
ntr

ols
 ide

nti
fie

d d
uri

ng
 th

e a
ud

it.
Au

dit
 Pl

an
 pr

ese
nte

d t
o t

he
 Au

dit
Co

mm
itte

e o
n 1

6 M
arc

h 2
01

7. 
Au

dit
 Re

sul
ts

Re
po

rt p
res

en
ted

 to
 th

e P
en

sio
ns

Co
mm

itte
e o

n 2
5 S

ep
tem

be
r a

nd
 Au

dit
Co

mm
itte

e o
n 2

7 S
ep

tem
be

r.
Ind

ep
en

de
nce

Co
mm

un
ica

tio
n o

f a
ll s

ign
ific

an
t fa

cts
 an

d m
att

ers
 th

at 
ha

ve
 a b

ear
ing

 on
 EY

’s o
bje

cti
vit

y a
nd

ind
ep

en
de

nce
.

Co
mm

un
ica

tin
g k

ey
 ele

me
nts

 of
 th

e a
ud

it e
ng

ag
em

en
t p

art
ne

r’s
 co

nsi
de

rat
ion

 of
ind

ep
en

de
nce

 an
d o

bje
cti

vit
y s

uch
 as

:
Th

e p
rin

cip
al t

hre
ats

Sa
feg

ua
rds

 ad
op

ted
 an

d t
he

ir e
ffe

cti
ven

ess
An

 ov
era

ll a
sse

ssm
en

t o
f th

rea
ts 

an
d s

afe
gu

ard
s

Inf
orm

ati
on

 on
 th

e f
irm

’s g
en

era
l p

olic
ies

 an
d p

roc
ess

es 
for

 m
ain

tai
nin

g o
bje

cti
vit

y a
nd

ind
ep

en
de

nce
Co

mm
un

ica
tio

ns 
wh

en
ev

er 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
jud

gm
en

ts 
are

 m
ad

e a
bo

ut 
thr

ea
ts 

to 
ob

jec
tiv

ity
 or

ind
ep

en
de

nce
 an

d t
he

 ap
pro

pri
ate

ne
ss 

of 
saf

eg
ua

rds
,

Au
dit

 Pl
an

 pr
ese

nte
d t

o t
he

 Au
dit

Co
mm

itte
e o

n 1
6 M

arc
h 2

01
7. 

Au
dit

 Re
sul

ts
Re

po
rt p

res
en

ted
 to

 th
e P

en
sio

ns
Co

mm
itte

e o
n 2

5 S
ep

tem
be

r a
nd

 Au
dit

Co
mm

itte
e o

n 2
7 S

ep
tem

be
r.

Fe
e R

ep
ort

ing
Bre

akd
ow

n o
f fe

e in
for

ma
tio

n w
he

n t
he

  au
dit

 pla
n i

s a
gre

ed
Bre

akd
ow

n o
f fe

e in
for

ma
tio

n a
t th

e c
om

ple
tio

n o
f th

e a
ud

it
An

y n
on

-au
dit

 wo
rk

Au
dit

 Pl
an

 pr
ese

nte
d t

o t
he

 Au
dit

Co
mm

itte
e o

n 1
6 M

arc
h 2

01
7. 

Au
dit

 Re
sul

ts
Re

po
rt p

res
en

ted
 to

 th
e P

en
sio

ns
Co

mm
itte

e o
n 2

5 S
ep

tem
be

r a
nd

 Au
dit

Co
mm

itte
e o

n 2
7 S

ep
tem

be
r.

Page 33



Ap
pe

nd
ix B

28

Ind
ep

en
de

nce

We
 co

nfi
rm

 th
at 

the
re 

are
 no

 ch
an

ge
s in

 ou
r a

sse
ssm

en
t o

f in
dep

en
den

ce 
sin

ce
ou

r c
on

firm
ati

on
 in 

ou
r a

ud
it p

lan
nin

g b
oa

rd 
rep

ort
 da

ted
 16

 Ma
rch

 20
17

.
We

 co
mp

lied
 wi

th 
the

 AP
B E

thi
cal

 St
an

da
rds

 an
d t

he
 re

qu
ire

me
nts

 of
 th

e P
SA

A’s
Ter

ms
 of

 Ap
po

int
me

nt.
 In

 ou
r p

rof
ess

ion
al j

ud
gem

en
t th

e f
irm

 is 
ind

ep
en

den
t a

nd
the

 ob
jec

tiv
ity

 of
 th

e a
ud

it e
ng

ag
em

en
t p

art
ne

r a
nd

 au
dit

 sta
ff h

as 
no

t b
ee

n
com

pro
mi

sed
 wi

thi
n t

he
 m

ean
ing

 of
 re

gu
lat

ory
 an

d p
rof

ess
ion

al r
eq

uir
em

en
ts.

We
 co

nsi
de

r th
at 

ou
r in

de
pen

de
nce

 in
 th

is c
on

tex
t is

 a m
att

er 
wh

ich
 yo

u s
ho

uld
rev

iew
, a

s w
ell 

as 
us.

 It 
is i

mp
ort

an
t th

at 
you

con
sid

er 
the

 fa
cts

 kn
ow

n t
o y

ou
 an

d
com

e t
o a

 vie
w. 

If y
ou

 wo
uld

 lik
e t

o d
isc

uss
 an

y m
att

ers
 co

nce
rni

ng
 ou

r
ind

ep
en

de
nce

, w
e w

ill b
e p

lea
sed

 to
 do

 th
is a

t th
e m

eet
ing

 of
 th

e P
en

sio
ns

Co
mm

itte
e o

n 2
5 S

ep
tem

be
r 2

01
7 o

r a
t th

e A
ud

it C
om

mi
tte

e o
n 2

7 S
ep

tem
be

r
20

17
.

As
 pa

rt o
f o

ur 
rep

ort
ing

 on
 ou

r in
de

pe
nd

en
ce,

 we
 se

t o
ut 

be
low

 a s
um

ma
ry 

of
the

 fe
es 

pai
d f

or 
the

 ye
ar 

en
de

d 3
1st

 Ma
rch

 20
17

.
We

 co
nfi

rm
 th

at 
we

 ha
ve 

no
t u

nd
ert

ake
n n

on
-au

dit
 wo

rk 
ou

tsid
e t

he
 PS

AA
Co

de
 re

qu
ire

me
nts

. W
e h

ave
 ad

op
ted

 th
e n

ece
ssa

ry 
saf

eg
ua

rds
 in

 co
mp

let
ing

thi
s w

ork
 an

d c
om

plie
d w

ith
 Au

dit
or 

Gu
ida

nce
 No

te 
1 i

ssu
ed

 by
 th

e N
AO

 in
De

cem
be

r 2
01

6.
De

scr
ipt

ion
Fin

al 
Fe

e
20

16
/17 £

Pla
nn

ed
 Fe

e
20

16
/17 £

Fin
al 

Fe
e

20
15

/16 £
To

tal
 Au

dit
Fe

e –
 Co

de
wo

rk
TB

C*
21

,00
0

21
,00

0

•
Ad

dit
ion

al f
ee

 in
 re

spe
ct 

of 
Sig

nif
ica

nt 
Ris

ks 
ide

nti
fie

d in
 Au

dit
 Pl

an
.

Pro
po

sed
 ad

dit
ion

al 
fee

 no
t y

et 
de

ter
mi

ne
d. 

In 
lin

e w
ith

 th
e

req
uir

em
en

ts 
of 

the
 Pu

blic
 Se

cto
r A

ud
it A

pp
oin

tm
en

ts 
Ltd

 (P
SA

A) 
an

y
ad

dit
ion

al f
ee 

wil
l n

eed
 to

 be
 ap

pro
ve

d b
y t

he
 PS

AA
 be

for
e b

ein
g

inv
oic

ed
. W

e w
ill d

isc
uss

 th
e a

dd
itio

na
l fe

e w
ith

 ke
y o

ffic
ers

 be
for

e
sub

mi
ttin

g t
his

 to
 th

e P
SA

A.

Page 34



Ap
pe

nd
ix C

29

Ou
tst

an
din

g m
att

ers
Th

e f
ollo

win
g it

em
s a

re 
ou

tst
an

din
g a

t th
e d

ate
 of

 th
is r

ep
ort

:
Ite

m
Ac

tio
ns 

to 
res

olv
e

Re
spo

nsi
bil

ity
Re

cei
pt 

an
dc

he
cki

ng
 of

 fin
al v

ers
ion

 of
 th

e f
ina

nci
al

sta
tem

en
ts 

inc
orp

ora
tin

g a
gre

ed
 au

dit
 ad

jus
tm

en
ts

Re
cei

pt 
an

d c
he

cki
ng

 of
 fin

al v
ers

ion
 of

 th
e f

ina
nci

al
sta

tem
en

ts 
inc

orp
ora

tin
g a

gre
ed

 au
dit

 ad
jus

tm
en

ts
EY

 an
d m

an
age

me
nt

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
rep

res
en

tat
ion

 let
ter

Re
cei

pt 
of 

sig
ne

d m
an

ag
em

en
t re

pre
sen

tat
ion

 let
ter

Ma
na

ge
me

nt
Su

bse
qu

en
t e

ven
ts 

rev
iew

Co
mp

let
ion

 of
 su

bse
qu

en
t e

ven
ts 

pro
ced

ure
s t

o t
he

da
te 

of 
sig

nin
g t

he
 au

dit
 re

po
rt

EY
 an

d m
an

age
me

nt

Cle
ara

nce
 of

 an
y o

uts
tan

din
g r

evi
ew

 co
mm

en
ts

Te
am

 to
 wo

rk 
thr

ou
gh

rem
ain

ing
 op

en
 re

vie
w

co
mm

en
ts 

an
d c

los
e d

ow
n

EY
 an

d m
an

age
me

nt

Page 35



Ap
pe

nd
ix D

30

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
rep

res
en

tat
ion

 let
ter

Lo
nd

on
 Bo

rou
gh

 of
 Hi

llin
gd

on
 M

an
ag

em
en

t R
ep

 Le
tte

r 2
01

6-1
7

2
5

 S
e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

7

T
im

 S
a
d
le

r
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 D
ir
e

c
to

r
E

rn
st

 &
 Y

o
u
n
g
 L

L
P

1
9

 T
h

re
e
fi
e

ld
 L

a
n
e

S
o

u
th

a
m

p
to

n
S

O
1
4

 3
Q

B

D
e

a
r 

S
ir
s

T
h

is
 l
e

tt
e

r 
o
f 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
n

 c
o
n

n
e
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
r 

a
u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
H

ill
in

g
d

o
n

 P
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 (

“t
h

e
 F

u
n

d
”)

 f
o

r 
th

e
 y

e
a

r
e

n
d

e
d

 3
1

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

7
. 
W

e
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

e
 t
h

a
t 
o
b

ta
in

in
g

 r
e
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

s
 f

ro
m

 u
s
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
in

g
 t
h

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

is
 le

tt
e

r 
is

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
p

ro
ce

d
u

re
 i
n

e
n
a

b
lin

g
 y

o
u

 t
o

 f
o

rm
 a

n
 o

p
in

io
n

 a
s
 t

o
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 g

iv
e

 a
 t
ru

e
 a

n
d

 f
a

ir
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
tr

a
n

s
a

c
ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
th

e
 F

u
n

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r

e
n
d

e
d

 3
1

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

7
 a

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 a
m

o
u
n

t 
a

n
d

 d
is

p
o

s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 F

u
n
d

’s
 a

s
s
e
ts

 a
n
d

 l
ia

b
ili

ti
e
s
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
7

, 
in

 a
c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e

 w
ith

 t
h
e

C
IP

F
A

/L
A

S
A

A
C

C
o

d
e

 o
f 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
c
c
o
u

n
ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 U

n
it
e

d
 K

in
g

d
o

m
 2

0
1
6

/1
7

.

W
e

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

 o
f 

y
o
u

r 
a
u

d
it
 o

f 
o
u

r 
fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 i
s
 t
o

 e
x
p

re
ss

 a
n

 o
p

in
io

n
 t

h
e

re
o
n

 a
n
d

 t
h

a
t 

y
o
u

r 
a
u

d
it
 w

a
s
 c

o
n

d
u

c
te

d
 i
n

a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
ith

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 o

n
 A

u
d

it
in

g
 (

U
K

 a
n

d
 I
re

la
n

d
),

 w
h

ic
h

 i
n

vo
lv

e
s
 a

n
 e

xa
m

in
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n
g

 s
y
s
te

m
, 

in
te

rn
a

l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
a

n
d

re
la

te
d

 d
a

ta
 t
o

 t
h
e

 e
x
te

n
t 

y
o

u
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a
ry

 i
n

 t
h
e

 c
ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
, 

a
n

d
 i
s
 n

o
t 
d
e

s
ig

n
e

d
 t
o

 i
d
e
n

ti
fy

 -
 n

o
r 

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ri
ly

 b
e

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 d
is

c
lo

s
e

 -
 a

ll
fr

a
u
d

, 
s
h

o
rt

a
g
e

s
, 
e

rr
o

rs
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

ir
re

g
u

la
ri
ti
e

s
, 
s
h
o

u
ld

 a
n

y
 e

x
is

t.

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Re

p L
ett

er

Page 36



Ap
pe

nd
ix D

31

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
rep

res
en

tat
ion

 let
ter

Lo
nd

on
 Bo

rou
gh

 of
 Hi

llin
gd

on
 M

an
ag

em
en

t R
ep

 Le
tte

r 2
01

6-1
7

A
c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

, 
w

e
 m

a
k
e

 t
h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 r
e
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
, 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 t
ru

e
 t
o

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 
o
f 

o
u

r 
k
n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 a

n
d

 b
e

lie
f,

 h
a

v
in

g
 m

a
d
e

 s
u

c
h

 i
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
 a

s
 w

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

 o
f 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 i
n
fo

rm
in

g
 o

u
rs

e
lv

e
s
:

A
. 
F

in
a
n
ci

a
l S

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 F

in
a
n
ci

a
l R

e
co

rd
s

1
.

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 f
u

lf
ill

e
d

 o
u

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
, 
u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 r
e

le
v
a
n

t 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s,
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

re
p
a

ra
tio

n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

A
c
c
o
u

n
ts

 a
n

d
 A

u
d

it
 R

e
g
u

la
tio

n
s
 2

0
1
5

 a
n
d

 C
IP

F
A

 L
A

S
A

A
C

 C
o

d
e

 o
f 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n
g

 i
n

 t
h
e

 U
n

it
e
d

 K
in

g
d

o
m

 2
0
1

6
/1

7
.

2
.

W
e

 c
o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 F

u
n
d

 i
s
 a

 R
e
g

is
te

re
d

 P
e
n

s
io

n
 S

c
h
e

m
e

. 
W

e
 a

re
 n

o
t 

a
w

a
re

 o
f 

a
n

y
 r

e
a
s
o
n

 w
h

y
 t
h
e

 t
a

x
 s

ta
tu

s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h
e

m
e

 s
h

o
u

ld
 c

h
a

n
g

e
.

3
.

W
e

 a
c
k
n

o
w

le
d
g

e
, 

a
s
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 
th

e
 F

u
n

d
, 

o
u

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 f

a
ir
 p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

 W
e

 b
e

lie
v
e

 t
h

e
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d

 t
o

 a
b
o

v
e

 g
iv

e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d

 f
a

ir
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p
o

s
it
io

n
 a

n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 F
u
n

d
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e

 w
ith

 t
h

e
C

IP
F

A
 L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n
g

 i
n

 t
h
e

 U
n

it
e
d

 K
in

g
d

o
m

 2
0
1

6
/1

7
, 

a
n
d

 a
re

 f
re

e
 o

f 
m

a
te

ri
a

l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
o

m
is

s
io

n
s
. 

 W
e

 h
a

v
e

 a
p

p
ro

ve
d

 t
h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
.

4
.

T
h

e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
t 

a
c
c
o
u

n
ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

d
o
p

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

re
p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 a

p
p

ro
p
ri

a
te

ly
 d

e
s
c
ri

b
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

.

5
.

A
s
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 F
u
n

d
, 
w

e
 b

e
lie

v
e

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 F

u
n

d
 h

a
s
 a

 s
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 a
d
e

q
u

a
te

 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 t
h

e
 p

re
p
a

ra
ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
c
c
u

ra
te

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n
g

 i
n

 t
h
e

 U
n

it
e
d

 K
in

g
d

o
m

 2
0
1

6
/1

7
 t
h

a
t 
a

re
fr

e
e

 f
ro

m
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t,

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

d
u

e
 t

o
 f
ra

u
d

 o
r 

e
rr

o
r.

6
.

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 u
n

a
d

ju
st

e
d

 a
u

d
it
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t
h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

a
u

d
it
 a

n
d

 p
e

rt
a

in
in

g
 t
o

 t
h
e

 l
a

te
s
t 
p

e
ri
o
d

 p
re

s
e
n

te
d

.

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Re

p L
ett

er

Page 37



Ap
pe

nd
ix D

32

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
rep

res
en

tat
ion

 let
ter

Lo
nd

on
 Bo

rou
gh

 of
 Hi

llin
gd

on
 M

an
ag

em
en

t R
ep

 Le
tte

r 2
01

6-1
7

B
. 
F

ra
u

d

1
.

W
e

 a
c
k
n

o
w

le
d
g

e
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 a

re
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
, 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

in
te

rn
a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 t
o

 p
re

v
e
n

t 
a

n
d

 d
e

te
c
t 
fr

a
u

d
.

2
.

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 d
is

c
lo

s
e

d
 t

o
 y

o
u

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 r
is

k
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 m

a
y
 b

e
 m

a
te

ri
a

lly
 m

is
s
ta

te
d

 a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
fr

a
u

d
.

3
. 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

 k
n
o

w
le

d
g
e

 o
f 

a
n

y
 f
ra

u
d

 o
r 

s
u

sp
e

c
te

d
 f

ra
u
d

 i
n

vo
lv

in
g

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
o

th
e

r 
e

m
p

lo
ye

e
s
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
ro

le
 in

 t
h

e
 F

u
n
d

’s
 i
n
te

rn
a

l
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 o
ve

r 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
. 

 I
n

 a
d
d

it
io

n
, 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

 k
n
o

w
le

d
g
e

 o
f 

a
n

y
 f
ra

u
d

 o
r 

s
u

sp
e

c
te

d
 f

ra
u
d

 i
n

v
o

lv
in

g
 o

th
e

r 
e

m
p

lo
ye

e
s
 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 t
h
e

 f
ra

u
d

c
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 a
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
e
ff

e
c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

 W
e

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

 k
n
o

w
le

d
g
e

 o
f 

a
n

y
 a

lle
g

a
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
im

p
ro

p
ri
e

ti
e

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 f

ra
u

d
 o

r
s
u

s
p
e

c
te

d
 f

ra
u
d

, 
(r

e
g

a
rd

le
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

o
u

rc
e

 o
r 

fo
rm

 a
n
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
lim

it
a

ti
o
n

, 
a

n
y
 a

lle
g

a
ti
o

n
s
 b

y
 “

w
h

is
tl
e
b

lo
w

e
rs

”)
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u

ld
 r

e
su

lt
 i
n

 a
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

r 
o

th
e

rw
is

e
 a

ff
e

c
t 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 F

u
n

d
.

C
. 

C
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 L
a
w

s
 a

n
d

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s

1
. 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 d
is

c
lo

s
e

d
 t
o

 y
o
u

 a
ll 

id
e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 o

r 
s
u
s
p
e

c
te

d
 n

o
n

-c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
ith

 l
a

w
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
g
u

la
ti
o
n

s
 w

h
o
s
e

 e
ff

e
c
ts

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 w

h
e

n
 p

re
p

a
ri

n
g

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
.

2
. 

  
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 n
o
t 

m
a
d

e
 a

n
y
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 t
o

 T
h
e

 P
e

n
s
io

n
s
 R

e
g
u

la
to

r,
 n

o
r 

a
re

 w
e

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

a
n

y
 s

u
ch

 r
e
p

o
rt

s
 h

a
v
in

g
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d
e

 b
y
 a

n
y
 o

f 
o

u
r 

a
d

v
is

o
rs

.

3
. 

T
h

e
re

 h
a

v
e

 b
e
e
n

 n
o

 o
th

e
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o
n

s
 w

ith
 T

h
e

 P
e
n

s
io

n
s
 R

e
g

u
la

to
r 

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

re
g

u
la

to
ry

 b
o
d

ie
s
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 F

u
n
d

 y
e

a
r 

o
r 

s
u

b
s
e

q
u

e
n

tl
y
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
in

g
m

a
tt
e

rs
 o

f 
n
o

n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
ith

 a
n

y
 le

g
a

l 
d
u

ty
. 

 W
e

 h
a

v
e

 d
ra

w
n

 t
o

 y
o

u
r 

a
tt
e

n
ti
o

n
 a

ll 
c
o

rr
e

s
p
o

n
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n
d

 n
o

te
s
 o

f 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 w

it
h

 r
e

g
u

la
to

rs
.

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Re

p L
ett

er

Page 38



Ap
pe

nd
ix D

33

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
rep

res
en

tat
ion

 let
ter

Lo
nd

on
 Bo

rou
gh

 of
 Hi

llin
gd

on
 M

an
ag

em
en

t R
ep

 Le
tte

r 2
01

6-1
7

D
.
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 P

ro
v
id

e
d

 a
n

d
C

o
m

p
le

te
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
a
n

d
 T

ra
n

s
a
c
ti
o

n
s

1
.

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 y
o

u
 w

it
h

:

•
A

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 a
ll 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 a

re
 a

w
a

re
 t
h
a

t 
is

 r
e

le
v
a
n

t 
to

 t
h
e

 p
re

p
a

ra
tio

n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 r

e
c
o

rd
s
, 
d

o
c
u

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

a
n
d

 o
th

e
r 

m
a

tt
e

rs
;

•
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 t
h
a

t 
y
o
u

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 f

ro
m

 u
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 a
u

d
it
; 
a
n

d

•
U

n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o

 p
e

rs
o
n

s
 w

ith
in

 t
h
e

 e
n

ti
ty

 f
ro

m
 w

h
o

m
 y

o
u

 d
e

te
rm

in
e
d

 i
t 
n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 t
o

 o
b

ta
in

 a
u

d
it
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

.

2
. 

  
 A

ll 
m

a
te

ri
a

l 
tr

a
n

s
a

c
tio

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

c
o

rd
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n
g

 r
e

c
o

rd
s
 a

n
d

 a
re

 r
e
fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
.

3
. 

  
 W

e
 h

a
v
e

 m
a

d
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t
o

 y
o

u
 a

ll 
m

in
u

te
s
 o

f 
th

e
 m

e
e

ti
n
g

s
 o

f 
th

e
 F

u
n

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e
s
 o

f 
d

ir
e

c
to

rs
 (

o
r 

s
u

m
m

a
ri
e

s
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
re

c
e
n

t 
m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
 f
o

r
w

h
ic

h
 m

in
u

te
s
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
y
e

t 
b
e

e
n

 p
re

p
a

re
d

) 
h

e
ld

 t
h

ro
u
g

h
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r 

to
 t
h
e

 m
o

s
t 

re
c
e

n
t 

m
e
e

ti
n
g

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 d
a

te
s
: 
1

4
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

7
 f
o

r 
th

e
 P

e
n
s
io

n
s

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 a

n
d

 2
9

 J
u
n

e
 2

0
1
7

 f
o

r 
th

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
.

4
. 

  
 W

e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 r
e
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
c
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

la
te

d
 p

a
rt

ie
s
. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 d
is

c
lo

s
e
d

 t
o

 y
o
u

 t
h
e

 i
d
e

n
ti
ty

 o
f 

th
e

F
u

n
d

’s
 r

e
la

te
d

 p
a

rt
ie

s
 a

n
d

 a
ll 

re
la

te
d

 p
a

rt
y
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 a

re
 a

w
a

re
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

a
le

s
, 
p
u

rc
h
a

s
e

s
, 

lo
a

n
s
, 

tr
a
n

s
fe

rs
 o

f
a

s
s
e

ts
, 

lia
b

ili
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

le
a

s
in

g
 a

rr
a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
, 
g

u
a

ra
n

te
e

s
, 
n
o

n
-m

o
n

e
ta

ry
 t

ra
n

s
a

c
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o
n

s
 f
o

r 
n
o

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri
o
d

e
n
d

e
d

, 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 r

e
la

te
d

 b
a

la
n

c
e

s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 o
r 

fr
o

m
 s

u
c
h

 p
a

rt
ie

s
 a

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
e
n

d
. 

 T
h

e
s
e

 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o
n

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
ly

 a
c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
a

n
d

d
is

c
lo

s
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
.

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Re

p L
ett

er

Page 39



Ap
pe

nd
ix D

34

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
rep

res
en

tat
ion

 let
ter

Lo
nd

on
 Bo

rou
gh

 of
 Hi

llin
gd

on
 M

an
ag

em
en

t R
ep

 Le
tte

r 2
01

6-1
7

5
. 

  
 W

e
 b

e
lie

v
e

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a

s
s
u

m
p

ti
o
n

s
 w

e
 u

s
e

d
 i
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 a

c
c
o
u

n
ti
n

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

o
s
e

 m
e
a

s
u

re
d

 a
t 
fa

ir
 v

a
lu

e
, 

a
re

 r
e
a

s
o
n

a
b

le
.

6
. 

  
 W

e
 h

a
v
e

 d
is

c
lo

s
e

d
 t

o
 y

o
u

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 F

u
n

d
 h

a
s
 c

o
m

p
lie

d
 w

it
h
, 

a
ll 

a
s
p
e

c
ts

 o
f 

c
o
n

tr
a

ct
u
a

l 
a
g

re
e

m
e
n

ts
 t
h

a
t 

c
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 a
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
e
ff

e
c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 t
h

e
 e

v
e
n

t 
o
f 

n
o

n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

ll 
c
o

ve
n
a

n
ts

, 
c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 o

r 
o
th

e
r 

re
q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
 o

f 
a

ll 
o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 d
e
b

t.

7
. 

  
 N

o
 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 m
a
d

e
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 n

o
t 

in
 t
h
e

 i
n

te
re

s
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 F
u
n

d
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

r 
th

e
 F

u
n
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t
h
e

 f
u
n

d
 y

e
a

r 
o

r 
s
u

b
s
e

q
u

e
n

tl
y
.

E
. 

L
ia

b
il
it

ie
s
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
ti

n
g

e
n

c
ie

s

1
.

A
ll 

lia
b

ili
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
ti
n

g
e

n
c
ie

s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

o
s
e

 a
ss

o
c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 g
u
a

ra
n

te
e

s
, 
w

h
e

th
e

r 
w

ri
tt

e
n

 o
r 

o
ra

l,
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 d
is

c
lo

se
d

 t
o

 y
o
u

 a
n

d
 a

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
ly

re
fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

.

2
.

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 i
n
fo

rm
e

d
 y

o
u

 o
f 

a
ll 

o
u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
o

ss
ib

le
 l
it
ig

a
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 c
la

im
s
, 
w

h
e
th

e
r 

o
r 

n
o
t 

th
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e
d

 w
it
h

 l
e
g

a
l 
c
o

u
n

s
e

l.

3
.

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

c
o

rd
e
d

 a
n

d
/o

r 
d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
, 

a
s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
, 
a

ll 
lia

b
ili

ti
e

s
 r

e
la

te
d

 l
it
ig

a
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 c

la
im

s
, 
b

o
th

 a
c
tu

a
l 
a

n
d

 c
o

n
ti
n
g

e
n

t.

4
.

N
o

 o
th

e
r 

c
la

im
s
 i
n

 c
o
n

n
e

c
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 l
it
ig

a
ti
o
n

 h
a

v
e

 b
e
e

n
 o

r 
a

re
 e

x
p
e

c
te

d
 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
.

F
. 

S
u

b
s
e
q

u
e
n

t 
E

v
e
n

ts

1
. 

  
 A

s
 d

e
s
c
ri
b

e
d

 i
n

 N
o

te
 2

4
 t
o

 t
h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 
th

e
re

 h
a

v
e

 b
e
e
n

 n
o

 e
v
e
n

ts
 s

u
b
s
e
q

u
e

n
t 

to
 p

e
ri
o
d

 e
n

d
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

 a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

t 
o
f 

o
r 

d
is

c
lo

s
u
re

 i
n

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

r 
n

o
te

s
 t
h
e

re
to

.

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Re

p L
ett

er

Page 40



Ap
pe

nd
ix D

35

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
rep

res
en

tat
ion

 let
ter

Lo
nd

on
 Bo

rou
gh

 of
 Hi

llin
gd

on
 M

an
ag

em
en

t R
ep

 Le
tte

r 2
01

6-1
7

G
.

O
th

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

1
.

W
e

 a
c
kn

o
w

le
d
g

e
 o

u
r 

re
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

re
p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 o

th
e

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
. 

T
h
e

 o
th

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e

s
 T

h
e

 L
o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
H

ill
in

g
d
o

n
P

e
n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p
o

rt
 2

0
1
6

/1
7

.

2
. 

 
W

e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 c

o
n

te
n
t 

c
o

n
ta

in
e

d
 w

ith
in

 t
h
e

 o
th

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

 i
s
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

.

H
. 

D
e

ri
v
a

ti
v
e

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
In

s
tr

u
m

e
n

ts

1
.

W
e

 c
o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
e

 F
u

n
d

’s
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

u
ly

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h
a

t 
s
u

c
h

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h

 a
n
y
 l
im

it
a

ti
o
n

s
im

p
o

s
e
d

 b
y
 i
ts

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

s
.

2
.

T
h

e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 d

is
c
lo

s
e

 a
ll 

tr
a
n

s
a

c
ti
o
n

s
 i
n

 d
e

ri
v
a

ti
ve

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
in

st
ru

m
e
n

ts
 t
h
a

t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 e

n
te

re
d

 i
n

to
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
e

ri
o
d

, 
th

o
s
e

 s
ti
ll 

h
e

ld
 b

y
th

e
 F

u
n

d
 a

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 t

e
rm

s
 a

n
d

 c
o
n

d
iti

o
n

s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g

 t
h

e
re

to
.

3
.

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

h
a

s
 d

u
ly

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

n
d

 d
e
e

m
e
d

 a
s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 t
h
e

 a
s
s
u

m
p

ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 m
e
th

o
d
o

lo
g

ie
s
 u

s
e
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 v
a

lu
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

‘o
v
e

r 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
te

r’
d

e
ri
v
a

ti
v
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
in

s
tr

u
m

e
n

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 t
h

e
 F

u
n
d

 i
s
 h

o
ld

in
g

, 
a
n

d
 t
h
e

s
e

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
d

 t
o

 y
o

u
.

I.
 A

c
tu

a
ri

a
l 

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n

1
. 

  
 T

h
e

 l
a
te

s
t 

re
p

o
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 a
c
tu

a
ry

 H
y
m

a
n

s
 R

o
b
e
rt

s
o

n
 a

s
 a

t 
3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
7

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

d
 2

8
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
7

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 y
o

u
. 

 T
o

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 

o
f 
o

u
r

k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 a
n
d

 b
e

lie
f 

w
e

 c
o

n
fi
rm

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 s

u
p
p

lie
d

 b
y
 u

s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 a
c
tu

a
ry

 w
a

s
 t

ru
e

 a
n
d

 t
h

a
t 
n

o
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 o

m
it
te

d
 w

h
ic

h
m

a
y
 h

a
v
e

 a
 b

e
a

ri
n

g
 o

n
 h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

.

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Re

p L
ett

er

Page 41



Ap
pe

nd
ix D

36

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
rep

res
en

tat
ion

 let
ter

Lo
nd

on
 Bo

rou
gh

 of
 Hi

llin
gd

on
 M

an
ag

em
en

t R
ep

 Le
tte

r 2
01

6-1
7

J
.

O
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

A
s
s
e
ts

1
.

T
h

e
 F

u
n
d

 h
a

s
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 t

it
le

 t
o

 a
ll 

a
s
s
e

ts
 a

p
p

e
a

ri
n

g
 i
n

 t
h
e

 N
e

t 
A

s
s
e
t 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t,
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

re
 a

re
 n

o
 l
ie

n
s
 o

r 
e
n

c
u

m
b

ra
n

c
e

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 F
u

n
d

’s
 a

s
s
e
ts

, 
n

o
r

h
a

s
 a

n
y
 a

s
s
e

t 
b
e

e
n

 p
le

d
g

e
d

 a
s
 c

o
lla

te
ra

l,
 o

th
e

r 
th

a
n

 t
h
o

s
e

 t
h
a

t 
a

re
 d

is
c
lo

se
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

A
ll 

a
s
s
e
ts

 t
o

 w
h

ic
h

 t
h
e

 F
u
n

d
 h

a
s

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 t
it
le

 a
p

p
e

a
r 

in
 t
h
e

 N
e

t 
A

s
s
e
t 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t.

2
.

A
ll 

a
g

re
e

m
e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 o
p
ti
o
n

s
 t
o

 b
u

y
 b

a
c
k
 a

s
s
e

ts
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 s
o

ld
 h

a
ve

 b
e

e
n

 p
ro

p
e

rl
y
 r

e
c
o

rd
e
d

 a
n
d

 a
d
e

q
u

a
te

ly
 d

is
c
lo

s
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
.

3
.

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 f
o

rm
a

l 
o

r 
in

fo
rm

a
l 
c
o

m
p

e
n

s
a

ti
n

g
 b

a
la

n
c
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 a
n

y
 o

f 
o
u

r 
c
a

s
h

 a
n
d

 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
.

K
. 

P
u

rc
h

a
s
e

 a
n

d
 S

a
le

s
 C

o
m

m
it

m
e

n
ts

1
. 

L
o

s
se

s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

 a
n

d
 s

a
le

s
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

ts
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
ro

p
e

rl
y
 r

e
c
o

rd
e
d

 a
n
d

 a
d

e
q

u
a

te
ly

 d
is

c
lo

s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

.

2
. 

A
t 

th
e

 y
e
a

r 
e
n

d
, 
th

e
 F

u
n
d

 h
a
d

 n
o

 u
n
u

s
u
a

l 
c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
 o

r 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
o

b
lig

a
ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
a

n
y
 s

o
rt

 w
h

ic
h

 w
e

re
 n

o
t 
in

 t
h

e
 o

rd
in

a
ry

 c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d

w
h

ic
h

 m
ig

h
t 

h
a

ve
 a

n
 a

d
v
e

rs
e

 e
ff

e
c
t 

u
p

o
n

 t
h
e

 F
u
n
d

 (
e

.g
.,

 c
o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 o
r 

p
u

rc
h

a
s
e

 a
g

re
e

m
e
n

ts
 a

b
o

v
e

 m
a

rk
e

t 
p

ri
c
e

; 
re

p
u

rc
h
a

s
e

 o
r 

o
th

e
r 

a
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

 n
o

t
in

 t
h
e

 o
rd

in
a

ry
 c

o
u

rs
e

 o
f 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
; 

m
a

te
ri
a

l 
c
o

m
m

itm
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

 o
f 

p
ro

p
e

rt
y
, 
p

la
n

t 
a

n
d

 e
q
u
ip

m
e

n
t;
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
fo

re
ig

n
 e

x
c
h

a
n

g
e

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
; 
o

p
e

n
 b

a
la

n
c
e

s
 o

n
 l
e

tt
e

rs
 o

f 
c
re

d
it
; 
p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

 c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
 f
o

r 
in

v
e
n

to
ry

 q
u

a
n

ti
ti
e
s
 i
n

 e
x
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
n

o
rm

a
l 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
r 

a
t 

p
ri
c
e

s
 i
n

e
x
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

re
va

ili
n

g
 m

a
rk

e
t 

p
ri
c
e

s
; 

lo
s
se

s
 f

ro
m

 f
u

lf
ilm

e
n
t 

o
f,

 o
r 

in
a

b
ili

ty
 t
o

 f
u

lf
il,

 s
a

le
s
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

ts
, 
e

tc
.)

.

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Re

p L
ett

er

Page 42



Ap
pe

nd
ix D

37

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
rep

res
en

tat
ion

 let
ter

Lo
nd

on
 Bo

rou
gh

 of
 Hi

llin
gd

on
 M

an
ag

em
en

t R
ep

 Le
tte

r 2
01

6-1
7

L
.

U
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 W

o
rk

 o
f

a
 S

p
e

c
ia

li
s
t

W
e

 a
g

re
e

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

p
e

c
ia

lis
ts

 t
h

a
t 
w

e
 u

s
e

d
 t

o
 e

v
a

lu
a

te
 t

h
e

 v
a

lu
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

la
s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
s
s
e

ts
 u

n
d
e

r 
fa

ir
 v

a
lu

e
le

v
e

lli
n

g
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 h
a

ve
 a

d
e

q
u

a
te

ly
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lif
ic

a
ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

p
e

c
ia

lis
ts

 in
 d

e
te

rm
in

in
g

 t
h
e

 a
m

o
u
n

ts
 a

n
d

 d
is

c
lo

su
re

s
 in

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 u
n
d

e
rl
y
in

g
 a

c
c
o
u
n

ti
n
g

 r
e

c
o

rd
s
. 
W

e
 d

id
 n

o
t 

g
iv

e
 o

r 
c
a
u

s
e

 a
n

y
 i
n

st
ru

c
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 b
e

 g
iv

e
n

 t
o

 t
h
e

 s
p

e
c
ia

lis
ts

 w
it
h

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t

to
 t
h

e
 v

a
lu

e
s
 o

r 
a

m
o

u
n

ts
 d

e
ri
v
e

d
 i
n

 a
n

 a
tt
e

m
p

t 
to

 b
ia

s
 t
h

e
ir

 w
o

rk
, 
a

n
d

 w
e

 a
re

 n
o

t 
o

th
e

rw
is

e
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
a

n
y
 m

a
tt
e

rs
 t
h

a
t 

h
a

ve
 h

a
d

 a
n

 e
ff
e
c
t 
o

n
 t

h
e

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
e

 o
r 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 s

p
e

c
ia

lis
ts

.

M
. 

E
s
ti

m
a

te
s

1
.

W
e

 b
e

lie
v
e

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e
s
s
e

s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
la

te
d

 a
s
s
u

m
p

ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 m
o
d

e
ls

, 
u
s
e
d

 t
o

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n
g

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
c
o

n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 a

p
p

lie
d

 a
n
d

 a
re

 a
p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

te
x
t 

o
f 

th
e

 C
IP

F
A

 L
A

S
A

A
C

 C
o

d
e

 o
f 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
 U

n
it
e
d

 K
in

g
d

o
m

2
0
1

6
/1

7
.

2
.

W
e

 c
o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a

s
s
u

m
p

tio
n

s
 u

s
e

d
 i
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
c
c
o
u

n
ti
n

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
ly

 r
e
fl
e

c
t 
o
u

r 
in

te
n
t 

a
n

d
 a

b
ili

ty
 t
o

 c
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

c
o

u
rs

e
s
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o
n

 o
n

 b
e
h

a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 e

n
ti
ty

.

3
.

W
e

 c
o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 d

is
c
lo

s
u

re
s
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 t
h
e

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 r
e

s
p
e

c
t 
to

 t
h
e

 a
c
c
o
u

n
ti
n

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d

 m
a

d
e

 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

th
e

 C
IP

F
A

 L
A

S
A

A
C

 C
o

d
e

 o
f 

P
ra

c
ti
ce

 o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n
g

 i
n

 t
h
e

 U
n

it
e
d

 K
in

g
d

o
m

 2
0
1

6
/1

7
.

4
.

W
e

 c
o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a

t 
n

o
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

 a
re

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
d

 t
o

 t
h
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 a

n
d

 d
is

c
lo

su
re

s
 in

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 d

u
e

 t
o

 s
u

b
s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
e

v
e
n

ts
.

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Re

p L
ett

er

Page 43



Ap
pe

nd
ix D

38

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
rep

res
en

tat
ion

 let
ter

Lo
nd

on
 Bo

rou
gh

 of
 Hi

llin
gd

on
 M

an
ag

em
en

t R
ep

 Le
tte

r 2
01

6-1
7

Y
o

u
rs

 f
a

it
h
fu

lly
,

_
_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

P
a
u
l 
W

h
a
y
m

a
n
d

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

_
_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

C
llr

 P
h
ili

p
 C

o
rt

h
o
rn

e

C
h
a
ir
m

a
n
 o

f 
P

e
n
s
io

n
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Re

p L
ett

er

Page 44



EY
|A

ssu
ran

ce 
| T

ax 
| T

ran
sac

tio
ns 

| A
dvi

sor
y

Ab
ou

t E
Y

EY
 is 

a g
lob

al l
ea

der
 in 

ass
ura

nce
, ta

x, t
ran

sac
tio

n a
nd

 ad
vis

ory
ser

vic
es.

 Th
e in

sig
hts

 an
d q

ua
lity

 se
rvi

ces
 we

 de
live

r h
elp

 bu
ild

tru
st a

nd
 co

nfi
den

ce 
in t

he
 ca

pit
al m

ark
ets

 an
d in

 ec
on

om
ies

 th
e

wo
rld

 ov
er.

 W
ed

eve
lop

 ou
tst

an
din

g le
ade

rs 
wh

o t
eam

 to
 de

live
r o

n
ou

r p
rom

ise
s to

 all
 of

 ou
r s

tak
eho

lde
rs.

 In 
so 

do
ing

, w
e p

lay
 a

cri
tica

l ro
le i

n b
uild

ing
 a b

ett
er 

wo
rki

ng
 wo

rld
 fo

r o
ur 

peo
ple

, fo
r

ou
r c

lien
ts a

nd
 fo

r o
ur 

com
mu

nit
ies

.
EY

 re
fer

s to
 th

e g
lob

al o
rga

niz
ati

on
, a

nd
 m

ay 
ref

er 
to 

on
e o

r m
ore

,
of 

the
 m

em
ber

 fir
ms

 of
 Er

nst
 & 

Yo
un

g G
lob

al L
imi

ted
, ea

ch 
of

wh
ich

 is 
a s

ep
ara

te 
leg

al e
nti

ty.
 Er

nst
 & 

Yo
un

g G
lob

al L
imi

ted
, a 

UK
com

pan
y li

mit
ed 

by 
gua

ran
tee

, do
es 

no
t p

rov
ide

 se
rvi

ces
 to

clie
nts

. Fo
r m

ore
 inf

orm
ati

on
 ab

ou
t o

ur 
org

an
iza

tio
n, 

ple
ase

 vis
it

ey.
com

.

© 2
01

7 E
YG

M L
imi

ted
.

All
 Ri

gh
ts R

ese
rve

d.
ED

 No
ne

Th
is m

ate
ria

l ha
s b

ee
n p

rep
are

d f
or 

ge
ne

ral
 inf

orm
ati

on
al p

urp
ose

s o
nly

 an
d is

 no
t

int
en

de
d t

o b
e r

elie
d u

po
n a

s a
cco

un
tin

g, 
tax

, o
r o

the
r p

rof
ess

ion
al a

dvi
ce.

 Ple
ase

 re
fer

to 
you

r a
dv

iso
rs 

for
 sp

eci
fic

 ad
vic

e.

ey.
com

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



London Borough of Hillingdon 
Pension Fund Annual Report
2016/17

D
R
A
FT

Page 47



CONTENTS

CHAIRMAN'S FOREWORD

FUND GOVERNANCE and STATUTORY INFORMATION

Fund Governance

Fund Management and Advisors

Overview of the Scheme

Fund Membership

PERFORMANCE REVIEWS and REPORT of the FUND ACTUARY

Investment Review

Report of the Fund Actuary

Scheme Administration Report

Risk Management

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Responsibilities

External Auditor Opinion

Pension Fund Accounts and Notes 2016/17 

POLICY STATEMENTS

Investment Strategy Statement 

Funding Strategy Statement

Communications Policy

Governance Policy 

Risk Management Policy

Administration Strategy

GLOSSARY

1

D
R
A
FT

PERFORMANCE REVIEWS and REPORT of the FUND ACTUARYPERFORMANCE REVIEWS and REPORT of the FUND ACTUARY

Statement of Responsibilities

External Auditor OpinionExternal Auditor Opinion

ension Fund Accounts and Notes 201ension Fund Accounts and Notes 201

POLICY STATEMENTS

Investment Strategy Investment Strategy Statement Statement 

Funding Strategy StatementFunding Strategy Statement

Communications PolicyCommunications Policy

Governance Policy Governance Policy 

Page 48



CHAIRMAN'S FOREWORD 

By the end of 2016/17 the Fund had grown to a record level of just under £957
million and for the three years to March 2017 the Fund returned an annualised 
9.96% overall.  Membership of the scheme also continued to increase with an 
increase of 4% over the previous year. The scheme is however maturing with new 
contributions level with monies paid out in benefits.  As a result, the cashflow of the 
Fund will continue to be a key focus for Committee over the coming months.   

Monitoring the Fund's investments has kept Committee busy over the last 12
months, particularly looking at opportunities to invest via the London Collective 
Investment Vehicle (CIV). Last year we reported that the Council took the decision to 
join with the other 32 London Boroughs to form the CIV.  The CIV was formally 
established as an Authorised Contractual Scheme (ACS) and is the vehicle through 
which all of the Fund's assets will be pooled, although it is expected to take 10 to 15 
years to achieve this goal.  Over this year, in addition to the investment in the 
London CIV Ruffer Fund, we also transitioned all passive holdings to the Legal & 
General Fund, managed via the CIV, generating significant fee savings for the Fund.  
As 31 March 2017 41% of the Fund's assets were held with the CIV. We have taken 
active participation in the development of the London CIV this past year with 
membership on the joint committee and on the Investment advisory committee.

The local Pension Board is now well established, having been in operation for two 
years.  The key work of the Pension Board to date has related to improving Fund 
governance through refreshing and drafting policy documentation and in ensuring 
compliance with the Pension Regulator's code of practice.  Pension Board have 
undertaken some significant pieces of work since inception including: development 
of a policy to Report Breaches of the Law; development of a refreshed 
Communication Strategy; supporting the development and introduction of an 
Administration Strategy; a review of an initial self assessment against Pension 
regulator's compliance checklist and agreement of actions for improvement; and 
maintaining a watching brief on the transition of Pensions Administration from Capita 
Employee Benefits to Surrey County Council. 

In November, the new administration arrangements came into effect.  Day-to-day 
administration is now undertaken by the pension team at Surrey County Council with 
whom we have a collaborative working arrangement.  The transfer from Capita was 
a major project and it will take some time for the new arrangements to bed in and to 
reduce the backlog of work they transferred.  However, early performance has been 
encouraging.  

Cllr Philip Corthorne
Chairman Pensions Committee

2

which all of the Fund's assets will be pooled, although it is expected to take 10 to 15 which all of the Fund's assets will be pooled, although it is expected to take 10 to 15 
years to achieve this goal.  Over this year, in addition to the investment in the years to achieve this goal.  Over this year, in addition to the investment in the 

CIV Ruffer Fund, we also transitioned all passive holdings to the Legal & CIV Ruffer Fund, we also transitioned all passive holdings to the Legal & 
generating significant fee savings for the Fund.  generating significant fee savings for the Fund.  

the Fund's assets were held with the CIV. We have the Fund's assets were held with the CIV. We have 
active participation in the development of the London CIV this past year with active participation in the development of the London CIV this past year with 
membership on the joint committee and on the Investment advisory committee.membership on the joint committee and on the Investment advisory committee.

The local Pension Board is now well established, having been in operation for two The local Pension Board is now well established, having been in operation for two 
ey work of the Pension Board to date has related to improving Fund ey work of the Pension Board to date has related to improving Fund 

governance through refreshing and drafting policy documentation and in ensuring governance through refreshing and drafting policy documentation and in ensuring 
compliance with the Pension Regulator's code of practice.  Pension Board have compliance with the Pension Regulator's code of practice.  Pension Board have 
undertaken some significant pieces of work since inception including: development undertaken some significant pieces of work since inception including: development 
of a policy to Report Breaches of the Law; development of a refreshed of a policy to Report Breaches of the Law; development of a refreshed 
Communication Strategy; supporting the development and introduction of an Communication Strategy; supporting the development and introduction of an 
Administration Strategy; a review of an initial self assessmeAdministration Strategy; a review of an initial self assessme

ompliance checklist and agreement of actions for improvement; and ompliance checklist and agreement of actions for improvement; and 
maintaining a watching brief on the transition of Pensions Administration from Capita maintaining a watching brief on the transition of Pensions Administration from Capita 
Employee Benefits to Surrey County Council. Employee Benefits to Surrey County Council. 

Page 49



FUND GOVERNANCE and STATUTORY INFORMATION  

FUND GOVERNANCE

The London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund ('the Fund') is part of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).  The benefits paid out and the regulations 
are set nationally, but the Fund is administered locally. As the Administering 
Authority, the London Borough of Hillingdon has legal responsibility for the effective 
management of the Fund.  The Council delegates this responsibility to the Pensions 
Committee ('the Committee'), which is the formal decision making body for the Fund.
The Corporate Director of Finance has delegated authority for the day to day running 
of the Fund.  The local Pension Board ('the Board') was established in 2015 to assist 
the scheme manager in securing compliance with regulations relating to the
governance and administration within the requirements set by the Pension 
Regulator. 

Pension Committee

The Pension Committee consists of five Councillor Members.  During 2016/17 these 
were:

         

Councillor    Councillor   Councillor
Philip Corthorne  Michael Markham  Peter Davis
(Chairman)   (Vice-Chairman)

   

Councillor    Councillor
Tony Eginton   Beulah East  
(Labour Lead)   

The Committee meets quarterly to discuss investment strategy, legislative changes 
and developments that may affect the fund, and to review the performance of the 
Fund Managers and the Fund Administrators.  Committee training has been 
incorporated into these quarterly meetings to ensure that Committee Members 

3

D
R
A
FTThe Pension Committee consists of five Councillor Members.  During 2016The Pension Committee consists of five Councillor Members.  During 2016

   

      CouncillorCouncillor   Councillor
    Michael MarkhamMichael Markham

(Vice(Vice-Chairman)

Page 50



maintain their knowledge and skills at a sufficient level to enable them to discharge 
their duties in relation to the Fund.

Local Pension Board

The London Borough of Hillingdon local Pension Board was established in 2015 and
like the Committee meets on a quarterly basis.  The members of the Board during 
2016/17 were:

Employer Representatives:

         

Councillor   Councillor   Councillor  
David Simmonds  Alan Chapman  John Morse
(Chairman)   (Vice-Chairman)  

Scheme Member Representatives:  

Venetia Rogers  Active Member
Andrew Scott   Active Member 
Roger Hackett  Retired Member   

The Board is not a decision making body, rather it has a compliance and scrutiny 
role to ensure the Pensions Committee complies effectively and efficiently with the 
code of practice on the governance and administration of public service pension 
schemes issued by the Pension Regulator. Additionally the Pension Board will help 
ensure that the London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund is managed and 
administered effectively and efficiently and complies with the code of practice.

Corporate Director of Finance  

Paul Whaymand in his role of Corporate Director of Finance has delegated 
responsibility for the day-to-day running of the Pension Fund. 

4

D
R
A
FT      CouncillorCouncillor

Alan Chapman  John Morse
Chairman)Chairman)  

Scheme Member Representatives:    

Active MemberActive Member
Active Member Active Member 
Retired MemberRetired Member

ard is not a decision making body, rather it has a compliance and scrutiny ard is not a decision making body, rather it has a compliance and scrutiny 
role to ensure the Pensions Committeerole to ensure the Pensions Committee
code of practice on the governance and administration of public service pension code of practice on the governance and administration of public service pension 

the Pension Regulator. Additionally the Pension Board will help the Pension Regulator. Additionally the Pension Board will help 
ensure that the London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund is managed and ensure that the London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund is managed and 

Page 51



FUND MANAGEMENT and ADVISORS

The work of the Committee is supported by a number of officers, advisors and 
external managers.

Officers Responsible for the Fund

The Strategic Finance team ensures that both the Committee and Board receive 
relevant advice on investment strategy, monitoring of the performance of the fund 
and on administration matters, in addition to undertaking the accounting duties of the 
Fund.

Nancy le Roux   Deputy Director - Strategic Finance
Sian Kunert    Chief Accountant
Ken Chisholm   Corporate Pensions Manager
Tunde Adekoya  Pension Fund Accountant

Scheme Administration 

Administration of the scheme was contracted out to Capita Employee Benefits (CEB)
until 31st October 2016.  From 1st November 2017, Surrey County Council provide 
the pensions administration under delegated authority for the London Borough of 
Hillingdon. Surrey maintains pension scheme membership records and calculates 
benefits. 

Email:        myhelpdeskpensions@surreycc.gov.uk
Telephone: 020 8213 2802
Address: Pension Services, Surrey County Council, Room 243, County Hall, 
Penrhyn Road, Kingston upon Thames, KT1 2DN

Fund Custodian and Performance Monitoring

The Northern Trust Company acts as the global custodian of the Fund's assets. As 
part of its normal procedures Northern Trust holds all assets in safe custody, settles 
trades, collects dividend income, provides data for corporate actions, liaises closely 
with all of the investment managers and reports on all activity on a monthly and 
quarterly basis. Where holdings are in pooled funds, the underlying assets held by 
the relevant funds' custodian are reported to Northern Trust. Regular service reviews 
take place with Northern Trust to ensure continuous monitoring of the Funds 
requirements.  Additionally Northern Trust provide performance analytics, comparing 
the performance of the Fund and individual managers to agreed benchmarks and 
market indices on a monthly, quarterly and annual basis.

Northern Trust
50 Bank Street
Canary Wharf
LONDON
E14 5NT

5

D
R
A
FTcontracted out to Capita Employee Benefits (CEB)contracted out to Capita Employee Benefits (CEB)

November 2017, Surrey County Council provide November 2017, Surrey County Council provide 
the pensions administration under delegated authority for the London Borough of the pensions administration under delegated authority for the London Borough of 

pension scheme membership records and calculatescheme membership records and calculate

D
R
A
FT

myhelpdeskpensions@surreycc.gov.uk

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Telephone: 020 8213 2802

D
R
A
FT

Surrey County Council,

D
R
A
FT

Kingston upon Thames,

Fund Custodian and Performance MonitoringFund Custodian and Performance Monitoring

The Northern Trust Company acts as the global custodian of the FundThe Northern Trust Company acts as the global custodian of the Fund
part of its normal procedures Northern Trust holds all assets in safe custody, settles part of its normal procedures Northern Trust holds all assets in safe custody, settles 

Page 52



Fund Actuary

The Fund's actuary is Hymans Robertson 

Catherine McFadyen FFA
Hymans Robertson LLP
20 Waterloo Street
GLASGOW
G2 6DB

Fund Managers

Day-to-day investment management of the Fund's assets is delegated to specialist 
managers in accordance with the LGPS (Management and Investment of Funds) 
Regulations 2016. During 2016/17 the Fund used the following external managers:  

Fund Manager

Adam Street Partners

AEW UK                             

GMO Investments (Defunded February 2017)

JP Morgan Asset Management

Kempen International Investments (Defunded June 16)

Legal & General Investment Management (Funded October 2016)

London CIV (Funded June 2016)

LGT Capital Partners

M&G Investments (Direct Investment)

Macquarie Investment

Newton Investment Management            

Permira LLP

Ruffer LLP (Assets Transferred to management under London CIV June 2016)

State Street Global Advisors (Defunded October 2016)

UBS Global Asset Management

Advisors to the Fund

The Fund's Investment Advisor is KPMG who was appointed July 2014. They advise 
the Committee on the Fund's strategic asset allocation and assist in the monitoring of 
fund managers.  

David O'Hara
Director
Investment Advisory
Tax & Pensions
KPMG LLP (UK)
191 West George Street
GLASGOW
G2 2LJ

In addition the Fund has an Independent Advisor - Scott Jamieson.

6

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FTDefunded June 16)Defunded June 16)

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

(Funded October 2016)(Funded October 2016)

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

M&G Investments (Direct Investment)M&G Investments (Direct Investment)

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Newton Investment Management            Newton Investment Management            

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

(Assets Transferred to (Assets Transferred to management under anagement under London

D
R
A
FT

State Street Global Advisors State Street Global Advisors ((DDefunded October 2016)efunded October 2016)

D
R
A
FT

UBS Global Asset ManagementUBS Global Asset Management

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Advisors to the FundAdvisors to the Fund

The Fund's Investment Advisor is KPMG who was appointedThe Fund's Investment Advisor is KPMG who was appointed

Page 53



The Fund has also appointed AON Hewitt to provide support on governance 
arrangements to the Board.

Aon Hewitt
25 Marsh Street
BRISTOL
BS1 4AQ

Legal Services

Legal support to the Fund is provided in-house by the Council.  The Council's 
Borough Solicitor is Raj Alagh. 

Auditor

The Fund's external auditor, appointed by the Public Sector Audit Appointments 
(PSAA) is Ernst & Young. 

Ernst & Young LLP
Wessex House
19 Threefield lane
SOUTHAMPTON
SO14 3QB

Banker

Banking services are provided to the Fund by the Council's banker Lloyds. 

Lloyds Bank plc
25 Gresham Street
LONDON
EC2V 7HN

AVC Provider

The Fund's provider for additional voluntary contributions is Prudential. 

Prudential AVC Customer Services
Prudential
CRAIGFORTH
FK9 9UE

7

D
R
A
FT

The Fund's external auditor, appointed by the Public Sector Audit Appointments The Fund's external auditor, appointed by the Public Sector Audit Appointments 

g services are provided to the Fund by the Council's bankerg services are provided to the Fund by the Council's banker

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Page 54



OVERVIEW OF THE SCHEME  

The London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund is part of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (LGPS) and is governed by statute. The scheme move to a career 
average revalued earning (CARE) scheme, from a final salary scheme in 2014 as a 
result of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013. In 2016/17 the 
regulations surrounding investments were amended with the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016.

Hillingdon is the Administering Authority for the Fund. Pensions and entitlement to 
benefits are fully protected in law. Membership of the Scheme is open to all 
employees of the Council including school employees with the exception of teachers 
(who have their own pension scheme). Other employers are admitted to the Pension 
Fund and depending on their status their employees may also be able to participate 
in the LGPS. Employee contributions are determined by central government and are 
between 5.5% and 12.5% of pensionable pay. Employer rates are set by the Fund 
actuary every 3 years following a valuation of the assets and liabilities of the Fund, 
with the next valuation due to take place as at 31 March 2019.

The conditions of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations set 
out in clear terms the benefits that are payable to Scheme members. The benefits 
are guaranteed for those members and therefore members are not reliant on 
investment performance for their pension benefits. Contributions payable by Scheme 
members are also defined in the Regulations. Employing Authorities are required to 
pay contributions into the Scheme in order to meet the cost of funding employee 
benefits and are required to meet any shortfall in funding the pension liabilities of 
Scheme members. 

The Pension Scheme as applying during the financial year 2016/17 was a defined 
benefit career average revalued earnings scheme which aligns LGPS retirement age 
with an individual’s state pension age. The key benefits of the scheme are outlined 
below: 

Pension benefits based on a 1/49th accrual basis for each year of 
pensionable service with benefits calculated on the career average pay 
revalued annually in line with inflation. 

Pre-2014 benefits guaranteed with a final salary link for any benefits earned
prior to 1 April 2014. 

Option to pay 50% of the contribution rate to accrue 50% of the benefits. 

Option to convert some pension to lump sum on retirement on a 1:12 ratio. 

Life assurance cover 3x member final pay applicable from the day of joining 
scheme. 

Pensions for dependents:- spouses, civil partners and eligible co-habiting 
partners and eligible children. 

An entitlement to have pension paid early on medical grounds. 

Pensions increase annually in line with the cost of living (CPI).

It should be noted that the foregoing is not an exhaustive list and that certain 
conditions have to be met for an individual to be entitled to the benefits outlined.  The 
foregoing benefit structure came into effect on 1 April 2014 and saw the start of 

8

D
R
A
FT

between 5.5% and 12.5% of pensionable pay. Employer rates are set by the Fund between 5.5% and 12.5% of pensionable pay. Employer rates are set by the Fund 
actuary every 3 years following a valuation of the assets and liabilities of the Fund, actuary every 3 years following a valuation of the assets and liabilities of the Fund, 

s at 31 March 201s at 31 March 2019.

The conditions of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations set The conditions of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations set 
the benefits that are payable to Scheme membersthe benefits that are payable to Scheme members

are guaranteed for those members and therefore members are not reliant on are guaranteed for those members and therefore members are not reliant on 
investment performance for their pension benefits. investment performance for their pension benefits. CContributions payable by Scheme 
members are also defined in the Regulations. Employing Authorities are required to members are also defined in the Regulations. Employing Authorities are required to 
pay contributions into the Scheme in order to meet the cost of funding employee pay contributions into the Scheme in order to meet the cost of funding employee 
benefits and are required to meet any shortfall in funding the pension liabilities of benefits and are required to meet any shortfall in funding the pension liabilities of 

The Pension Scheme as applying during the financial year 201The Pension Scheme as applying during the financial year 201
benefit career average revalued earnings scheme which aligns LGPS retirement age benefit career average revalued earnings scheme which aligns LGPS retirement age 
with an individual’s state pension age. The key benefits of the scheme are outlined with an individual’s state pension age. The key benefits of the scheme are outlined 

Pension benefits based on a Pension benefits based on a 
pensionable service with benefits calculated on the career average pay pensionable service with benefits calculated on the career average pay 

Page 55



significant changes to the public sector pension schemes, with most other schemes 
introducing their changes a year later on 1 April 2015. The previous LGPS 
introduced in 2008 was a defined benefit final salary scheme and was in operation 
until 31 March 2014. It should be recognised that a large number of scheme 
members will have benefits accrued under both schemes and indeed some under 
the pre-2008 scheme. The key benefits under the 2008 scheme are outlined below: 

A guaranteed pension based on final pay and length of time in the scheme 
and an accrual rate of 1/60th per annum. 

Tax free lump sum on benefit accumulated prior to 1 April 2008 and option to 
convert some of the pension into tax free lump sum on post 1 April 2008 
service.  

Life assurance cover 3x member final pay applicable from the day of joining 
Scheme. 

Pensions for dependents:- spouses, civil partners and eligible co-habiting 
partners and eligible children.   

An entitlement to have pension paid early on medical grounds. 

Pensions increase annually in line with the cost of living (CPI). 

Contracting Out Status (with effect from 1 April 2002 until 5 April 2016) - The LGPS 
was contracted-out of the State Second Pension Scheme (S2P), up to 5 April 2016 
when contracting-out ceased. This meant that members paid reduced National 
Insurance contributions and they did not earn a pension under S2P. Instead, the 
LGPS must guarantee to pay a pension that in general is as high as the pension 
which would have been earned in the State Earnings Related Pension Scheme 
(SERPS) / S2P. For contracted-out membership between 6 April 1978 and 5 April 
1997, a Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) is calculated by the Inland Revenue 
which is the minimum pension which must be paid from the London Borough of 
Hillingdon Pension Fund to the member. For membership after 5 April 1997, the 
LGPS has guaranteed that the benefits it provides will generally be no less 
favourable than those provided under a Reference Scheme prescribed under the 
Pensions Act 1995.

Additional Voluntary Contributions - A facility is available for scheme members to 
make Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs). The Pension Fund Committee has 
appointed the Prudential as the nominated provider for this purpose. This is run 
separately to the Hillingdon Pension Fund. Further details are available from the
Prudential Pensions Connection Team on 0800 032 6674.

REGULATIONS

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of 
Funds) Regulations 2016  

The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended)

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings 
and Amendment) Regulations 2014.

9

D
R
A
FT

An entitlement to have pension paid early on medical grounds. An entitlement to have pension paid early on medical grounds. 

the cost of livingthe cost of living (CPI)

(with effect from 1 April 2002(with effect from 1 April 2002 until 5 April 2016until 5 April 2016
out of the State Second Pension Scheme (S2P)out of the State Second Pension Scheme (S2P)

This meant that members pathat members pa
not earn a pension under S2P. Instead, the not earn a pension under S2P. Instead, the 

LGPS must guarantee to pay a pension that in general is as high as the pension LGPS must guarantee to pay a pension that in general is as high as the pension 
which would have been earned in the State Earnings Related Pension Scheme which would have been earned in the State Earnings Related Pension Scheme 
(SERPS) / S2P. For contracted(SERPS) / S2P. For contracted--out membership between 6 April 1978 and 5 April out membership between 6 April 1978 and 5 April 
1997, a Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) is calculated by the Inland Revenue 1997, a Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) is calculated by the Inland Revenue 
which is the minimum pension which must be paid from the London Borough of which is the minimum pension which must be paid from the London Borough of 
Hillingdon Pension Fund to the member. For membership after 5 AHillingdon Pension Fund to the member. For membership after 5 A
LGPS has guaranteed that the benefits it provides will generally be no less LGPS has guaranteed that the benefits it provides will generally be no less 
favourable than those provided under a Reference Scheme prescribed under the favourable than those provided under a Reference Scheme prescribed under the 
Pensions Act 1995.Pensions Act 1995.

Additional Voluntary ContributionsAdditional Voluntary Contributions
make Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs). The Pension Fund Committee has make Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs). The Pension Fund Committee has 

Page 56



FUND MEMBERSHIP

The London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund is open to employees of the 
Council, non-teaching staff of local authority schools and certain other bodies eligible
to join the Fund.  Membership of the LGPS is not compulsory, although employees 
are automatically admitted to the fund unless they elect otherwise. Over the last few 
years total membership of the fund has continued to grow, as have the number of 
employers participating in the Fund.  

Active Membership  

As at 31 March 2017 there were 8,684 members actively contributing to the Fund.
The diagram below shows a breakdown by employer type:

General Scheme membership

Membership of the scheme is split between

 Active members - those still contributing to the scheme; 

 Deferred members - those who are no longer active but have accrued benefits 
to be held until retirement or transfer to a new employer's scheme; and

 Pensioner members - who are both former active members now drawing their 
benefits and dependents of former active members. 

The membership of the scheme analysed over the relevant membership profile is 
shown below:

10

D
R
A
FT

General Scheme membershipGeneral Scheme membership

Membership of the scheme is split betwMembership of the scheme is split betw

ctive members ctive members - those still contributing to the scheme; those still contributing to the scheme; 

eferred members eferred members - those who are no longer active but have accrued benefits those who are no longer active but have accrued benefits 
to be held until retirement or transfer to a new employer's scheme; to be held until retirement or transfer to a new employer's scheme; 

ensioner members ensioner members - - 

Page 57



As can be seen from the following chart, active membership continued to grow over 
the last financial year.  Active membership increased by 417 and overall scheme 
membership increased year-on-year by 4% to 22,103 scheme members. The 
membership profile over the last five years is shown below:

5 year membership profile

CONTRIBUTIONS

Total contributions (including transfers) into the Fund during 2016/17 amounted to 
£42.7m compared to £42.0m for the previous year. Employee contributions ranged 
from 5.5% to 12.5% dependent on pensionable pay.  Employer contribution rates are 
set by the Fund actuary and the rates that applied during 2016/17 were set from the 
2013 valuation.

The chart below shows the split between employee and employer contributions and 
transfers.  Employers contributed 75% of total contributions during 2016/17. 

Contributions received during 2016/17 

The current employer contribution rates and the total contributions paid by each 
Employer in 2016/17 are shown in the table below.

11

D
R
A
FT

Total contributions (including transfers) into the Fund during 201Total contributions (including transfers) into the Fund during 201
for the previous year. Employee contributions ranged for the previous year. Employee contributions ranged 

from 5.5% to 12.5% dependent on pensionable pay.  Employer contribution rates are from 5.5% to 12.5% dependent on pensionable pay.  Employer contribution rates are 
set by the Fund actuary and the rates that applied during 2016set by the Fund actuary and the rates that applied during 2016

The chart below shows the split between employee and employer contributions and The chart below shows the split between employee and employer contributions and 
transfers.  Employers contributed 7transfers.  Employers contributed 75

tions received during 201tions received during 201

Page 58



Employer Type Total 
Contributions

Contribution 
Rate %

London Borough of Hillingdon Administering 
Authority

23,466,357.17 21.1

Barnhill Academy Scheduled Body 280,409.68 23.4

Belmore Academy Scheduled Body 163,852.36 22.8

Bishop Ramsey Academy Scheduled Body 285,594.52 26.3

Bishopshalt Academy Scheduled Body 306,635.48 29.6

Charville Academy Scheduled Body 223,312.76 35.7

Coteford Academy Scheduled Body 122,188.71 27.4

Cowley St. Laurence School Scheduled Body 137,851.53 24.8

Cranford Park Academy Scheduled Body 266,123.40 28

Douay Martyrs Academy Scheduled Body 246,241.09 30.3

Eden Academy Scheduled Body 179,990.69 25.1

Global Academy Scheduled Body 15,421.48 17.3

Grangewood School Scheduled body 287,326.29 25.1

Guru Nanak Academy Scheduled Body 299,972.02 21.2

Harefield Academy Scheduled Body 210,292.66 19

Heathrow Aviation Scheduled Body 49,750.22 22.1

Haydon Academy Scheduled Body 341,671.18 22.2

Hillingdon Primary School Scheduled Body 178,321.74 22.5

John Locke Academy Scheduled Body 51,242.52 17.7

Lake Farm School Scheduled Body 79,410.51 18.1

Laurel Lane Academy Scheduled Body 118,568.13 24.8

London Housing Consortium Scheduled Body 214,757.21 21.1

Moorcroft School Scheduled Body 212,440.31 25.1

Nanaksar Primary School Scheduled Body 32,708.65 15.3

Northwood Academy Scheduled Body 100,091.89 21.7

Park Federation Scheduled Body 69,283.56 18.1

Pentland Field School Scheduled Body 207,831.93 25.1

Pinkwell School Scheduled Body 226,360.97 24.3

QED - Queensmead School Scheduled Body 19,321.38 21.8

Queensmead Academy Scheduled Body 259,189.68 24.3

Rosedale Hewens Academy Scheduled Body 277,105.88 24.5

Ruislip High School Scheduled Body 218,986.81 21.5

Ryefield Primary School Scheduled Body 166,969.15 21.1

Skills HUB Scheduled Body 116,614.87 36.9

St. Matthews Primary School Scheduled Body 124,791.02 24.8

St. Martins primary School Scheduled Body 28,595.90 24.8

Stockley Academy Scheduled Body 160,121.93 19.4

Swakeleys Academy Scheduled Body 200,601.71 24

Uxbridge College Scheduled Body 915,450.15 17.8

Uxbridge Academy Scheduled Body 281,081.51 21.5

Vyners Academy Scheduled Body 236,939.06 28.7

Willows Academy Scheduled Body 36,796.19 27.3

Wood End Academy Scheduled Body 236,904.27 24.5

Young Peoples Academy Scheduled Body 92,254.85 28.6

Bellrock Admitted Body 38,182.92 29

Braybourne Facilities Admitted Body 6,698.18 29.3

Churchill (was Mitie Cleaning) Admitted Body 22,923.56 21

Cucina - Haydon Academy Admitted Body 38,773.23 28.4

Greenwich Leisure Admitted Body 88,414.44 16.8

12

D
R
A
FT

299,972.02299,972.02

210,292.66210,292.66

D
R
A
FT

49,750.2249,750.22

D
R
A
FTScheduled BodyScheduled Body 341,671.18341,671.18

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FTScheduled BodyScheduled Body 178,321.74178,321.74

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FTScheduled BodyScheduled Body 51,242.5251,242.52

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FTScheduled BodyScheduled Body 79,410.51

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Scheduled Bodyd Body 118,568.13

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Scheduled BodyScheduled Body

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Scheduled BodyScheduled Body

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Scheduled BodyScheduled Body

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Scheduled BodyScheduled Body

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

ScheScheduled Bodyduled Body

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Scheduled BodyScheduled Body

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Scheduled BodyScheduled Body

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Queensmead SchoolQueensmead School Scheduled BodyScheduled Body

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Queensmead AcademyQueensmead Academy Scheduled BodyScheduled Body

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Rosedale Hewens AcadeRosedale Hewens AcademymyD
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Page 59



Hayward facilities Admitted Body 3,421.36 34.2

Heathrow Travel Care Admitted Body 28,334.96 18.9

Hillingdon & Ealing Citizens Advice Admitted Body 43,090.53 19.1

Kingdom Security Admitted Body 13,398.88 26

Mitie Facilities Management Admitted Body 25,416.62 21

Taylor Shaw Admitted Body 35,171.14 24.7

Taylor Shaw (Caterlink) Admitted Body 1,882.65 16.9

Taylor Shaw (Caterplus) Admitted Body 18,153.03 31.1

Total 32,109,594.52  

13

D
R
A
FT

Page 60



BENEFITS

The benefits paid out from the Fund comprise annual pensions, lump sum retirement 
payments, death benefits and transfers to other funds. Total benefits paid out during 
2016/17 amounted to £41.6m, a decrease of £0.9m compared to the previous year. 

Benefits paid during 2016/17 

CASHFLOW

Looking at the comparison between contributions received and benefits paid out over 
the last five years, it can be seen that while contributions received have continued to 
grow, benefits payments have also continued to grow, with varying differences over 
the years. Over the last year figure there was £1.1m more received in contributions 
than paid out in benefits.

Contributions Received against Benefits Paid 

14

D
R
A
FT

Looking at the comparison between contributions received and benefits paid out over Looking at the comparison between contributions received and benefits paid out over 
the last five years, it can be seen that while contributions received have continued to the last five years, it can be seen that while contributions received have continued to 
grow, benefits payments have also continued to grow, with varying differences over grow, benefits payments have also continued to grow, with varying differences over 

figure there was £1.1m more received in contributions figure there was £1.1m more received in contributions 

Contributions Received against Benefits Paid Contributions Received against Benefits Paid 

Page 61



Management Expenses

Management expenses for 2016/17 were £8.4 million, an increase of £2.0 million 
compared to 2015/16. The majority if this increase is attributable to the big increase 
in market valuation of investment assets, which form the basis of investment fund 
management charges incurred by the fund. In 2016/17 the market value of 
investments appreciated by £138 million, thus incurring greater management fees.

Whilst the positive cash-flow in member dealings is currently favourable to the fund,
cash-flow may become an increasing concern for the Committee in the next few 
years.  

Existing strategies are in place to address these concerns, in form of a very 
defensive investment portfolio, including a number of income generating investments 
that will reduce the necessity to sell investments should there be a sustained cash-
flow shortfall. The ongoing strategy will continue to focus on generating income to 
meet cash-flow requirements.

15

D
R
A
FT

flow shortfall. The ongoing strategy will continue to focus on generating income to flow shortfall. The ongoing strategy will continue to focus on generating income to 

Page 62



PERFORMANCE REVIEWS and REPORT of the FUND 
ACTUARY

INVESTMENT REVIEW 

Market background for the year ended 31 March 2017

Economic Summary

The financial year has seen two political events which have more than surprised the 
markets. In June 2016 the UK voted to leave the European Union and then five 
months later, Donald Trump was elected the 45th President of the United States.  

The former saw an instant fall in sterling and UK equity indices tumble. The Bank of 
England took immediate action to settle the markets by reducing interest rates and 
increasing quantitative easing. Following the initial reaction, UK equities steadily 
improved, making gains over the year; whilst economic growth figures continued to 
be positive, challenging the forecasts of the economists. The fall in sterling benefited 
exports and reinforced the service sector as tourists took advantage of their 
improved buying power. However inflation began to rise as the increased price of 
imports started to take hold. The Bank of England has said that it intends to look 
through any short-term inflationary pressure due to currency and hopes to hold 
interest rates at their historic lows in order to bolster the economy.        

In November 2016 President Trump took office and with his promise of 
protectionism, the impact on economies around the world may still be profound. In 
the short-term however, markets have again been positive with investors seeing 
Trump's pro-business agenda favourably and inflows into US assets. His policy of 
lower taxes and higher public spending could see a sustained rise in US bond yields 
and with large bond maturities requiring refinancing, this will only add to the upward 
pressure.

Within Europe, economic growth as a whole was strong with recovering results being 
announced and equity returns reflecting this position. However with several 
government votes taking place and the populist agenda gaining ground, political 
upheaval may prove an obstacle to the region's continued improving position.     

Key asset class information

In general, despite the political shocks, equity markets have delivered solid returns 
throughout the year. Global equities delivered annual returns of 26.11% with the 
FTSE All share (UK) providing returns of 21.95% and FTSE North America 34.97%. 
Other regions also had positive results with Europe (ex UK) up 28.31%, whilst Asia 
Pacific and Emerging Market indices showed gains of 34.68% and 35.58% 
respectively.  

Other asset classes also showed gains throughout the year, albeit at subdued levels 
comported to equities, with the LB Hillingdon Fixed Income benchmark delivering 
4.61% and Property benchmark showing 3.69%.

16

D
R
A
FT

England took immediate action to settle the markets by reducing interest rates and England took immediate action to settle the markets by reducing interest rates and 
increasing quantitative easing. Following the initial reaction, UK equities steadily increasing quantitative easing. Following the initial reaction, UK equities steadily 
improved, making gains over the year; whilst economic growth figures continued to improved, making gains over the year; whilst economic growth figures continued to 
be positive, challenging the forecasts of the economists. The fall in sterling benefited be positive, challenging the forecasts of the economists. The fall in sterling benefited 
exports and reinforced the service sector as tourists took advantage of exports and reinforced the service sector as tourists took advantage of 
improved buying power. However inflation began to rise as the increased price of improved buying power. However inflation began to rise as the increased price of 
imports started to take hold. The Bank of Englaimports started to take hold. The Bank of England has said that it intends to look nd has said that it intends to look 

term inflationary pressure due to currency and hopes to hold term inflationary pressure due to currency and hopes to hold 
interest rates at their historic lows in order to bolster the economy.        interest rates at their historic lows in order to bolster the economy.        

In November 2016 President Trump took office and with his proIn November 2016 President Trump took office and with his pro
protectionism, the impact on economies around the world may still be profound. In protectionism, the impact on economies around the world may still be profound. In 

term however, markets have again been positive with investors seeing term however, markets have again been positive with investors seeing 
business agenda favourably and inflows into US assets. His policy of business agenda favourably and inflows into US assets. His policy of 

taxes and higher public spending could see a sustained rise in US bond yields taxes and higher public spending could see a sustained rise in US bond yields 
and with large bond maturities requiring refinancing, this will only add to the upward and with large bond maturities requiring refinancing, this will only add to the upward 

Within Europe, economic growth as a whole was strong with recovering results beiWithin Europe, economic growth as a whole was strong with recovering results bei
announced and equity returns reflecting this position. However with several announced and equity returns reflecting this position. However with several 

Page 63



If one follows the consensus of a generally improving world economy, equities could 
continue to deliver positive returns, despite their current high valuation and 
headwinds through Brexit, European and Trump uncertainties. With increased 
borrowing requirements, yields on UK and US government bonds are likely to 
increase which may prove a difficult environment for bond traders.  The biggest test 
for the UK economy will be its negotiations and exit from the EU, which is fraught 
with uncertainly and unchartered challenges.

Investment Strategy

The setting and maintenance of the Fund's investment strategy is undertaken 
through the work of the Pensions Committee.  The main consideration when devising 
an investment strategy for the Fund is recognising that the objective of the Fund is to 
pay benefits to members and their dependants, both now and in the future. These 
benefits, which form the liabilities of the Fund, are very long term in nature. For that 
reason, a reasonably high proportion of assets are invested in growth assets such as 
equities, property, private equity and other alternative investments which are 
expected to deliver higher returns over the longer term.

Fund Managers

AEW were appointed in June 2014 with a direct property mandate to complement 
the existing pooled property investment strategy of UBS and generate premium 
returns commensurate with their investment cycle and strategy. AEW looks to build 
diversified portfolios of small lot commercial properties. Lot size is typically in the £3-
5m range. Properties are located all over the UK with negligible exposure to London. 
The manager seeks to find properties that are well located and subject to strong 
tenant demand. The manager looks to add significant value through asset 
management e.g. re-positioning, refurbishing properties at lease expiry and has a 
bias to shorter leases because of the greater asset management opportunities that 
can arise. Efforts are focused on generating income for investors.

JP Morgan mandate, a corporate bond portfolio has been in place for just over 4
1/2 years and investments with the manager were switched from Strategic Bond 
Fund to the Global Bond Opportunities Fund, with higher rate of returns and same 
level of fees. The investment objective of the new fund is to achieve a return in 
excess of benchmark by investing in an unconstrained portfolio of debt securities 
and currencies and using financial derivative instruments where appropriate.

London CIV is a collective investment vehicle set up by all London boroughs in line 
with DCLG directive to pool investment assets of local authority pension funds strive 
to reduce cost of managing assets through economies of scale. As part of the 
process, the fund's mandate with Ruffer was transferred in July 2016 to be managed 
by the London CIV as a consolidated mandate with Ruffer, where the Council 
benefits from reduced fees. The plan is for all fund assets to be migrated into 
management by LCIV in the future and further reduce fund management costs.
Ruffer is an Absolute Return manager and the Manager has two goals: not to lose 

17

D
R
A
FT

pay benefits to members and their dependants, both now and in the future. These pay benefits to members and their dependants, both now and in the future. These 
benefits, which form the liabilities of the Fund, are very long term in nature. For that benefits, which form the liabilities of the Fund, are very long term in nature. For that 
reason, a reasonably high proportion of assets are invested in growth assets such as reason, a reasonably high proportion of assets are invested in growth assets such as 
equities, property, private equity and other alternative investments which are equities, property, private equity and other alternative investments which are 

r returns over the longer term.r returns over the longer term.

were appointed in June 2014 with a direct property mandate to complement were appointed in June 2014 with a direct property mandate to complement 
the existing pooled property investment strategy of UBS and generate premium the existing pooled property investment strategy of UBS and generate premium 
returns commensurate with their investment cycle and returns commensurate with their investment cycle and 
diversified portfolios of small lot commercial properties. Lot size is typically in the £3diversified portfolios of small lot commercial properties. Lot size is typically in the £3
5m range. Properties are located all over the UK with negligible exposure to London. 5m range. Properties are located all over the UK with negligible exposure to London. 

anager seeks to find properties that are well located and subject to strong anager seeks to find properties that are well located and subject to strong 
tenant demand. The tenant demand. The manager looks to add significant value through asset anager looks to add significant value through asset 
management e.g. remanagement e.g. re--positioning, refurbishing properties at lease expiry and has a positioning, refurbishing properties at lease expiry and has a 
bias to shorter leases because of the greater asset management opportunibias to shorter leases because of the greater asset management opportuni

fforts are focused on generating income for investorsfforts are focused on generating income for investors

Page 64



money on a rolling 12 month basis and to grow funds at a rate higher than would be
achieved by depositing in cash. The asset allocation is driven by two selections: 
those investments likely to deliver the required growth over the longer term (‘Greed’ 
assets) and those which should rise in response to conditions under which the Greed 
assets lose value (‘Fear’ assets). Historically Fear and Greed weightings have been 
broadly comparable.

LGIM - The manager was appointed in October 2016 to replace SSgA through
partnership with the LCIV benefiting from lower negotiated fees to manage passive
assets. Its aim is to capture benchmark returns by replicating the indices backing the 
assets. 

M&G - The objective of the Fund is to create attractive levels of current income for 
investors, while maintaining relatively low volatility of Net Asset Value. The fund was 
set up to provide medium to long term debt financing to mid-cap UK companies with 
strong business fundamentals that are facing difficulties refinancing existing loans in 
the bank market. As at the end of March 2017, all three invested funds were fully 
drawn down. The pension fund has already received more than the value of cash 
invested in the M&G Companies Fund, including promised returns on investment. 
Some returns have also been received from investments in the Debt opportunities 
fund, whilst the Debt Opportunities fund II has only just been fully invested in the 
financial year under review. Repayment of invested cash in all three funds should 
accelerate over the next year as they mature.

Macquarie - The mandate spans four regional funds – Europe, China, India and the 
US. Macquarie tends to pursue large scale projects often directly operating the 
assets invariably in partnership with local asset owners, wealthy individuals.

Since Inception of the portfolio, progress has been steady with allocation to all four 
funds are about 75% - 90% drawn-down. Returns on investments with this manager 
are expected to start coming back in the next year.

Newton was appointed in January 2013 with a view of generating income through 
their Global Higher Income Strategy. This was in anticipation of the possible scenario 
of Pension Payable in excess of contributions from members. The Dividend stream 
from this investment will then be utilised to balance the payments from "member's 
dealings", without the need to liquidate any assets. The manager seeks to achieve 
increasing annual distributions together with long-term capital growth from investing 
predominantly in global securities. At purchase, stocks must have a yield at least 
25% above the prevailing market yield. From the eligible subset, stocks are selected 
along a range of thematic lines e.g. those that should benefit from deleveraging 
within the broader economy. The manager adopts an unconstrained approach to 
stock selection which results in variances against the world equity index over shorter 
time periods. The fund has increased the total investments managed by Newton 
from consolidating the global equities income manage into one, disinvesting from 
Kempen in June 2016.

Permira were appointed in November 2014 and aims to deliver a superior return 
from lending directly to corporate borrowers. The manager will generally lend on a 
fully secured basis although may lend sparingly on a weaker basis. To augment the 
lending rate, Permira will generally secure arrangement fees in respect of each loan 

18

D
R
A
FT

strong business fundamentals that are facing difficulties refinancing existing loans in strong business fundamentals that are facing difficulties refinancing existing loans in 
, all three invested funds , all three invested funds 

received more than the value of cash received more than the value of cash 
invested in the M&G Companies Fund, including promised returns on investmentinvested in the M&G Companies Fund, including promised returns on investment
Some returns have also been received from investments in the Debt opportunities Some returns have also been received from investments in the Debt opportunities 

has only just been fully invested in the has only just been fully invested in the 
financial year under review. Repayment of invested cash in all three fundsfinancial year under review. Repayment of invested cash in all three funds
accelerate over the next year as they mature.accelerate over the next year as they mature.

The mandate spans four regional funds The mandate spans four regional funds 
US. Macquarie tends to pursue large scale projects often directly operating the US. Macquarie tends to pursue large scale projects often directly operating the 
assets invariably in partnership with local asset owners, wealthy individualsassets invariably in partnership with local asset owners, wealthy individuals

Since Inception of the portfolio, progress has been steady with allocation to Since Inception of the portfolio, progress has been steady with allocation to 
90% drawn90% drawn-down. Returns on investments with this manager down. Returns on investments with this manager 

are expected to start coming back in the next year.are expected to start coming back in the next year.

was appointed in January 2013 with a view of generating income through was appointed in January 2013 with a view of generating income through 
their Global Higher Incometheir Global Higher Income Strategy. This was in anticipation of the possible scenario Strategy. This was in anticipation of the possible scenario 
of Pension Payable in excess of contributions from members. The Dividend stream of Pension Payable in excess of contributions from members. The Dividend stream 
from this investment will then be utilised to balance the payments from "member's from this investment will then be utilised to balance the payments from "member's 

Page 65



advanced. The manager will normally secure strong position or fully control the board 
of most companies it lends money. In June 2016 Pension Committee agreed to 
invest in a second direct lending strategy with, Permira Credit Solutions III.  

Private equity is an illiquid asset with a long-term horizon.  The Fund has 
approximately 2.9% of assets invested in private equity; the assets are split between 
Adams Street Partners which is based in the US, and Liechtenstein Global Trust 
Capital Partners (LGT) which operates out of Switzerland.  Both managers invest 
globally.  Within each manager, private equity assets are spread across several 
funds launched in different years in order to provide time diversification. The majority 
of the investments are being returned and should be wound down over the next 
three to five years. There are currently no plans to make further commitments to this 
asset class by the Pension Committee, but the decision could be reviewed if it meets 
the future strategic direction of the fund. 

UBS manages UK equities using a value approach to stock selection. The 
manager's core belief is that success will come from adopting a robust investment 
and valuation approach applied consistently across the economic and stock market 
cycles. 

UBS Property - The property mandate managed by UBS operates a fund of funds 
UK property structure. The manager has full discretion to invest in both its own in-
house pooled property fund and those of other third party fund managers. The aim is 
to keep the portfolio investments diversified, thus mitigating concentration risks.

Fund Value and Asset allocation 

At 31 March 2017 the total value of the pension fund investment assets and liabilities 
was £955,190k. The following diagram identifies the allocation by asset class:

19

D
R
A
FT

manages UK equities using a value approach to stock selection. manages UK equities using a value approach to stock selection. 
manager's core belief is that success will come from adopting a robust investment manager's core belief is that success will come from adopting a robust investment 
and valuation approach applied consistently across the economic and stand valuation approach applied consistently across the economic and st

The property mandate managed by UBS operates a fund of funds The property mandate managed by UBS operates a fund of funds 
anager has full discretion to invest in both its own inanager has full discretion to invest in both its own in

house pooled property fund and those of other third party fund managers. Thehouse pooled property fund and those of other third party fund managers. The
to keep the portfolio investments diversified, thus mitigating concentration risks.to keep the portfolio investments diversified, thus mitigating concentration risks.

und Value and Asset allocation und Value and Asset allocation 

the total value of the pension fund investment assets and liabilities the total value of the pension fund investment assets and liabilities 
. The following diagram iden. The following diagram iden

Page 66



Whilst managers are able to use their discretion to make minor variations in the 
allocation of investments between markets, the major movements are a combination 
of market gains, revised asset allocation and maturation of Private Equity 
investments during the year.   The table below shows the total of investment assets 
and liabilities held by each manager as at 31 March 2017. 

Note: Includes other transition assets, pending trades and recoverable tax. 

The largest five holdings in the fund as at 31 March 2017 were:

Top 5 Holdings Market Value 
as at

31 March 2017
£000s

Percentage of
Fund Value

BNY MELLON FD MNGR NEWTON GLOBAL INC X 
NET ACC

137,948 14.44%

LONDON LGPS CIV LT RF ABSOLUTE RETURN A 
GBP DI

104,454 10.94%

Legal & General Investments UK EQUITY INDEX 
(OFC)

87,081 9.12%

JPMORGAN ASSET MGM GLOBAL BOND 
OPPORTUNITIES X

54,622 5.72%

AEW UK Investment Management LLP AEW UK Core 
Property Fund A

47,565 4.98%

INVESTMENT MANAGER
as at 31 March 2017 as at 31 March 2016

£’000 % £’000 %

Adams Street 17,532 1.84 19,195 2.37

AEW UK 47,565 4.98 36,094 4.46

GMO 0 0.00 62,041 7.67

JP Morgan 54,622 5.72 36,603 4.53

Kempen 0 0 87,317 10.81

LGIM 287,498 30.10 0 0.00

LGT 9,596 1.00 10,887 1.35

M&G 22,447 2.35 39,150 4.84

London CIV 104,454 10.94 0 0.00

Macquarie 27,002 2.83 19,805 2.45

Newton 137,948 14.44 30,395 3.76

Permira 38,233 4.00 20,634 2.55

Ruffer 0 0 92,546 11.44

State Street (SSgA) 0 0 179,997 22.26

UBS Equities 130,119 13.62 97,271 12.03

UBS Property 68,499 7.17 71,112 8.79

Other 9,675 1.01 5,603 0.69

Total 955,190 100.0 808,650 100.00

20

D
R
A
FT

Includes other transition assets, pending trades and recoverable tax. Includes other transition assets, pending trades and recoverable tax. 

The largest five holdings in the fund as at 31 March 201The largest five holdings in the fund as at 31 March 201D
R
A
FT

Top 5 HoldingsD
R
A
FT

30.1030.10

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

1.001.00

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT2.352.35

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT104,454104,454 10.9410.94

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT27,00227,002 2.83

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

137,948137,948 14.44

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

38,23338,233

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

00

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

0

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

130,119130,119

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

68,49968,499

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Page 67



The largest 10 directly held equity holdings were as follows:

Top 10 Directly Held
Equity Holdings

Market Value 
as at

31 March 2017
£000s

Percentage 
of 

Fund Value

Royal Dutch Shell 'B'ord Eur0.07 9,858 1.03%

Bp Ord Usd0.25 9,669 1.01%

Hsbc Hldgs Ord Usd0.50(Uk Reg) 7,382 0.77%

Barclays Plc Ord Gbp0.25 6,673 0.70%

Glaxosmithkline Ord Gbp0.25 6,342 0.66%

Lloyds Banking Gp Ord Gbp0.1 5,891 0.62%

3i Group Ord Gbp0.738636 5,306 0.56%

Glencore Plc Ord Usd0.01 4,946 0.52%

Bae Systems Ord Gbp0.025 4,325 0.45%

Rio Tinto Ord Gbp0.10 4,154 0.43%

Investment Performance

Over the financial year under review, the fund grew by 18.46% ahead of the 
benchmark figure of 16.65%. For a 3 year period to 31 March 2017, the fund has 

outperformed with a return, exceeding the benchmark by 0.57% pa. 

Performance by asset class

Performance 1 Year 3 Year

Asset Class Fund B' mark +/- Fund B' mark +/-

UK Equities 22.96 26.11 (2.50) 9.27 10.92 (1.49)

Overseas Equities 19.94 32.94 (9.78) 9.96 16.23 (5.40)

Bonds 9.59 4.61 4.76 7.01 4.37 2.53

Index Linked Gilts 22.56 20.86 1.41 14.35 13.39 0.85

Private Equity 16.16 37.05 (15.24) 15.97 20.49 (3.75)

Property 1.82 3.69 (1.80) 11.64 10.18 1.33

Infrastructure 23.07 3.65 18.74 18.51 3.65 14.34

Private Credit 21.02 4.65 15.65 8.23 4.65 3.42

Total Portfolio 18.46 16.65 1.55 9.96 9.34 0.57

21

D
R
A
FTOver the financial year under review, the fund grew by 1Over the financial year under review, the fund grew by 18.46

%. For a 3 year period to 31 March 201%. For a 3 year period to 31 March 201

exceeding the benchmark by exceeding the benchmark by 0.57% pa. % pa. 

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

B' mark

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

+/-

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

26.1126.11 (2.50)(2.50)

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

19.94 32.9432.94 (9.78)(9.78)

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

9.599.59 4.614.61 4.76

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

22.5622.56 20.8620.86

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

16.1616.16 37.0537.05

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

1.821.82 3.693.69D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

23.0723.07 3.653.65D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

21.0221.02D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Page 68



Performance by manager

Performance 1 Year 3 Year Since Inception

Manager Fund B' mark +/- Fund
B' 

mark +/- Fund B' mark +/-

Adams Street 20.58 37.05 (12.01) 20.18 20.49 (0.26) 6.58 - -

AEW UK 5.78 5.15 0.59 - - - 10.96 10.02 0.86

JP Morgan 8.15 3.66 4.33 3.69 3.66 0.03 4.16 3.67 0.47

London CIV 12.48 0.65 11.76 7.32 0.66 6.61 6.48 0.87 5.56

LGIM - - - - - - 5.31 5.18 0.13

LGIM II - - - - - - 1.88 1.88 0.00

LGT Capital 22.80 37.05 (10.40) 18.13 20.49 (0.26) 10.52 - -

Macquarie 22.41 3.65 18.11 18.28 3.65 14.12 3.96 3.70 0.25

M&G 18.62 4.65 13.35 10.04 4.65 5.15 7.20 4.71 2.38

Newton 25.83 35.16 (6.91) 17.43 18.54 (0.94) 15.30 17.10 (1.54)

Permira 9.58 4.65 4.71 - - - 10.02 4.61 5.18

UBS Equities 32.89 21.95 8.97 8.60 7.69 0.85 10.31 8.94 1.26

UBS Property 2.51 3.69 (1.14) 12.18 10.18 1.82 3.61 3.40 0.20

Total 
Portfolio

18.46 16.65 1.55 9.96 9.34 0.57 7.23 7.07 0.15

Note: Excess returns calculated using relative methodology.

Over the year, on investment performance, there was a relative excess return of 
1.55% The biggest contributors to the excess return were Macquarie and M&G with 
18.11% and 13.35% outperformance, whilst the biggest detractors were Adams 
Street and LGT with (12.01)% and (10.40%) underperformance.  Overall, three year 
and since inception performance figures were 0.57% and 0.15% respectively above 
the set benchmarks.

Custody

The Northern Trust Company acts as the global custodian of the Fund's assets. As 
part of its normal procedures Northern Trust holds all assets in safe custody, settles 
trades, securities lending, collects dividend income, provides data for corporate 
actions, liaises closely with all of the investment managers and reports on all activity 
on a monthly and quarterly basis. Where holdings are in pooled funds, the underlying 
assets held by the relevant funds' custodian are reported to Northern Trust. Regular 
service reviews take place with Northern Trust to ensure continuous monitoring of 
the Funds requirements. 

Responsible Investing

The Fund is committed to being a long-term steward of the assets in which it invests 
and expects this approach to protect and enhance the value of the Fund in the long 
term. External investment managers are expected to undertake appropriate 
monitoring of underlying investments with regard to their policies and practices on all 
issues which could present a material financial risk to the long- term performance of 
the Fund such as corporate governance and environmental factors, integrating
material ESG factors within its investment analysis and decision making.

22

D
R
A
FT

(0.94)(0.94)

-

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

7.697.69 0.85

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT10.1810.18 1.821.82 3.61

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT9.969.96 9.349.34 0.570.57

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FTNote: Excess returns calculated using relative methodology.Note: Excess returns calculated using relative methodology.

Over the year, on investment performance, there was a relative excess return of Over the year, on investment performance, there was a relative excess return of 
1.55% The biggest contributors to the excess return were Macquarie and M&G with 1.55% The biggest contributors to the excess return were Macquarie and M&G with 
18.11% and 13.35% outperformance, whilst the biggest detractors were Adams 18.11% and 13.35% outperformance, whilst the biggest detractors were Adams 
Street and LGT with (12.01)% and (10.40%) underperformance.  Overall, three year Street and LGT with (12.01)% and (10.40%) underperformance.  Overall, three year 
and since inception performance figures were 0.57% and 0.15% respectively above and since inception performance figures were 0.57% and 0.15% respectively above 

The Northern Trust Company acts as the global custodian of the FundThe Northern Trust Company acts as the global custodian of the Fund
part of its normal procedures Northern Trust holds all assets in safe custody, settles part of its normal procedures Northern Trust holds all assets in safe custody, settles 

securities lending, collects dividend income, provides data for corporsecurities lending, collects dividend income, provides data for corpor

Page 69



Where the Fund invests on a segregated basis, it requests the exclusion of 
investment within the Tobacco sector as part of the mandate. The Fund will not 
pursue policies that are contrary to UK foreign policy or UK defence policy. 

The Fund’s approach to engagement recognises the importance of working in 
partnership to magnify the voice and maximise the influence of investors as owners. 
The Fund expects its investment managers to work collaboratively with others if this 
will lead to greater influence and deliver improved outcomes for shareholders and 
more broadly. The Fund appreciates that to gain the attention of companies in 
addressing governance concerns; it needs to join with other investors sharing similar 
concerns. To ensure effective and consistent use of the voting rights, investment 
managers are tasked with exercising the voting rights accruing to the Fund. If 
important issues impacting local residents do emanate from actions of invested 
companies, the Pensions Committee will contact investment managers in charge of 
assets of such a company to make their opinion known and ask for such to be 
presented at meetings with the company or reflected in their voting pattern.

The Fund complies with the UK Stewardship Code and a statement of compliance 
which explains the arrangements which support its commitment to each of the seven 
principles is also published on the website.

Exercise of voting rights

Fund 
Manager

Meetings 
Voted

Resolutions Votes With 
Management

Votes Against 
Management

Abstentions

UBS 8,718 83,901 75,607 8,294 -

Newton 607 1,983 1,219 728 36

LGIM 915 44,332 39,205 5,127 -

23

D
R
A
FT

known and ask for such to be known and ask for such to be 
presented at meetings with the company or reflected in their voting pattern.presented at meetings with the company or reflected in their voting pattern.

complies with the UK Stewardship Code and a statement of compliance complies with the UK Stewardship Code and a statement of compliance 
which explains the arrangements which support its commitment to each ofwhich explains the arrangements which support its commitment to each of

ResolutionsResolutions Votes With Votes With 
ManagementManagement

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

83,90183,901 75,60775,607

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

1,9831,983 1,2191,219

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

44,33244,332

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Page 70



REPORT OF THE FUND ACTUARY

London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund (“the Fund”)
Actuarial Statement for 2016/17

This statement has been prepared in accordance with Regulation 57(1)(d) of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013. It has been prepared at the request 
of the Administering Authority of the Fund for the purpose of complying with the 
aforementioned regulation. 

Description of Funding Policy

The funding policy is set out in the Administering Authority’s Funding Strategy 
Statement (FSS), dated March 2017.  In summary, the key funding principles are as 
follows:

to ensure the long-term solvency of the Fund using a prudent long-term view.  
This will ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet all 
members’/dependants’ benefits as they fall due for payment;

to ensure that employer contribution rates are reasonably stable where 
appropriate;

to minimise the long-term cash contributions which employers need to pay to 
the Fund by recognising the link between assets and liabilities and adopting an 
investment strategy which balances risk and return (this will also minimise the 
costs to be borne by Council Tax payers);

to reflect the different characteristics of different employers in determining 
contribution rates.  This involves the Fund having a clear and transparent 
funding strategy to demonstrate how each employer can best meet its own 
liabilities over future years; and

to use reasonable measures to reduce the risk to other employers and 
ultimately to the Council Tax payer from an employer defaulting on its pension 
obligations.

The FSS sets out how the Administering Authority seeks to balance the conflicting 
aims of securing the solvency of the Fund and keeping employer contributions stable.  
For employers whose covenant was considered by the Administering Authority to be 
sufficiently strong, contributions have been stabilised to return their portion of the 
Fund to full funding over 25 years if the valuation assumptions are borne out.  Asset-
liability modelling has been carried out which demonstrate that if these contribution 
rates are paid and future contribution changes are constrained as set out in the FSS, 
there a better than 70% chance that the Fund will return to full funding over 25 years.

Funding Position as at the last formal funding valuation

The most recent actuarial valuation carried out under Regulation 62 of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 was as at 31 March 2016. This 
valuation revealed that the Fund’s assets, which at 31 March 2016 were valued at 
£810 million, were sufficient to meet 75% of the liabilities (i.e. the present value of

24

D
R
A
FT

term solvency of the Fund using a prudent longterm solvency of the Fund using a prudent long
This will ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet all This will ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet all 

embers’/dependants’ benefits as they fall due for payment;embers’/dependants’ benefits as they fall due for payment;

to ensure that employer contribution rates are reasonably stable where to ensure that employer contribution rates are reasonably stable where 

term cash contributions which employers need to pay to term cash contributions which employers need to pay to 
the Fund by recognising the link between assets and liabilities and adopting an the Fund by recognising the link between assets and liabilities and adopting an 
investment strategy which balances risk and return (this will also minimise the investment strategy which balances risk and return (this will also minimise the 
costs to be borne by Council Tax payers);costs to be borne by Council Tax payers);

to reflect the different characteristics of different employers in determining to reflect the different characteristics of different employers in determining 
rates.  This involves the Fund having a clear and transparent rates.  This involves the Fund having a clear and transparent 

funding strategy to demonstrate how each employer can best meet its own funding strategy to demonstrate how each employer can best meet its own 
liabilities over future years; andliabilities over future years; and

to use reasonable measures to reduce the risk to other employers and to use reasonable measures to reduce the risk to other employers and 
Council Tax payer from an employer defaulting on its pension Council Tax payer from an employer defaulting on its pension 

Page 71



promised retirement benefits) accrued up to that date. The resulting deficit at the 

2016 valuation was £269 million.

Each employer had contribution requirements set at the valuation, with the aim of 
achieving full funding within a time horizon and probability measure as per the FSS. 
Individual employers’ contributions for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020 were 
set in accordance with the Fund’s funding policy as set out in its FSS.  

Principal Actuarial Assumptions and Method used to value the liabilities

Full details of the methods and assumptions used are described in the 2016 valuation 
report.

Method
The liabilities were assessed using an accrued benefits method which takes into 
account pensionable membership up to the valuation date, and makes an allowance 
for expected future salary growth to retirement or expected earlier date of leaving 
pensionable membership.

Assumptions
A market-related approach was taken to valuing the liabilities, for consistency with the 
valuation of the Fund assets at their market value. 

The key financial assumptions adopted for the 2016 valuation were as follows:

Financial assumptions

31 March 

2016

Discount rate 4.0%

Salary increase assumption 2.6%

Benefit increase assumption (CPI) 2.1%

The key demographic assumption was the allowance made for longevity. The life 
expectancy assumptions are based on the Fund's VitaCurves with improvements in 
line with the CMI 2013 model, assuming the current rate of improvements has 
reached a peak and will converge to long term rate of 1.25% p.a.  Based on these 

assumptions, the average future life expectancies at age 65 are as follows: 

Males Females

Current Pensioners 22.6 years 24.6 years
Future Pensioners* 24.0 years 26.5 years

*Aged 45 at the 2016 Valuation.

Copies of the 2016 valuation report and Funding Strategy Statement are available on 

request from the Administering Authority to the Fund. 

Experience over the period since 31 March 2016

25

D
R
A
FT

The liabilities were assessed using an accrued benefits method which takes into The liabilities were assessed using an accrued benefits method which takes into 
account pensionable membership up to the valuation date, and makes an allowance account pensionable membership up to the valuation date, and makes an allowance 
for expected future salary growth to retirement or expected earlier date of leaving for expected future salary growth to retirement or expected earlier date of leaving 

related approach was taken to valuing the liabilities, for consistency with the related approach was taken to valuing the liabilities, for consistency with the 
valuation of the Fund assets at their market value. valuation of the Fund assets at their market value. 

The key financial assumptions adopted for the 2016 valuation were as follows:The key financial assumptions adopted for the 2016 valuation were as follows:

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Salary increase assumptionSalary increase assumption

Benefit increase assumption (CPI)Benefit increase assumption (CPI)

D
R
A
FT

The key demographic assumption was the allowance made for longevity. The life The key demographic assumption was the allowance made for longevity. The life 
expectancy assumptions are based on the Fund's VitaCurves with improvements in expectancy assumptions are based on the Fund's VitaCurves with improvements in 
line with the CMI 2013 model, assuming the current rate of improvements has line with the CMI 2013 model, assuming the current rate of improvements has 
reached a peak and will converge to long term rate of 1.25% p.a.  Based on these reached a peak and will converge to long term rate of 1.25% p.a.  Based on these 

Page 72



Since the last formal valuation, real bond yields have fallen placing a higher value on 
the liabilities.  The effect of this has been broadly offset by strong asset returns.  Both 
events have roughly cancelled each other out in terms of the impact on the funding 

position as at 31 March 2017. 

The next actuarial valuation will be carried out as at 31 March 2019. The Funding 

Strategy Statement will also be reviewed at that time.

Catherine McFadyen FFA

For and on behalf of Hymans Robertson LLP
31 May 2017

Hymans Robertson LLP, 20 Waterloos Street, Glasgow, G2 6BD

26

D
R
A
FT, 20 Waterloos Street, Glasgow, G2 6BD, 20 Waterloos Street, Glasgow, G2 6BD

Page 73



SCHEME ADMINISTRATION REPORT

Administrators  

Administration of the scheme is undertaken under delegated authority by the 
Pensions Team at Surrey County Council, who took over the administration from 
Capita Employee Benefits with effect from 1st November 2016.  Surrey are 
responsible for:
  

Administering the LGPS on behalf of London Borough of Hillingdon as an 
Employing Authority in accordance with relevant legislation and Committee 
decisions;

Administering the Council's early retirement arrangements in accordance with 
relevant legislation and Committee decisions;

Providing advice to scheme members and external scheme Employers on 
options available under the Council's Pension Scheme; and

Exploiting information technology to improve service standards and efficiency.

Surrey and LB Hillingdon are working closely together to provide a full administration 
service covering the collecting, and reconciling of pension contributions, transfers of 
pension rights in to and out of the LGPS and deferred benefits, payment of pensions, 
calculations for retirements, re-employment, and death benefits. 

The agreement with Surrey details agreed performance targets.  However, due a 
backlog of work transferred from Capita Employee Benefits, formal performance 
monitoring did not commence until 1 April 2017.

Early Retirement 

The total number of scheme members who retired on the grounds of redundancy or 
efficiency of the service is given below, together with the number of scheme 
members who retired on the grounds of permanent ill health. The figures are as at 31 
March of each year. 

Type of Retirement 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Redundancy or Efficiency 23 50 23 19 63

Ill Health 6 3 8 6 5

Total 29 53 31 25 68

Complaints

The Council’s complaints procedure is available to any person who wishes to make a 
suggestion or complaint about the service. Details of individual complaints along with 
the overall number of complaints are reported each year.  There is also a two stage 
statutory Independent Dispute Resolution Procedure within the LGPS regulations. 
Details of this procedure are available on the Pensions web pages at 
www.hillingdon.gov.uk or on request. An application at stage one of the process is 
to the Corporate Pensions Manager.

27

D
R
A
FT

er the Council's Pension Scheme; ander the Council's Pension Scheme; and

information technology to improve service standards and efficiency.information technology to improve service standards and efficiency.

Surrey and LB Hillingdon are working closely together to provide a full administration Surrey and LB Hillingdon are working closely together to provide a full administration 
service covering the collecting, and reconciling of pension contributions, transfers of service covering the collecting, and reconciling of pension contributions, transfers of 
pension rights in to and out of the LGPS and deferred benefits, payment of pensions, pension rights in to and out of the LGPS and deferred benefits, payment of pensions, 

employment, and employment, and death benefitsdeath benefits

The agreement with Surrey details agreed performance targets.  However, due a The agreement with Surrey details agreed performance targets.  However, due a 
backlog of work transferred from Capita Employee backlog of work transferred from Capita Employee 
monitoring did not commence until 1 April 2017.monitoring did not commence until 1 April 2017.

The total number of scheme members who retired on the grounds of redundancy or The total number of scheme members who retired on the grounds of redundancy or 
service is given below, together with the number of scheme service is given below, together with the number of scheme 

members who retired on the grounds of permanent illmembers who retired on the grounds of permanent illD
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Page 74



RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Administering Authority recognises that effective risk management is an 
essential element of good governance in the LGPS and is part of the ongoing 
decision making process of Committee. By identifying and managing risks the 
Administering Authority can:

demonstrate best practice in governance
improve financial management
minimise the risk and effect of adverse conditions
identify and maximise opportunities that might arise
minimise threats.

The Administering Authority adopts best practice risk management, which supports a 
structured and focused approach to managing risks, and ensures risk management 
is an integral part in the governance of the Fund at a strategic and operational level.

In relation to understanding and monitoring risk, the Administering Authority aims to:

integrate risk management into the culture and day-to-day activities of the Fund
raise awareness of the need for risk management by all those connected with 
the management of the Fund (including advisers, employers and other 
partners) 
anticipate and respond positively to change
minimise the probability of negative outcomes for the Fund and its stakeholders
establish and maintain a robust framework and procedures for identification, 
analysis, assessment and management of risk, and the reporting and recording 
of events, based on best practice 
ensure consistent application of the risk management methodology across all 
Fund activities, including projects and partnerships.

A risk report, including the latest risk register and showing the status and direction of 
each risk, is maintained and updated regularly and reported to Pension Committee 
on a quarterly basis. The key types of risk facing the Fund are explained briefly 
below. Further detail on the risks and the mitigating actions are included in the 
Funding Strategy Statement. 

Key Risk 1 – Financial Risks - a team of experienced officers and advisors support 
the Pension Committee who ensure the monitoring of all financial risks for impact.  
The financial risks cover all aspects of the Fund's investment strategy, the impact of 
changes on the returns on investments, the impact of active manager performance, 
and the impact of pay and price inflation.   Currently only the risk of the Fund’s 
investment returns failing to match arising liabilities is reported corporately to the 
Council.

Key Risk 2 – Demographic Risks - The risk of pensioners living longer is the key 
risk in this area.  Active monitoring of retirement patterns allow additional employer 
contributions to be requested if required.

28

D
R
A
FT

structured and focused approach to managing risks, and ensures risk management structured and focused approach to managing risks, and ensures risk management 
is an integral part in the governance of the Fund at a strategic and operational level.is an integral part in the governance of the Fund at a strategic and operational level.

In relation to understanding and monitoring risk, the Administering Authority aims to:In relation to understanding and monitoring risk, the Administering Authority aims to:

integrate risk management into the culture and dayintegrate risk management into the culture and day-to-day activities of the Fundday activities of the Fund
raise awareness of the need for risk management by all those connected with raise awareness of the need for risk management by all those connected with 
the management of the Fund (including advisers, employers and other the management of the Fund (including advisers, employers and other 

anticipate and respond positively to changeanticipate and respond positively to change
minimise the probability of negative outcomes for the Fund and its sminimise the probability of negative outcomes for the Fund and its s
establish and maintain a robust framework and procedures for identification, establish and maintain a robust framework and procedures for identification, 
analysis, assessment and management of risk, and the reporting and recording analysis, assessment and management of risk, and the reporting and recording 
of events, based on best practice of events, based on best practice 
ensure consistent application of the risk management methodology across all ensure consistent application of the risk management methodology across all 
Fund activities, including projects and partnerships.Fund activities, including projects and partnerships.

A risk report, including the latest risk register and showing the status and direction of A risk report, including the latest risk register and showing the status and direction of 
each risk, is maintained and updated each risk, is maintained and updated 

The key types of risk facing the Fund are explained briefly The key types of risk facing the Fund are explained briefly 

Page 75



Key Risk 3 – Regulatory Risks - Changing regulations remain a long-term risk to 
the fund; however, Hillingdon fully participates in consultation exercises where their 
influence can impact on this risk.

Key Risk 4 – Governance Risks - These risks relate mainly to an employer failing 
to notify the administering authority of changes to their structure or operation.  Good
employer communication is vital to keep this risk under control and officer support to 
the Fund helps to further mitigate these risks.

29

D
R
A
FT

Page 76



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS and INDEPENDENT AUDIT 

REPORT

Statement of Responsibilities for the Pension Fund Statement of Accounts

1. Council’s Responsibilities

The Council is required to:

Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to 
secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of 
those affairs.  In this Council that officer is the Corporate Director of Finance; 

Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources 
and safeguard its assets; and

Approve the Pension Fund of Accounts

2. Corporate Director of Finance Responsibilities

The Corporate Director of Finance is responsible for the preparation of the 
Pension Fund accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the 
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom 2016/17 ('the Code').

In preparing this statement of accounts the Corporate Director of Finance has:

Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;

Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; and

Complied with the Local Authority Code.

The Corporate Director of Finance has also:

Kept proper accounting records that were up to date; and

 Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities.

3. Corporate Director of Finance Approval of Pension Fund Accounts

I certify that these accounts present a true and fair view of the financial position of 
the London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund, in terms of the CIPFA/LASAAC 
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in United Kingdom (‘the Code’), 
as at 31st March 2017 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended.

Paul Whaymand
CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE
{DATE}

30

D
R
A
FTrporate Director of Finance is responsible for the preparation of the rporate Director of Finance is responsible for the preparation of the 

Pension Fund accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the Pension Fund accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the 
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 

In preparing this statement of accounts the Corporate Director of Finance has:In preparing this statement of accounts the Corporate Director of Finance has:

Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;

Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; andMade judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; and

Complied with the Local Authority Code.Complied with the Local Authority Code.

The Corporate Director of Finance has also:The Corporate Director of Finance has also:

Kept proper accounting records that were up to date; andKept proper accounting records that were up to date; and

aken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other aken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 

Page 77



Pension Committee Certificate for the Approval of the Pension Fund Accounts

I confirm that these accounts were considered and approved by Pensions 
Committee at the meeting held on {DATE}.

Cllr Philip Corthorne
On behalf of London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund
CHAIRMAN (PENSION COMMITTEE)

31Page 78



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S STATEMENT TO THE MEMBERS OF LONDON 
BOROUGH OF HILLINGDON ON THE PENSION FUND FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

We have examined the pension fund financial statements for the year ended 31 
March 2017, which comprise the Fund Account, the Net Assets Statement and the 
related notes.

Respective responsibilities of the Director of Finance and the auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Director of Finance Responsibilities, 
the Director of Finance is responsible for the preparation of the pension fund’s 
financial statements in accordance with applicable United Kingdom law.

Our responsibility is to report to you our opinion on the consistency of the pension 
fund financial statements within the pension fund annual report with the pension fund 
financial statements in the statement of accounts of London Borough of Hillingdon, 
and its compliance with applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016-17.

We also read the other information contained in the pension fund annual report and 
consider the implications for my report if we become aware of any apparent 
misstatements or material inconsistencies with the pension fund financial 
statements. The other information consists of:

- Chairman’s Foreword;
- Fund Governance and Statutory Information;
- Performance Reviews and the Report of the Fund Actuary;
- Policy Statements
-  

We conducted our work in accordance with Auditor Guidance Note 07 – Auditor 
Reporting, issued by the National Audit Office. Our report on the administering 
authority’s full annual statement of accounts describes the basis of our opinion on 
those financial statements.
Opinion

In our opinion, the pension fund financial statements are consistent with the full 
annual statement of accounts of London Borough of Hillingdon for the year ended 31 
March 2017 and comply with applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016-17.

Tim Sadler (senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Appointed Auditor
Southampton
25 September 2017.

32

D
R
A
FT

fund financial statements within the pension fund annual report with the pension fund fund financial statements within the pension fund annual report with the pension fund 
financial statements in the statement of accounts of London Borough of Hillingdfinancial statements in the statement of accounts of London Borough of Hillingd
and its compliance with applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on and its compliance with applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016-17.17.

We also read the other information contained in the pension fund annual report and We also read the other information contained in the pension fund annual report and 
y report if we become aware of any apparent y report if we become aware of any apparent 

misstatements or material inconsistencies with the pension fund financial misstatements or material inconsistencies with the pension fund financial 
statements. The other information consists of:statements. The other information consists of:

Fund Governance and Statutory Information;Fund Governance and Statutory Information;
Performance Reviews and thePerformance Reviews and the Report of the Fund Actuary;Report of the Fund Actuary;
Policy Statements

We conducted our work in accordance with Auditor Guidance Note 07 We conducted our work in accordance with Auditor Guidance Note 07 
Reporting, issued by the National Audit Office. Our report on the administering Reporting, issued by the National Audit Office. Our report on the administering 
authority’s full annual statement of accounts describes the basis of our opinion on authority’s full annual statement of accounts describes the basis of our opinion on 
those financial statements.those financial statements.

Page 79



Pension Fund Accounts

FUND ACCOUNT

Note 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

£000's £000's

Contributions 4 41,466 39,268

Transfers In from other pension funds 5 1,241 2,744

42,707 42,012

Less: Benefits 6 (39,353) (39,776)

Less: Payments to and on account of leavers 7 (2,243) (2,700)

(41,596) (42,476)

Net additions/(withdrawals) from dealings with members 1,111 (464)

Less: Management expenses 8 (8,385) (6,353)

Net additions/(withdrawals) including fund management expenses (7,274) (6,817)

Return on investments

Investment income 9 16,004 15,511

16B 137,690 (707)
Net return on investments 153,694 14,804

Net Increase in the fund during the year 146,420 7,987

Net Assets at start of year 810,287 802,300

Net Assets at end of year 956,707 810,287

NET ASSETS STATEMENT

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

£000's £000's

Investment Assets 10 955,190 808,967

Investment Liabilities 11 0 (317)

Total net investments 955,190 808,650

Current Assets 12 2,198 2,073

Current Liabilities 13 (681) (436)

956,707 810,287

Paul Whaymand

Corporate Director of Finance

The Pension Fund Accounts summarise the transactions of the scheme and show the net assets at the disposal of members.

They do not take account of liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits after the period end. The actuarial present value of

promised retirement benefits is disclosed at note 19.

27 June 2017

Profit and losses on disposal of investments and changes in 

market value of investments 

Net assets of the fund available to fund benefits at the end of 

the reporting period

33

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT956,707

summarisesummarise the transactions of the scheme and show the net assets at the disposal of members.the transactions of the scheme and show the net assets at the disposal of members.

pay pensions and other benefits after the period end. The actuarial present value ofpay pensions and other benefits after the period end. The actuarial present value of

Net assets of the fund available to fund benefits at the end of Net assets of the fund available to fund benefits at the end of 

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Page 80



Notes to Pension Fund Accounts

1. DESCRIPTION OF THE FUND

a) General

b) Membership

Admitted Bodies:

Belrock (new 2016/17) Heathrow Travel Care

Braybourne Facilities (new 2016/17) Hillingdon & Ealing Citizens Advice

Churchill Kingdom Security (new 2016/17)

Cucina (new 2016/17) Mitie Facilities Management

Greenwich Leisure Servest Group Ltd

Hayward Services (new 2016/17) Taylor Shaw (Caterlink, Caterplus & Genuine Dining)

Scheduled Bodies:

Barnhill Academy London Housing Consortium

Belmore Academy Orchard Hill College Academy Trust

Bishop Ramsey Academy Skills HUB (formerly Hillingdon Tuition Centre)

Bishopshalt Academy Young Peoples Academy (formerly Chantry School)

Charville Academy Park Federation Trust

Douay Martyrs Academy Cranford Park Academy

Eden Academy Trust Lake Farm Park Federation 

Moorcroft School Wood End Academy

Pentland Field School QED Academy Trust

Grangewood School Coteford Academy

Elliot Foundation Trust Queensmead Academy

Hillingdon Primary School Northwood Academy

John Locke Academy Rosedale Hewens Academy Trust

Pinkwell School Rosedale College

Guru Nanak Academy Trust Mellowlane School

Nanak Sar Primary School Brookside Primary School

Guru Nanak Sikh Academy Ruislip High School

Harefield Academy Ryefield Primary School 

Haydon Academy Vyners Academy

Heathrow Aviation Engineering Stockley Academy

LBDS Frays Academy Trust Swakeleys Academy

Cowley St. Lawrence Academy Uxbridge Academy

Laurel Lane Academy Uxbridge College

St. Matthews Primary School Willows Academy

St. Martins Primary School

The London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund ("the fund") is part of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) and is

administered by the London Borough of Hillingdon ("the administering body"). The Council is the reporting entity for this

pension fund. The fund is a contributory defined benefits scheme established in accordance with statute to provide benefits to

members and retired members of the London Borough of Hillingdon and Admitted and Scheduled bodies in the fund. Benefits

in respect of service from 1 April 2014 are based on career average revalued earnings (CARE) scheme. Benefits in respect of

past service up to 31 March 2014 are based on final salary. Pensions move in line with the Consumer Price index (CPI)

annually. Benefits paid out include a pension payable to former members and their dependants, lump sum retirement benefits,

payment of death benefits where death occurs in service or retirement, and early payment of benefits on medical grounds.   

The fund is governed by the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 and administered in accordance with the following secondary

legislation:

  - Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended) 

  - Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations 2014 (as amended)

  - Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016

Membership of the LGPS is voluntary and employees are free to choose whether to join the scheme, remain in the scheme or

make their own personal arrangements outside of the scheme. Due to government legislation, since 1 February 2013 all new

employees who are not in the scheme are automatically enrolled. Members have the option to opt out of the scheme.

Employees who have opted out are then re-enrolled every 3 years, when they can again opt out.

Employers who contribute to the fund in addition to London Borough of Hillingdon are :   

34

D
R
A
FT

Heathrow Travel CareHeathrow Travel Care

Hillingdon & Ealing Citizens AdviceHillingdon & Ealing Citizens Advice

Kingdom Security (new 2016/17)Kingdom Security (new 2016/17)

Mitie Facilities ManagementMitie Facilities Management

D
R
A
FT

  - Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016  - Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016

choose whetherchoose whether toto joinjoin the scheme, remain

toto government legislation,government legislation,

the scheme are automatically enrolled. Members have the optionthe scheme are automatically enrolled. Members have the option

Employees who have opted out are then re-enrolled every 3 years, when they can again opt out.Employees who have opted out are then re-enrolled every 3 years, when they can again opt out.

Employers who contribute to the fund in addition to London Borough of Hillingdon are :   Employers who contribute to the fund in addition to London Borough of Hillingdon are :   

Page 81



Notes to Pension Fund Accounts

London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Number of employers with active members 53 43

Number of employees in scheme

London Borough of Hillingdon 5,862 5,307

Other employers 2,822 2,960

Total 8,684 8,267

Number of Pensioners

London Borough of Hillingdon 5,314 5,461

Other employers 880 783

Total 6,194 6,244

Deferred Pensioners

London Borough of Hillingdon 6,279 4,600

Other employers 946 2,058

Total 7,225 6,658

c) Funding

d) Investments

e) Governance

Pensions Committee 
Cllr Philip Corthorne (Chairman)

Cllr Michael Markham (Vice-Chairman) Cllr Beulah East

Cllr Peter Davis

Pensions Board
Cllr David Simmonds (Chairman) Cllr John Morse

Cllr Alan Chapman (Vice-Chairman)

Mr Andrew Scott (Member Representative) 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

Venetia Rogers (Member Representative)

As at 31 March 2017 there were 8,684 active members contributing to the fund, with 6,194 members in receipt of benefit and

7,225 members entitled to deferred benefits.

The fund is financed by contributions from the employers, pension fund members and by income from the fund's investments.

The pension fund accounts do not take account of liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits in the future. The contributions

from the London Borough of Hillingdon and other participating employers are set through the triennial actuarial valuation at a

rate sufficient to meet the long-term liabilities of the fund.

The pension fund investments are managed externally by fund managers: Adams Street Partners, AEW UK, GMO

Investments (defunded October 2016), JP Morgan Asset Management, Kempen International Investments (defunded June

2016), Legal & General Investment Management (appointed October 2016), LGT Capital Partners, London CIV (Appointed

June 2016), Macquarie Investments, Newton Asset Management, Permira LLP, Ruffer LLP (assets transferred to London CIV

June 2016), State Street Global Advisors (defunded October 2016) and UBS Global Asset Management. In addition, there are

two direct investments into pooled funds with M&G Investments. 

The accounts have been compiled in accordance to the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United

Kingdom 2016/17 which is based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as amended for the public sector and

underpinned by the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations. The accounts have been prepared on an accruals

basis, except for transfer values which are accounted for on a cash basis, and summarise the fund transactions and report on

the net assets available to pay pension benefits as at 31 March 2017.

The accounts do not take into account obligations to pay benefits and pensions that fall due after the reporting date (31 March

2017).

Roger Hackett (Member Representative)

The fund is overseen by the Pensions Committee (comprised of Councillors) and the Pensions Board (comprised of an even

number of employer and member representatives). The performance of the fund managers is monitored by the Pensions

Committee and governance is overseen by the Pensions Board. Pensions Committee and Pensions Board consisted of the

following members in 2016/17:

Cllr Tony Eginton

35

D
R
A
FT

financed by contributions from the employers, pension fund members and by income from the fund's investments.financed by contributions from the employers, pension fund members and by income from the fund's investments.

pay pensions and other benefitspay pensions and other benefits

and other participating employers are set through the triennial actuarial valuation atand other participating employers are set through the triennial actuarial valuation at

The pension fund investments are managed externally by fund managers: Adams Street Partners,The pension fund investments are managed externally by fund managers: Adams Street Partners,

AssetAsset Management, Kempen International Investments (defunded JuneManagement, Kempen International Investments (defunded June

General Investment Management (appointed October 2016), LGT Capital Partners, LondonGeneral Investment Management (appointed October 2016), LGT Capital Partners, London

AssetAsset Management,Management, PermiraPermira

Street Global Advisors (defunded October 2016) andStreet Global Advisors (defunded October 2016) and

two direct investments into pooled funds with M&G Investments. two direct investments into pooled funds with M&G Investments. 

overseen by the Pensions Committee (comprised of Councillors) and the Pensions Board (comprised of an evenoverseen by the Pensions Committee (comprised of Councillors) and the Pensions Board (comprised of an even

number of employer and member representatives). The performance of the fund managersnumber of employer and member representatives). The performance of the fund managers

overseen by the Pensions Board. Pensions Committee and Pensions Board consisted of theoverseen by the Pensions Board. Pensions Committee and Pensions Board consisted of the

Page 82



Notes to Pension Fund Accounts

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Critical Judgements and Uncertainties

All assets are disclosed in the financial statements at their fair value.

j) Cash and cash equivalents are held in the custody accounts by fund managers as agreed in the individual Investment

Management Agreements (IMA). Cash held is at the discretion of the manager but must not exceed the stipulated permitted 

range in the IMA

f) Interest on property developments - property is held in unit trusts for the pension fund, the return received is calculated in

accordance with the unit price at the Net Assets Statement date.

a) Valuation of assets

b) Foreign currency translation of assets and liabilities and forward foreign exchange contracts are converted into sterling at

the closing middle rates of exchange in the Net Assets Statement. Overseas income is converted at rates of exchange ruling

when remitted.

d) Investment management expenses are recorded at cost when the fund managers/custodian invoice the fund on a quarterly

basis or provide a fee schedule deducted at source. Expenses are recorded on an accruals basis.

e) Administration expenses are paid when invoiced by third party providers through the administrating authority's payment

system and recharged to the Pension fund.

c) Acquisition costs of investments occur as brokerage commission when investments are purchased. They are recorded in

the cost figure on an accruals basis.

- Market-quoted investments: Equities are valued at bid market prices available on the final day of the accounting period. 

l) Unquoted Alternative Investments - Fair values of alternative investments are highly subjective in nature. They are

inherently based on forward-looking estimates and judgements involving many factors. Unquoted alternative investments are

valued by investment managers using methods such as IFRS fair value principles, discounted cash flow method and

guidelines set out by the International Private Equity and Venture Capital Association (IPEV), of which the British Venture

Capital Association is a founding member. The value of alternative investments as at 31 March 2017 was £114,851k

(£109,712k at 31 March 2016).

m) Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty - The pension fund Accounts

contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the fund about the future or that are otherwise uncertain.

Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because

balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates.

- Fixed income securities including short-term instruments are priced based on evaluated prices provided by independent 

pricing services.

- For pooled funds, if bid prices are provided by the fund administrators then these are used, otherwise the Net Asset Value 

is used.

k) Investment Income - dividends from quoted securities are accrued when the securities are quoted ex-dividend. Interest on

cash deposits are accrued on daily basis.

g) Contributions are accounted for in the period in which they fall due. Normal contributions received during the year are in

accordance with the rates and adjustments certificate.

h) Benefits are accounted for in the period in which they fall due. All benefits are calculated in accordance with the statutory

regulations in force at the relevant benefit date.

i) Transfers are accounted for on a cash basis, as the amount payable or receivable by the scheme is not determined until

payment is actually made and accepted by the recipient. Group transfers are accounted for under the agreement which they

are made.

 - Private Equity is valued using the latest audited valuation from the Limited Partner/General Partner. This is adjusted for 

any capital calls/distributions that have taken place since the date of the statement. Unquoted investments for Private 

Placements and Infrastructure are priced using discounted cash flow methodology.

36

D
R
A
FT

accordance with the rates and adjustments certificate.accordance with the rates and adjustments certificate.

the periodthe period inin whichwhich they fall due.they fall due.

regulations in force at the relevant benefit date.regulations in force at the relevant benefit date.

D
R
A
FT

in unitunit truststrusts for the pension fund, the return receivedfor the pension fund, the return received

accordance with the unit price at the Net Assets Statement date.accordance with the unit price at the Net Assets Statement date.

when the fund managers/custodian invoice the fund onwhen the fund managers/custodian invoice the fund on

basis or provide a fee schedule deducted at source. Expenses are recorded on an accruals basis.basis or provide a fee schedule deducted at source. Expenses are recorded on an accruals basis.

e) Administration expenses are paid when invoiced by third party providers through the administrating authority's paymente) Administration expenses are paid when invoiced by third party providers through the administrating authority's payment

when investments are purchased. They are recordedwhen investments are purchased. They are recorded

the periodthe period inin whichwhich they fall due. Normal contributions received during the year arethey fall due. Normal contributions received during the year are

Transfers are accounted for onTransfers are accounted for on a casha cash basis, as the amount payable or receivable by the schemebasis, as the amount payable or receivable by the scheme

actually made and accepted by the recipient. Group transfers are accounted for under the agreementactually made and accepted by the recipient. Group transfers are accounted for under the agreement

Page 83



Notes to Pension Fund Accounts

Item Uncertainties

Private equity

Private equity investments are valued at fair

value in accordance with British Venture

Capital Association guidelines or

commensurate overseas equivalent. These

investments are not publicly listed and as

such there is a degree of estimation involved

in the valuation.

Item Uncertainties

Infrastructure - Macquarie 

Infrastructure Real Assets

Infrastructure Valuation represents the fair

value of investments held at 31 March 2017.

The valuations have been completed by

MIRA (Macquarie Infrastructure Real

Assets) in accordance with ASC 820-10

(Fair Value Measurements), under which the

fair value is determined to be the price that

would be received upon sale of the

investments in an orderly transaction

between market participants. These

investments are not publicly listed and as

such there is a degree of estimation involved

in the valuation.

Item Uncertainties

Private Finance - M&G

Private Finance investments are valued at

par as they are mostly floating rate notes

tied to LIBOR. Final valuation is undertaken

by the analysts employed by the fund

manager as they are not traded on the open

market.

Item Uncertainties

Direct Lending - Permira Credit 

Solutions

Private Debt Investments are valued on a

quarterly basis and in accordance with

International Private Equity and Venture

Capital valuation guidelines. These

investments are not publicly listed and as

such there is a degree of estimation involved

in the valuation.

Item Uncertainties

Actuarial present value of 

promised retirement benefits

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions

depends on a number of complex

judgements relating to the discount rates

used, the rates at which salaries are

projected to increase, changes in retirement

ages, mortality rates and expected returns

on pension fund assets. A firm of actuaries,

Hymans Robertson, are engaged to provide

the fund with expert advice about the

assumptions to be applied.

Effect if actual results differ from 

assumptions

The total private finance investments in the

financial statements are £22,447k. There is a

risk that this investment may be under or

overstated in the accounts. There are no

openly traded market prices available for this

asset category.

Effect if actual results differ from 

assumptions

The total private equity investments in the

financial statements are £27,128k. There is a

risk that this investment may be under- or

overstated in the accounts.

Items where there is a significant risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

Effect if actual results differ from 

assumptions

The effects on the net pension liability of

changes in individual assumptions can be

measured. For instance, an increase in the

discount rate assumption would result in a

decrease in pension liability. An increase in

assumed earnings would increase the value of

liabilities and an increase in assumed life

expectancy would increase the liability.

Effect if actual results differ from 

assumptions

The total Private Debt investments in the

financial statements are £38,233k. There is a

risk that this investment may be under or

overstated in the accounts. There are no

openly traded market prices available for this

asset category.

Effect if actual results differ from 

assumptions

The total infrastructure alternative investments

in the financial statements are £27,002k.

There is a risk that this investment may be

under or overstated in the accounts. There are

no openly traded market prices available for

this asset category.

37

D
R
A
FT

Private Debt Investments are valued onPrivate Debt Investments are valued on

quarterly basis andquarterly basis and

International Private Equity and VentureInternational Private Equity and VentureD
R
A
FT

Uncertainties

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Private Finance investments are valued atPrivate Finance investments are valued at

par as they are mostly floating rate notespar as they are mostly floating rate notes

to LIBOR.to LIBOR. Final valuationFinal valuation isis undertaken

by the analysts employed by the fundby the analysts employed by the fund

manager as they are not traded on the openmanager as they are not traded on the open

market.market.

D
R
A
FT

Uncertainties

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

The total infrastructure alternative investmentsThe total infrastructure alternative investments

inin the financial statements are £27,002k.the financial statements are £27,002k.

ThereThere is a risk

D
R
A
FT
thethe

be the price thatbe the price that

would be received upon sale of thewould be received upon sale of the

an orderly transactionan orderly transaction

between market participants. Thesebetween market participants. These

listedlisted and asand as

degree of estimation involveddegree of estimation involved

under or overstatedunder or overstated

no openly traded market prices available forno openly traded market prices available for

this asset category.this asset category.

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Page 84



Notes to Pension Fund Accounts

4. CONTRIBUTIONS

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

By category £000's £000's

Employees 9,356 9,382

Employers Contributions:

Normal 27,134 25,118

Deficit Funding 4,976 4,768

41,466 39,268

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

By authority £000's £000's

LB Hillingdon 30,535 29,082

Scheduled Bodies 10,459 9,768

Admitted Bodies 472 418

41,466 39,268

5. TRANSFERS IN

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

£000's £000's

Individual transfers in from other schemes 1,241 2,744

6. BENEFITS

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

By category £000's £000's

Pensions (32,435) (31,597)

Commutations and Lump Sum Retirement Benefits (6,236) (7,598)

Lump Sum Death Benefits (682) (581)

(39,353) (39,776)

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

By authority £000's £000's

LB Hillingdon (37,561) (38,969)

Scheduled Bodies (1,443) (701)

Admitted Bodies (349) (106)

(39,353) (39,776)

Deficit Funding: At the actuarial valuation on 31 March 2016 the fund was 75% funded, with the remaining 25% deficit to be

recovered over a period of 25 years.

Note: Contributions disclosure notes format is different to that published in 2015/16 in line with the CIPFA Code, as a result 

the 2015/16 figures have been restated

38

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

31 March 2017

£000's

Commutations and Lump Sum Retirement BenefitsCommutations and Lump Sum Retirement BenefitsD
R
A
FTNote: Contributions disclosure notes format is different to that published in 2015/16 in line with the CIPFA Code, as a result Note: Contributions disclosure notes format is different to that published in 2015/16 in line with the CIPFA Code, as a result 

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT39,268

D
R
A
FT41,466

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

30,535

10,459

472

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Page 85



Notes to Pension Fund Accounts

7. PAYMENTS TO AND ON ACCOUNT OF LEAVERS

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

£000's £000's

Refunds to members leaving service (81) (97)

Individual transfers out to other schemes (2,162) (2,603)

(2,243) (2,700)

8. MANAGEMENT EXPENSES

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

£000's £000's

Administrative Costs (902) (570)

Investment Management Expenses* (6,761) (5,445)

Oversight and Governance (722) (338)

(8,385) (6,353)

* Further detailed Breakdown of Investment Management Expenses 

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

£000's £000's

Management Fees 5,359 4,807

Performance Related Fees 917 279

Custody Fees 96 108

Transaction Costs 389 251

6,761 5,445

8A. OTHER FUND ACCOUNT DISCLOSURES

External Audit Costs

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

£000's £000's

Payable in Respect of External Audit 21 21

21 21

9. INVESTMENT INCOME

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

£000's £000's

Income from Equities 5,071 5,224

Income from Bonds 37 290

Private Equity Income 4,209 6,147

Pooled Property Investments 4,774 4,458

Pooled Investments- Unit trusts and other 

managed funds
2,669 666

Interest on cash deposits 63 94

Other (for example from stock lending or 

underwriting)
(819) (1,368)

16,004 15,511

The administering authority incurred costs in managing the fund for the period ending 31 March 2017 as follows:

The above analysis of the costs of managing the London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund has been prepared in 

accordance with the CIPFA guidance on LGPS management expenses 2016.

Note: Investment management and Oversight and Governances expenses for 2016 restated due to re-categorisation of 

£107k custody fees from oversight & governance to Investment management fees

Note: Investment income categories are different to that published in 2015/16 and in line with the CIPFA Code changes, the 

2015/16 figures have been restated to provide comparative table of figures.

39

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

8A. OTHER FUND ACCOUNT DISCLOSURES8A. OTHER FUND ACCOUNT DISCLOSURES

31 March 2017

The above analysis of the costs of managing the London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund has been prepared in The above analysis of the costs of managing the London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund has been prepared in 

accordance with the CIPFA guidance on LGPS management expenses 2016.accordance with the CIPFA guidance on LGPS management expenses 2016.

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

6,761

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT31 March 201631 March 2016

£000's£000's

4,8074,807

279

96 108

389 251251

Note: Investment management and Oversight and Governances expenses for 2016 restated due to re-categorisation of Note: Investment management and Oversight and Governances expenses for 2016 restated due to re-categorisation of 

£107k custody fees from oversight & governance to Investment management fees£107k custody fees from oversight & governance to Investment management fees

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Page 86



10. INVESTMENTS
31 March 

2017

31 March 

2016

£000's £000's

Investment Assets

Bonds 0 34,898

Equities 123,992 123,599

Pooled investments 672,256 495,752

Pooled property investments 114,894 106,360

Private equity 27,128 30,082

Other Investment balances

Cash deposits 16,276 17,296

Investment income due 644 980

Total investment assets 955,190 808,967

Investment liabilities

Derivative contracts:

Forward currency contracts 0 (317)

Total investment liabilities 0 (317)

Net investment assets 955,190 808,650

10A. RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN INVESTMENTS AND DERIVATIVES

2016/17

Value                          

1 April 2016

£000's

Purchases at 

cost 

£000's

Sales 

proceeds 

£000's

Change in 

market value 

£000's

Value                   

31 March 2017 

£000's

Bonds 34,898 4,704 (40,461) 859 0

Equities 123,599 139,652 (167,581) 28,322 123,992

Pooled Investments 495,752 721,833 (645,615) 100,286 672,256

Pooled Property Investments 106,360 11,904 (4,825) 1,455 114,894

Private Equity 30,082 865 (5,287) 1,468 27,128

790,691 878,958 (863,769) 132,390 938,270

Forward Foreign Exchange (317) 4,367 (3,152) (898) 0

790,374 883,325 (866,921) 131,492 938,270
Other investment balances

Cash Deposits 17,296 256 16,276

Investment Income Due 980 644

Adjustments to Market Value Changes 5,942

Total Investment Assets 808,650 137,690 955,190

2015/16

Restated

Value

1 April 2015 

£000's

Purchases at 

cost 

£000's

Sales 

proceeds 

£000's

Change in 

market value 

£000's

Value

31 March 2016

£000's

Bonds 64,834 6,087 (37,691) 1,668 34,898

Equities 136,322 25,428 (24,919) (13,232) 123,599

Pooled Investments 449,990 100,335 (53,162) (1,411) 495,752

Pooled Property Investments 84,768 15,081 (3,187) 9,698 106,360

Private Equity 35,275 1,201 (4,878) (1,516) 30,082

771,189 148,132 (123,837) (4,793) 790,691

Forward Foreign Exchange (745) 3,519 (1,608) (1,483) (317)

770,444 151,651 (125,445) (6,276) 790,374

Other investment balances

Cash Deposits 28,867 432 17,296

Investment Income Due 913 980

Adjustments to Market Value Changes 745 5,137 0

Total Investment Assets 800,969 (707) 808,650

Notes to Pension Fund Accounts

Purchases and sales of derivatives are recognised in Note 14A above as follows: Forward currency contracts – forward 

foreign exchange contracts settled during the period are reported on a gross basis as gross receipts and payments.

Note: Investment assets categories are different to that published in 2015/16 in line with the CIPFA Code, as a result the 

2015/16 figures have been restated.
40

D
R
A
FT

790,374790,374

17,29617,296

980980

D
R
A
FT

Adjustments to Market Value ChangesAdjustments to Market Value Changes D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

878,958

4,367

D
R
A
FT

790,691790,691

(317)(317)

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

4,7044,704

139,652139,652

721,833721,833

11,90411,904

865865

D
R
A
FT

123,599123,599

495,752495,752

106,360

30,08230,082

D
R
A
FT

(40,461)

(167,581)

(645,615)

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FTSales Sales 

proceeds proceeds 

£000's

D
R
A
FTPurchases at Purchases at 

cost cost 

£000's£000's

D
R
A
FTChange in 

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT10A. RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN INVESTMENTS AND DERIVATIVES10A. RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN INVESTMENTS AND DERIVATIVES

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Page 87



Notes to Pension Fund Accounts

10B. ANALYSIS OF INVESTMENTS

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

£000's £000's

Bonds

UK

Public sector quoted 0 18,026

Overseas

Public sector quoted 0 16,872

0 34,898

Equities

UK

Quoted 123,992 98,337

Overseas

Quoted 0 25,262

123,992 123,599

Pooled funds - additional analysis

UK

Fixed income unit trust 54,622 36,603

Unit trusts 242,454 45,134

Unitised insurance policies 287,498 179,997

Limited liability partnerships 87,682 79,590

Overseas

Unit trusts 0 154,378

672,256 495,702

Pooled property Investments 114,894 106,369

Private equity 27,128 30,123

Cash deposits 16,276 17,296

Investment income due 644 980

158,942 154,768

Total investment assets 955,190 808,967

Investment liabilities

Derivatives 0 (317)

Total investment liabilities 0 (317)

Net investment assets 955,190 808,650

10C. INVESTMENTS ANALYSED BY FUND MANAGER
Investment Assets and Liabilities by Fund Manager

Fund Manager

Market Value

31 March 2017

£000's

%

Market Value

31 March 2016

£000's

%

Adams Street Partners 17,532 2 19,195 2

AEW UK 47,565 5 36,094 4

GMO 0 0 62,041 8

JP Morgan Asset Management 54,622 6 36,603 5

Kempen International Investments 0 0 87,317 11

Legal & General Investment Management 287,498 30 0 0

LGT Capital Partners 9,596 1 10,887 1

London CIV - Ruffer 104,440 11 0 0

M&G Investments 22,447 2 39,150 5

Macquarie Infrastructure 27,002 3 19,805 2

Newton Asset Management 137,948 14 30,395 4

Permira Credit Solutions 38,233 4 20,634 3

Ruffer LLP 0 0 92,546 11

State Street Global Advisors 0 0 179,997 22

UBS Global Asset Management (Equities) 130,119 14 97,271 12

UBS Global Asset Management (Property) 68,499 7 71,112 9

Other* 9,689 1 5,603 1

Total 955,190 100 808,650 100

* Other includes pending trades, accrued income and cash held in Custody accounts, independent of Fund managers not

mandated to hold cash. 41

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

955,190

10C. INVESTMENTS ANALYSED BY FUND MANAGER10C. INVESTMENTS ANALYSED BY FUND MANAGERD
R
A
FT

Investment Assets and Liabilities by Fund ManagerInvestment Assets and Liabilities by Fund ManagerD
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

955,190

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

158,942

D
R
A
FT

106,369

30,123

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

114,894

27,128

16,276

644

D
R
A
FT

495,702

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

36,60336,603

45,13445,134

179,997179,997

79,59079,590

154,378154,378

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Page 88



Notes to Pension Fund Accounts

There are no fund investments which constitute more than 5% of net assets of the scheme.

10D. STOCK LENDING

11. INVESTMENT LIABILITIES
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

£000's £000's

Forward foreign exchange unrealised loss 0 (317)

0 (317)

12. CURRENT ASSETS
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Analysis of debtors £000's £000's

Employers' contributions due 68 364

Employees' contributions due 19 100

Debtor: Other local authorities (LB Hillingdon) 0 30
Cash balances 2,111 1,579

2,198 2,073

13. CURRENT LIABILITIES
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Analysis of creditors £000's £000's

Creditor: Other local authorities (LB Hillingdon) (227) 0

Other entities (454) (436)

(681) (436)

Note:Other entities balance is due to the pension fund from bodies external to the government e.g fund managers

The fund’s investment strategy sets the parameters for the fund’s stock-lending programme. At the year-end, the value of 

quoted equities on loan was £21,444K (31 March 2016: £17,138K). These equities continue to be recognised in the fund’s 

financial statements.

Counterparty risk is managed through holding collateral at the fund’s custodian bank. At the year-end the fund held collateral 

(via the custodian) at fair value of £23,412K (31 March 2016: £18,492k) representing 109% of stock lent. Collateral consists of 

acceptable securities and government debt.

Stock-lending commissions are remitted to the fund via the custodian. During the period the stock is on loan, the voting rights 

of the loaned stock pass to the borrower. There are no liabilities associated with the loaned assets.

42

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Creditor: Other local authorities (LB Hillingdon)Creditor: Other local authorities (LB Hillingdon)

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

68

19

0
2,111

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT31 March 2017 31 March 2016

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT
0

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Page 89



Notes to Pension Fund Accounts

14. ADDITIONAL VOLUNTARY CONTRIBUTIONS

Market Value

31 March 2017 

Market Value

31 March 2016

£000's £000's

Prudential 5,975 5,937
5,975 5,937

15. FAIR VALUE – BASIS OF VALUATION

Description of asset
Valuation 

hierarchy
Basis of valuation

Observable and 

unobservable 

inputs

Key sensitivities affecting the 

valuations provided

Market quoted investments Level 1

Published bid 

market price ruling 

on the final day of 

accounting period.

Not required Not required

Quoted bonds Level 1

Fixed interest 

securities are 

valued at market 

value based on 

current yields.

Not required Not required

Pooled investments - 

overseas unit trusts and 

property funds

Level 2

Closing bid price 

where bid and offer 

prices are 

published. Closing 

single price where 

single price is 

published.

NAV-based pricing 

set on a forward 

pricing basis

Not required

Unquoted equity Level 3

Comparable 

valuation of similar 

companies in 

accordance with 

International 

Private Equity and 

Venture Capital 

Valuation 

Guidelines (2012)

EBITDA multiple 

Revenue multiple 

Discount for lack of 

marketability  Control 

premium

Valuations could be affected by 

material events occurring 

between the date of the financial 

statements provided and the 

pension fund’s own reporting 

date, by changes to expected 

cashflows, and by any differences 

between audited and unaudited 

accounts.

Additional Voluntary Contributions paid by scheme members are not included in the accounts. The additional voluntary

contributions are paid by scheme members directly to Prudential Assurance Company, who manage these monies

independently of the fund and, as determined by the fund actuary, do not form part of the fund valuation.  

According to information provided by Prudential, £220k was received in additional voluntary contributions by members. Any

transfer of additional contributions into the fund during the year are included in the employee contributions value as detailed in

note 4.

The basis of the valuation of each class of investment asset is set out below. There has been no change in the valuation 

techniques used during the year. All assets have been valued using fair value techniques which represent the highest and 

best price available at the reporting date.

43

D
R
A
FT

Level 2Level 2

Closing bid price Closing bid price 

where bid and offer where bid and offer 

prices are prices are 

published. Closing published. Closing 

single price where D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Fixed interest Fixed interest 

securities are securities are 

valued at market valued at market 

value based on value based on 

current yields.current yields.

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FTObservable and 

unobservable 

inputs

Published bid 

market price ruling market price ruling 

on the final day of on the final day of 

accounting period.accounting period.

Not requiredNot required

The basis of the valuation of each class of investment asset is set out below. There has been no change in the valuation The basis of the valuation of each class of investment asset is set out below. There has been no change in the valuation 

techniques used during the year. All assets have been valued using fair value techniques which represent the highest and techniques used during the year. All assets have been valued using fair value techniques which represent the highest and 

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Page 90



Notes to Pension Fund Accounts

Valuation range

(+/-)

Market Value

31 March 2017

£000's

Value on Increase 

£000's

Value on Decrease 

£000's

Pooled investments - Limited 

Liability Partnerships (Infrastructure)
10% 27,002 29,702 24,302

Pooled investments - Limited 

Liability Partnerships (Private 

Credit)

10% 60,680 66,748 54,612

Private equity & venture Capital 5% 27,128 28,484 25,772

Ventuire Capital 5% 41 43 39

Total 114,851 124,978 104,724

15A: FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Having analysed historical data and current market trends, and consulted with fund managers, the fund has determined that 

the valuation methods described above are likely to be accurate to within the following ranges, and has set out below the 

consequent potential impact on the closing value of investments held at 31 March 2017. It is worth noting the sensitivity 

analysis below is just one of the possible changes to assets value due to the impact of factors affecting valuation methodology 

employed by the fund managers. Sensitivity being measured in this note differs from those in Note 17 (other price risks).

Sensitivity of assets valued at level 3

Asset and liability valuations have been classified into three levels, according to the quality and reliability of information used 

to determine fair values. Transfers between levels are recognised in the year in which they occur.

Assets and liabilities at level 3 are those where at least one input that could have a significant effect on the instrument’s 

valuation is not based on observable market data. 

Assets and liabilities at level 2 are those where quoted market prices are not available; for example, where an instrument is 

traded in a market that is not considered to be active, or where valuation techniques are used to determine fair value.

Assets and liabilities at level 1 are those where the fair values are derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for 

identical assets or liabilities. Products classified as level 1 comprise quoted equities, quoted fixed securities, quoted index 

linked securities and unit trusts.

44

D
R
A
FT

Assets and liabilities at level 3 are those where at least one input that could have a significant effect on the instrument’s Assets and liabilities at level 3 are those where at least one input that could have a significant effect on the instrument’s 

valuation is not based on observable market data. valuation is not based on observable market data. D
R
A
FT

Assets and liabilities at level 2 are those where quoted market prices are not available; for example, where an instrument is Assets and liabilities at level 2 are those where quoted market prices are not available; for example, where an instrument is 

D
R
A
FTAsset and liability valuations have been classified into three levels, according to the quality and reliability of information Asset and liability valuations have been classified into three levels, according to the quality and reliability of information 

to determine fair values. Transfers between levels are recognised in the year in which they occur.to determine fair values. Transfers between levels are recognised in the year in which they occur.

traded in a market that is not considered to be active, or where valuation techniques are used to determine fair value.traded in a market that is not considered to be active, or where valuation techniques are used to determine fair value.

Assets and liabilities at level 1 are those where the fair values are derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets fAssets and liabilities at level 1 are those where the fair values are derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets f

identical assets or liabilities. Products classified as level 1 comprise quoted equities, quoted fixed securities, quoted indexidentical assets or liabilities. Products classified as level 1 comprise quoted equities, quoted fixed securities, quoted index

D
R
A
FT114,851114,851

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

4141

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Page 91



Values as at 31 March 2017

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£000's £000's £000's £000's

124,016 699,403 114,851 938,270

Loans and Receivables 16,920 0 0 16,920

0 0 0 0

Net investment Assets 140,936 699,403 114,851 955,190

Values as at 31 March 2016

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£000's £000's £000's £000's

158,519 522,460 109,712 790,691

Loans and Receivables 18,276 0 0 18,276

(317) 0 0 (317)

Net investment Assets 176,478 522,460 109,712 808,650

15B. RESTATEMENT OF VALUATION HIERARCHIES

15C. RECONCILIATION OF FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS WITHIN LEVEL 3

Level 3 Assets Reconciliation 

Value 

1 April 2016

Purchases at 

cost

Sales 

proceeds

Unrealised 

gains/(losses)

Realised 

gains/(losses)

Value

31 March 

2017

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Private Equity - Adams Street 

Partners , LGT Capital 

Partners & UBS

30,082 865 (5,287) 624 844 27,128

Private Finance - M&G 39,150 0 (23,266) 1,225 5,338 22,447

Infrastructure - Maquarie 19,805 5,276 (1,659) 3,350 230 27,002

Venture Capital - UBS 41 0 0 0 0 41

Direct Lending - Permira 20,634 17,279 (126) 320 126 38,233

109,712 23,420 (30,338) 5,519 6,538 114,851

Other investment balances 0 0 0

Total Investment Assets 109,712 6,538 114,851

There were no transfers in or out of level 3 assets in 2016/17

With 

Significant 

Unobservable 

Inputs

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Using 

Observable 

Inputs

The following managers' assets for 2015-16 have been re-categorised from level 1 to level 2: Newton Asset Management- 

£30,396k, Kempen International- £87,317k, State Street Asset Management- £179,997k, GMO Investments- £62,041k and JP 

Morgan Asset Management- £36,603k.

The following table provides an analysis of the financial assets and liabilities of the pension fund grouped into levels 1 to 3, 

based on the level at which the fair value is observable.

Notes to Pension Fund Accounts

Quoted 

Market Price

Using 

Observable 

Inputs

Quoted 

Market Price

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

With 

Significant 

Unobservable 

Inputs

45

D
R
A
FT

15C. RECONCILIATION OF FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS WITHIN LEVEL 315C. RECONCILIATION OF FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS WITHIN LEVEL 3D
R
A
FT158,519158,519

18,27618,276

(317)(317)

176,478176,478

15B. RESTATEMENT OF VALUATION HIERARCHIES15B. RESTATEMENT OF VALUATION HIERARCHIES

The following managers' assets for 2015-16 have been re-categorised from level 1 to level 2: Newton Asset Management- The following managers' assets for 2015-16 have been re-categorised from level 1 to level 2: Newton Asset Management- 

D
R
A
FT522,460522,460

£30,396k, Kempen International- £87,317k, State Street Asset Management- £179,997k, GMO Investments- £62,041k and JP £30,396k, Kempen International- £87,317k, State Street Asset Management- £179,997k, GMO Investments- £62,041k and JP 

Morgan Asset Management- £36,603k.Morgan Asset Management- £36,603k.

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FTLevel 2Level 2

£000's£000's

D
R
A
FTLevel 1Level 1

£000's£000's

D
R
A
FT

Using Using 

Observable Observable 

Inputs

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Page 92



Infrastructure: Macquarie

Description of Valuation Process

Private Equity

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined by using valuation techniques.

Private equity investments for which market quotations are not readily available are valued at their fair values by the Board of

Directors. Private equity valuations are usually generated by the managers of the underlying portfolio of investments on a

quarterly basis and are actually received with a delay of at least one-to-two months after the quarter end date. As a result, the

year-end net asset value predominantly consists of portfolio valuations provided by the investment managers of the underlying

funds at a specific date, adjusted for subsequent capital calls and distributions. If the Board of Directors comes to the

conclusion upon recommendation of the Investment Manager (after applying the above mentioned valuation methods), that

the most recent valuation reported by the manager/administrator of a fund investment is materially misstated, it will make the

necessary adjustments using the results of its own review and analysis. The valuation adjustments relate to events

subsequent to the last capital account valuation statement received but based upon information provided by the investment

manager and all other available unobservable inputs. In estimating the fair value of fund investments, the Investment Manager

in its valuation recommendation to the Board of Directors considers all appropriate and applicable factors.

15D. Level 3 Pricing Hierarchy Disclosures
Quantitative Information on Significant unobservable inputs

Private Finance: M&GPrivate Finance: M&G

The assets are mostly floating rate notes and held at par value.

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of privately held securities are: Revenue multiples,

EBITDA multiple, net income multiple and discount for lack of marketability and potential bids.

Private Equity: Adams Street & LGT capital

Notes to Pension Fund Accounts

The following quantitative information are considered for significant unobservable inputs, in valuation of infrastructure assets.

  - The acquisition financial model is used as a base case.

  - Update for any material changes in economic, operational and financial assumptions.

- Discount equity cashflows at the sum of the risk free rate and the appropriate risk premium (as determined by the implied

risk premium at acquisition unless there is an inherent change in the riskiness of the underlying investments which may

necessitate a change in the risk premium).

Direct Lending: Permira

The following key terms are confirmed as inputs for each yield analysis calculation:

- Cash / PIK (Payment In Kind) margin

  - Frequency of interest payments

  - Commitment and settlement date

  - Contracted and expected maturity date

46

D
R
A
FT

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded inin an active market are determined by using valuation techniques.an active market are determined by using valuation techniques.

market quotations are not readily available are valued at their fair values by the Board ofmarket quotations are not readily available are valued at their fair values by the Board of

Directors. Private equity valuations are usually generated by the managers of the underlying portfolio of investments onDirectors. Private equity valuations are usually generated by the managers of the underlying portfolio of investments on

withwith aa delay of at least one-to-two months after the quarter end date.delay of at least one-to-two months after the quarter end date.

consistsconsists of portfolio valuations provided by the investment managers of the underlyingof portfolio valuations provided by the investment managers of the underlying

specific date, adjusted for subsequent capitalspecific date, adjusted for subsequent capital calls

conclusion upon recommendation of the Investment Manager (after applying the above mentioned valuation methods), thatconclusion upon recommendation of the Investment Manager (after applying the above mentioned valuation methods), that

the most recent valuation reported by the manager/administrator ofthe most recent valuation reported by the manager/administrator of

necessary adjustments using the results ofnecessary adjustments using the results of itsits own

the last capital account valuation statement received but based upon information provided by the investmentthe last capital account valuation statement received but based upon information provided by the investment

manager and all other available unobservable inputs.manager and all other available unobservable inputs.

in its valuation recommendation to the Board of Directors considers all appropriate and applicable factors.in its valuation recommendation to the Board of Directors considers all appropriate and applicable factors.

The following key terms are confirmed as inputs for each yield analysis calculation:The following key terms are confirmed as inputs for each yield analysis calculation:

Page 93



Notes to Pension Fund Accounts

Private Finance: M&G

These assets are floating rate and are held to maturity they are valued at par unless suffering from impairment. 

Direct Lending: Permira

- All direct lending investments are valued on a mark-to-market basis at the date of valuation

Private Equity

Private Finance  (M&G)

Impairments may be applied if an asset's credit rating deteriorates.

- In each case, valuations are prepared in accordance with International Private Equity & Venture Capital Valuation (“IPEV”) 

Guidelines

- Each valuation is reviewed to ensure:

Third party evidence to support pricing (such as Market data, broker quotes or Bloomberg pricing, as well as latest financials

and capital structure; and any other adjustments to value) was evidenced;

That the valuations are prepared in a consistent manner with previous valuations and that any changes in methodology or

valuation are clearly explained; and valuations are derived using methodology consistent with the IPEV guidelines.

Discount Rate

Equity cash flows are discounted at the acquisition internal rate of return, which is adjusted for changes in the relevant risk

free rate. The acquisition internal rate of return is the return which is forecast under the acquisition case and price, reflecting

the risks inherent in each of the investments. The difference between the acquisition internal rate of return and the risk free

rate at the date of acquisition equates to the risk premium, which is the risk compensation to equity holders.

Most of the Fund’s assets are likely to see some decrease in the risk premium as assets are de-risked following acquisition.

Such projects may have a changing risk “life-cycle”, whereby the risk changes as the asset matures. In addition, if there is a

change in the inherent risk of an investment, then the risk premium may need to be reconsidered.

Narrative and Quantitative description of sensitivity to changes in valuation methods and market 

Market valuation method applied to investments is sensitive to four main components:

  (i) changes in actual market prices;

  (ii) interest rate risk;

  (iii) foreign currency movements; and

  (iv) other price risks.

The only possible sensitivity associated with private finance valuations and methodology is credit rating. This may result in an

analyst impairing an asset if there is a change in the asset's credit rating.

- Where an investment is considered illiquid (level 3), a yield analysis is performed to infer a fair market value for that 

Infrastructure: Macquarie

Valuations are calculated by the individual asset teams on a quarterly basis. The valuation process follows the British Venture

Capital Association (BVCA) guidelines, and is compliant with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The most

generally accepted methodology of valuing infrastructure assets is by way of a discounted cashflow (DCF) analysis.

DCF-Based Market Valuation Process

Financial Model

The acquisition financial models of all of the Fund’s underlying investments will be externally audited prior to financial close.

They will be used as the initial base financial models for the DCF analysis.

Update for Economic, Operational and Financial Assumptions

The economic assumptions in the financial models are adjusted every three months in order to reflect current market

conditions. The main economic variables relate to interest rates, exchange rates and inflation.

The initial operational assumptions in each of the financial models are the acquisition forecasts. Any historical information

(e.g. distributions received in an intervening period and year to date performance) will be updated within the model. In relation

to forward-looking assumptions, the acquisition assumptions will continue to be used unless there is a material inconsistency

between these assumptions and:

  - the actual operational results to date

  - the revised forecasts provided by management or approved by the board.

The financial assumptions in the model (e.g. cost of debt and capital structure) are also updated to reflect the actual debt put

into place, current base rates and any material change in outlook with regards to future leverage.

47

D
R
A
FT

quarterly basis. The valuation process follows thequarterly basis. The valuation process follows the

International Financial Reporting StandardsInternational Financial Reporting Standards

generally accepted methodology of valuing infrastructure assets is by way of a discounted cashflow (DCF) analysis.generally accepted methodology of valuing infrastructure assets is by way of a discounted cashflow (DCF) analysis.

The acquisition financial models of all of the Fund’s underlying investmentsThe acquisition financial models of all of the Fund’s underlying investments willwill be externally audited prior

They will be used as the initial base financial models for the DCF analysis.They will be used as the initial base financial models for the DCF analysis.

Update for Economic, Operational and Financial AssumptionsUpdate for Economic, Operational and Financial Assumptions

the financial models are adjusted every three monthsthe financial models are adjusted every three months

conditions. The main economic variables relate to interest rates, exchange rates and inflation.conditions. The main economic variables relate to interest rates, exchange rates and inflation.

each of the financial models are the acquisition forecasts. Any historical informationeach of the financial models are the acquisition forecasts. Any historical information

an intervening period and yearan intervening period and year toto date performance)date performance)

forward-looking assumptions, the acquisition assumptionsforward-looking assumptions, the acquisition assumptions willwill

  - the actual operational results to date  - the actual operational results to date

  - the revised forecasts provided by management or approved by the board.  - the revised forecasts provided by management or approved by the board.

the model (e.g.the model (e.g. costcost

into place, current base rates and any material change in outlook with regards to future leverage.into place, current base rates and any material change in outlook with regards to future leverage.

Page 94



Notes to Pension Fund Accounts

Infrastructure: Macquarie

Direct Lending: Permira

The yield analysis methodology used to value the level 3 assets are sensitive to the following inputs:

- EURIBOR swap rates (up to 7 years)

- LIBOR swap rates (up to 7 years)

- ELLI (3 year discounted spread data)

16A: CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Designated 

as fair value 

through P&L

Loans & 

receivables
Total

Designated 

as fair value 

through P&L

Loans & 

receivables
Total

31 March 

2017

31 March 

2017

31 March 

2017

31 March 

2016

31 March 

2016

31 March

2016

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Financial Assets

Bonds 0 0 0 34,898 0 34,898

Equities 123,992 0 123,992 123,599 0 123,599

Pooled Investments 672,256 0 672,256 495,702 0 495,702

Pooled property investments 114,894 0 114,894 106,369 0 106,369

Private Equity 27,128 0 27,128 30,123 0 30,123

Cash 0 16,276 16,276 0 17,296 17,296

Other Investment balances 0 644 644 0 980 980

938,270 16,920 955,190 790,691 18,276 808,967

Financial Liabilities

Derivative Contracts 0 0 0 (317) 0 (317)

0 0 0 (317) 0 (317)

Total 938,270 16,920 955,190 790,374 18,276 808,650

The following table analyses the carrying amounts of financial instruments by category and net assets statement heading. No 

financial instruments were reclassified during the accounting period.

16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The economic assumptions in the financial models are adjusted every three months in order to reflect current market 

conditions. The main economic variables relate to interest rates, exchange rates and inflation.

These inputs impact on: (1) the implied IRR calculations at the period end valuation date; (2) the forecast cash and/or PIK 

yields that track LIBOR or EURIBOR; and (3) ultimately the implied asset price calculated from these inputs as the period end 

to determine the valuation price.

These inputs are sourced directly from Bloomberg feeds or independently from Duff & Phelps (ELLI data) relevant to each 

period end date.

Note: Investment assets categories disclosures are different to that published in 2015/16 and in line with the CIPFA Code, the 

2015/16 figures have been restated to provide comparative table of figures.

Restated

48

D
R
A
FT

938,270D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

0 0

123,992 0

672,256

114,894

0D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FTTotal

Designated Designated 

as fair value 

through P&L

31 March 31 March 

2017

£000's £000's

The following table analyses the carrying amounts of financial instruments by category and net assets statement heading. No The following table analyses the carrying amounts of financial instruments by category and net assets statement heading. No 

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Page 95



Notes to Pension Fund Accounts

16B. NET GAINS AND LOSSES ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Financial Assets £000's £000's

Designated at Fair Value through profit and loss 137,690 (390)

Financial Liabilities

Fair Value through profit and loss 0 (317)

137,690 (707)

17. NATURE & EXTENT OF EXPOSURE TO RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Risk and Risk Management

Other price risk  - Sensitivity Analysis

Asset Type
Potential market 

movements (+/-)

UK bonds 5.20%

Overseas bonds 5.20%

UK equities 9.60%

Overseas equities 8.70%

Pooled property investments 3.40%

Other pooled investments 9.60%

Derivatives 0.00%

Private equity 6.20%

Responsibility for the fund's risk management strategy rests with the Pensions Committee. Risk management policies are

established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Council's pensions operations. Policies are reviewed regularly to

reflect changes in activity and in market conditions.

Market risk

The risk that the fair value of cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market prices. Market risk

reflects interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risks. To mitigate against market risk the pension fund invests in a

diversified pool of assets to ensure a reasonable balance between different categories. The management of the assets are

placed with a number of fund managers with different performance targets and investment strategies. Each fund manager is

expected to maintain a diversified portfolio in each asset class. Risks associated with the strategy and investment returns are

included as part of the quarterly reporting to Pensions Committee where they are monitored and reviewed. 

Following analysis of historical data and expected investment return movement during the financial year, the fund has

determined that the following movements in market price risk are reasonably possible for the 2016/17 reporting period.

Potential price changes are determined based on the observed historical volatility of asset class returns. 'Riskier' assets such

as equities will display greater potential volatility than bonds as an example, so the overall outcome will depend largely on fund

asset allocations. The potential volatilities are consistent with one standard deviation movement of the change in value of

assets over the last three years. This can then be applied to period end asset mix.

The fund's primary long-term risk is that the fund's assets will fall short of its liabilities. Therefore the aim of investment risk

management is to minimise the risk of an overall reduction in the value of the fund and to maximise the opportunity for gains

across the whole fund portfolio. The fund achieves this through asset diversification to reduce exposure to market risk (price

risk, currency and interest rate risks) and credit risk to an acceptable level. In addition, the fund manages its liquidity risk to

ensure there is sufficient liquidity to meet the fund's forecast cash flows.

Other price risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices

(other than those arising from interest rate risk or foreign exchange risk), whether those changes are caused by factors

specific to the individual instruments or its issuer, or factors affecting all such instruments in the market. The fund is exposed

to share and derivative price risk. This arises from investments held by the fund for which the future price is uncertain. All

securities investments present a risk of loss of capital. Except for shares sold short, the maximum risk resulting from financial

instruments is determined by the fair value of the financial instruments. The potential losses from shares sold short are

unlimited. The fund's investment managers mitigate this price risk through diversification and the selection of securities and

other financial instruments is monitored by the Council to ensure it is within limits specified in the fund Investment Strategy

Statement.

49

the Pensions Committee.the Pensions Committee.

faced by the Council's pensions operations.faced by the Council's pensions operations.

financial instrumentfinancial instrument willwill fluctuate duefluctuate due to changes

risks. To mitigate against marketmitigate against market

reasonable balance between different categories. The management of the assets arereasonable balance between different categories. The management of the assets are

different performance targets and investment strategies. Each fund managerdifferent performance targets and investment strategies. Each fund manager

each asset class. Risksclass. Risks associatedassociated

included as part of the quarterly reporting to Pensions Committee where they are monitored and reviewed. included as part of the quarterly reporting to Pensions Committee where they are monitored and reviewed. 

that the value ofthat the value of aa financial instrumentfinancial instrument

(other than those arising from interest rate riskrisk or foreign exchangeor foreign exchange

the individual instruments orthe individual instruments or itsits issuer, or factors affecting allissuer, or factors affecting all

risk.risk. This arises from investments held by the fund forThis arises from investments held by the fund for

a riska risk of loss of capital. Except for shares sold short, the maximumof loss of capital. Except for shares sold short, the maximum

determined by the fair value of the financial instruments. The potential losses from shares sold short aredetermined by the fair value of the financial instruments. The potential losses from shares sold short are

unlimited. The fund's investment managers mitigate this priceunlimited. The fund's investment managers mitigate this price

monitored by the Councilmonitored by the Council

Page 96



Asset type Value as at               

31 March 2017

Percentage 

Change
Value on Increase Value on Decrease

£000's % £000's £000's

UK bonds 0 5.20% 0 0

Overseas bonds 0 5.20% 0 0

UK equities 123,992 9.60% 135,895 112,089 

Overseas equities 0 8.70% 0 0

Pooled property investments 114,894 3.40% 118,800 110,988 

Other pooled investments 672,256 9.60% 736,793 607,719 

Derivatives 0 0.00% 0 0

Private equity 27,128 6.20% 28,810 25,446 

Total 938,270 1,020,297 856,243

Asset type Value as at                 

31 March 2016

Percentage 

Change
Value on Increase Value on Decrease

£000's % £000's £000's

UK bonds 18,026 4.57% 18,850 17,202

Overseas bonds 16,871 4.57% 17,642 16,100

UK equities 98,337 10.56% 108,721 87,953

Overseas equities 25,262 8.01% 27,285 23,239

Pooled property investments 106,369 3.00% 109,560 103,178

Other pooled investments 495,703 10.56% 548,049 443,357

Derivatives 0 0.00% 0 0

Private equity 30,123 4.86% 31,587 28,659

Total 790,691 861,695 719,687

Asset Type 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

£000's £000's

Cash balances 16,276 17,296

Bonds - segregated portfolio 0 72,526

Bonds - pooled funds 148,817 112,128

Total 165,093 201,950

Interest Rate Risk - The risk to which the pension fund is exposed to changes in interest rates and relates to its holdings in

bonds and cash. Based on interest received on fixed interest securities, cash balances and cash and cash equivalents.

The fund's direct exposure to interest rate movements as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 is set out below. These

disclosures present interest rate risk based on the underlying financial assets at fair value.

Notes to Pension Fund Accounts

Had the market price of the fund investments increased/decreased in line with the above, the change in the net assets 

available to pay benefits in the market price would have been as follows (the prior year comparator is shown below).

Note: Investment assets categories are different to that published in 2015/16 in line with the CIPFA Code, as a result the

2015/16 figures have been restated to provide comparative table of figures.

Restated

50

D
R
A
FT

whichwhich the pension fundthe pension fund is

bonds and cash. Based on interest received on fixed interest securities, cash balances and cash and cash equivalents.bonds and cash. Based on interest received on fixed interest securities, cash balances and cash and cash equivalents.

interest rate movements as at 31interest rate movements as at 31

disclosures present interest rate risk based on the underlying financial assets at fair value.disclosures present interest rate risk based on the underlying financial assets at fair value.D
R
A
FT

Note: Investment assets categories are differentNote: Investment assets categories are different to that publishedthat published in

2015/16 figures have been restated to provide comparative table of figures.2015/16 figures have been restated to provide comparative table of figures.

D
R
A
FT

790,691790,691

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT4.57%4.57%

4.57%4.57%

10.56%10.56%

8.01%8.01%

3.00%3.00%

10.56%10.56%

0.00%0.00%

4.86%4.86%

D
R
A
FT

0

30,123

D
R
A
FT18,850

17,642

108,721108,721

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Value on IncreaseValue on Increase

£000's£000's

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Page 97



Notes to Pension Fund Accounts

Value as at               

31 March 2017

Potential 

movement on 1% 

change in interest 

rates

Value on increase Value on decrease

Assets exposed to income rate risks £000's £000's £000's £000's

Cash balances 16,276 163 16,439 16,113

Bonds - pooled funds 148,817 1,488 134,492 147,329

Total change in assets available 165,093 1,651 150,930 163,442

Value as at               

31 March 2016

Potential 

movement on 1% 

change in interest 

rates

Value on increase Value on decrease

Assets exposed to income rate risks £000's £000's £000's £000's

Cash balances 17,296 173 17,469 17,123

Bonds - segregated portfolio 72,526 725 73,251 71,801

Bonds - pooled funds 112,128 1,121 113,249 111,007

Total change in assets available 201,950 2,020 203,970 199,931

Currency exposure by asset type

Asset Value

31 March 2017

Asset Value

31 March 2016

£000's £000's

Overseas Quoted Securities 0 25,262

Overseas Index-Linked Bonds 0 16,871

Overseas Managed Funds 106,344 149,059

Private Equity/Infrastructure 54,130 49,928

160,474 241,120

Currency risk sensitivity analysis

Following analysis of historical data in consultation with PIRC Ltd, the funds data provider, the fund considers the likely

volatility associated with foreign exchange rate movements to be 7.90%, based on the data provided by PIRC. A 7.90%

fluctuation in the currency is considered reasonable based on PIRC's analysis of historical movements in month end

exchange rates over a rolling twelve month period. This analysis assumes that all variables, in particular interest rates, remain

constant. A 7.90% strengthening/weakening of the pound against various currencies in which the fund holds investments

would increase/decrease the net assets available to pay benefits as follows:

Currency Risk - The risk to which the pension fund is exposed to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. 

The pension fund has the ability to set up a passive currency hedge where these risks are perceived to be adverse. As at 31

March 2017 the Fund had no currency hedge in place for those managers who do not hedge their own portfolios. The

following table summarises the fund's currency exposure as at 31 March 2017 and as at the previous period ending 31 March

2016.

Interest Rate Risk Sensitivity Analysis

The fund recognises that interest rates can vary and can affect both income to the fund and the value of net assets available

to pay benefits. A 100 basis points (1%) movement in interest rates is consistent with the level of sensitivity applied as part of

the fund's risk management strategy. 

The analysis that follows assumes that all other variables, in particular exchange rates remain constant, and shows the effect

in the year on the net assets available to pay benefits of a +/- 1% change in interest rates.

51

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Currency exposure by asset typeCurrency exposure by asset type

Asset Value

31 March 2017

 The risk to which the pension fund is exposed to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.  The risk to which the pension fund is exposed to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. 

set up a passive currency hedge where thesepassive currency hedge where these

2017 the Fund had no currency hedge2017 the Fund had no currency hedge inin place for those managersplace for those managers

following table summarises the fund's currency exposure as at 31following table summarises the fund's currency exposure as at 31

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

201,950201,950 2,020

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT17,296 173

72,526 725

112,128112,128 1,121

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT£000's£000's

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Potential Potential 

movement on 1% movement on 1% 

change in interest change in interest 

ratesrates

Value on increaseValue on increase

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Page 98



Assets exposed to currency risk Asset Value 

31 March 2017

Potential market 

movement
Value on increase Value on decrease

7.90%

£000's £000's £000's

Overseas Managed Funds 106,344 8,401 114,745 97,943

Private Equity/Infrastructure 54,130 4,276 58,406 49,854

160,474 12,677 173,151 147,797

Assets exposed to currency risk Asset Value 

31 March 2016

Potential market 

movement
Value on increase Value on decrease

6.08%

£000's £000's £000's £000's

Overseas Quoted Securities 25,262 1,536 26,798 23,726

Overseas Index-Linked Bonds 16,871 1,026 17,897 15,845

Overseas Managed Funds 149,059 9,063 158,122 139,996

Private Equity/Infrastructure 49,928 3,036 52,964 46,892

241,120 14,660 255,780 226,460

Summary
Rating

Balances as at 

31 March 2017
Rating

Balances as at 

31 March 2016

S&P £000's S&P £000's

Money market funds

Northern Trust Global Sterling Fund A AAAf S1+ 200 AAAf 100

Bank current accounts

Lloyds A 1,911 A 402

NatWest (Capita) 0 BBB+ 1,077

Total 2,111 1,579

Refinancing risk

The key risk is that the fund will be bound to replenish a significant proportion of its financial instruments at a time of

unfavourable interest rates. The fund does not have any financial instruments that have a refinancing risk as part of its

investment strategy.

Notes to Pension Fund Accounts

Credit Risk - Credit risk represents the risk that the counterparty to a transaction or a financial instrument will fail to discharge

an obligation and cause the fund to incur a financial loss. The market values of investments generally reflect an assessment of

credit in their pricing and consequently the risk of loss is implicitly provided for in the carrying value of the fund’s financial

assets and liabilities.

The pension fund's entire investment portfolio is exposed to some form of credit risk, with the exception of the derivative

position, where the risk equates to the net market value of a positive derivative position. Credit risk can be minimised through

careful selection of high quality counterparties, brokers and financial institutions. The pension fund is also exposed to credit

risk through Securities Lending, Forward Currency Contracts and its daily treasury activities. The Securities Lending

programme is run by the fund's custodian Northern Trust who assign four different risk management oversight committees to

control counterparty risk, collateral risk and the overall securities lending programme. The minimum level of collateral for

securities on loan is 102%, however more collateral may be required depending on the type of transaction. To further mitigate

risks, the collateral held on behalf of the pension fund is ring fenced from Northern Trust. Securities lending is capped by

investment regulations and statutory limits are in place to ensure no more than 25% of eligible assets can be on loan at any

one time. 

The prime objective of the pension fund treasury management activity is the security of principal sums invested. As such it will

take a prudent approach to organisations employed as the banker and deposit taker. The pension fund will ensure it has

adequate but not excessive cash resources in order to meet its objectives. The bank accounts are held with Lloyds Plc, which

holds an S&P long-term credit rating of BBB+. Deposits are placed in the AAAf rated Northern Trust Money Market Fund

which is ring fenced from the administering company. Credit ratings, market indicators and media coverage are monitored to

ensure credit worthiness is maintained. The fund's cash holding under its treasury management arrangements at 31 March

2017 was £2,111k (31 March 2016: £1,579k) and this was held with the following institutions.

Liquidity Risk - The risk the pension fund will have difficulties in paying its financial obligations when they fall due.

The pension fund holds a working cash balance in its own bank accounts with Lloyds and Money Market Fund to which it has

instant access to cover the payment of benefits and other lump sum payments (£2,111k). At an investment level the fund holds

a large proportion of assets in instruments which can be liquidated at short notice, normally three working days. As at the 31

March 2017 these assets totalled £708,503k, with a further £16,276k held in cash in the Custody accounts at Northern Trust.

52

D
R
A
FT

transaction ortransaction or a financial instrument

market values of investments generally reflect an assessment ofmarket values of investments generally reflect an assessment of

provided forprovided for inin thethe carrying

somesome formform of creditof credit risk, withwith

positive derivative position. Creditpositive derivative position. Credit

careful selection of high quality counterparties, brokers and financial institutions.careful selection of high quality counterparties, brokers and financial institutions. The

Currency Contracts and its daily treasuryCurrency Contracts and its daily treasury

Trust whowho assignassign four differentfour different

and the overall securities lending programme.and the overall securities lending programme.

collateralcollateral maymay be required depending on the type of transaction.be required depending on the type of transaction.

the collateral held on behalf of the pension fundthe collateral held on behalf of the pension fund is ringring fencedfenced

areare inin place to ensure noplace to ensure no

objective of the pension fund treasury management activityobjective of the pension fund treasury management activity

prudent approach to organisations employed as the banker and deposit taker.prudent approach to organisations employed as the banker and deposit taker.

excessive cashexcessive cash resourcesresources in order to meet its objectives.order to meet its objectives.

long-term credit rating oflong-term credit rating of BBB+.BBB+. DepositsDeposits

the administering company. Credit ratings, market indicators and media coveragethe administering company. Credit ratings, market indicators and media coverage

TheThe fund'sfund's

2017 was £2,111k (31 March 2016: £1,579k) and this was held with the following institutions.2017 was £2,111k (31 March 2016: £1,579k) and this was held with the following institutions.

Page 99



Notes to Pension Fund Accounts

18. FUNDING ARRANGEMENTS

Contribution rates

Primary Rate (%)

1 April 2017 - 31 March 2020 2019/20

19.50% £6,938,000

In line with the triennial valuation the fund updates it Funding Strategy Statement every three years. The key elements of the

funding strategy are:

In line with the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013, the fund’s actuary undertakes a revaluation every three

years for the purpose of setting employer contribution rates for the forthcoming triennial period. The last valuation took place

as at 31 March 2016 setting rates for the period April 201 to March 2020. The next triennial valuation will take place as at 31

March 2019.

1) to ensure the long-term solvency of the fund, i.e. that sufficient funds are available to meet all pension liabilities as they fall

due for payment

The funding level is the ratio of assets to liabilities at the valuation date. A funding level of less/more than 100% implies that

there is a deficit/surplus in the Fund at the valuation date against the funding target. Funding plans are set to eliminate any

deficit (or surplus) over the set time horizon and therefore get back to a funding level of 100%. To do so, additional

contributions may be required to be paid into the Fund; these contributions are known as the “secondary rate”.

3) to minimise the long-term cost of the scheme by recognising the link between assets and liabilities and adopting an

investment strategy that balances risk and return

4) to reflect the different characteristics of employing bodies in determining contribution rates where it is reasonable to do so

2) to ensure that employer contribution rates are as stable as possible

5) to use reasonable measures to reduce the risk to other employers and ultimately to the council tax payer from an employer

defaulting on its pension obligations.

The table below summarises the whole fund Primary and Secondary Contribution rates at this triennial valuation. These rates

are the payroll weighted average of the underlying individual employer primary and the total of employer secondary rates

expressed as a monetary amount, calculated in accordance with the Regulations and CIPFA guidance.

2018/19

£5,296,000

At the 2016 actuarial valuation, the fund was assessed as 75% funded (72% at the March 2013 valuation). This corresponded

to a deficit of £269m (2013 valuation: £266m) at that time. The slight improvement in funding position between 2013 and 2016

is mainly due to investment performance over the inter-valuation period. The liabilities have also increased due to a reduction

in the future expected investment return, although this has been partially been offset by lower than expected pay and benefit

growth (both over the inter-valuation period and forecast to continue into the long term).

2017/18

Step 3: The Fund sets contributions that give a sufficiently high likelihood of meeting the funding target over the set time

horizon.

Step 2: The Fund sets the time horizon over which the funding target is to be reached.

The Primary rate above includes an allowance for administration expenses of 0.7% of pay. The employee average contribution 

rate is 6.4% of pay.

Secondary Rate (£)

£5,537,000

At the previous formal valuation at 31 March 2013, a different regulatory regime was in force. Therefore a contribution rate that

is directly comparable to the rates above is not provided.

The valuation of the fund has been undertaken using a risk based approach and this approach adopted recognises the

uncertainties and risks posed to funding and follows the process outlined below.

Step 1: The Fund sets a funding target (or funding basis) which defines the target amount of assets to be held to meet the

future cashflows. The assumptions underlying the funding target are discussed further in the next section. A measurement is

made at the valuation date to compare the assets held with the funding target.

53

D
R
A
FT

£5,296,000£5,296,000D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

The table below summarises the whole fund PrimaryPrimary and Secondary Contribution rates at this triennial valuation. These ratesand Secondary Contribution rates at this triennial valuation. These rates

are the payroll weighted average of the underlying individual employerare the payroll weighted average of the underlying individual employer

expressed as a monetary amount, calculated in accordance with the Regulations and CIPFA guidance.expressed as a monetary amount, calculated in accordance with the Regulations and CIPFA guidance.

D
R
A
FT

AA funding level of less/more than 100%funding level of less/more than 100%

the Fund at the valuation date against the funding target. Funding plans are setthe Fund at the valuation date against the funding target. Funding plans are set

horizon and therefore get backhorizon and therefore get back to a funding level of 100%.funding level of 100%.

contributions may be required to be paid into the Fund; these contributions are known as the “secondary rate”.contributions may be required to be paid into the Fund; these contributions are known as the “secondary rate”.

as 75% funded (72% at theas 75% funded (72% at the March

deficit of £269m (2013 valuation: £266m) at that time. The slight improvementdeficit of £269m (2013 valuation: £266m) at that time. The slight improvement

investment performance over the inter-valuation period. Theinvestment performance over the inter-valuation period. The liabilitiesliabilities

the future expected investment return, although this has been partially been offset by lower than expected pay and benefitthe future expected investment return, although this has been partially been offset by lower than expected pay and benefit

growth (both over the inter-valuation period and forecast to continue into the long term).growth (both over the inter-valuation period and forecast to continue into the long term).

2017/18D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Page 100



Notes to Pension Fund Accounts

Assumptions

Description 31 March 2016 31 March 2013

Funding Basis Discount Rate 4.0% 4.6%

Benefit Increases (CPI) 2.1% 2.5%

Salaries Increases 2.6% 3.3%

Demographic assumptions

Description 31 March 2016 31 March 2013

Male

Pensioners 22.6 years 22.7 years

Non- Pensioners 24.0 years 24.3 years

Female

Pensioners 24.6 years 24.7 years

Non- Pensioners 26.5 years 26.9 years

19. ACTUARIAL PRESENT VALUE OF PROMISED RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Description 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

% per annum % per annum

Inflation /Pensions Increase Rate 2.4% 2.2%

Salary Increase Rate 2.8% 3.2%

Discount Rate 2.5% 3.5%

Description 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

£000's £000's

Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits 1,522,000 1,225,000

Assets                                                              956,707 810,287

Deficit                                                            565,293 414,713

An IAS 26 valuation was carried out for the fund as at 31 March 2017 by Hymans Robertson with the following results:

Due to the long term nature of the Fund, assumptions about the future are required to place a value of the benefits earned to

date (past service) and the cost of benefits that will be earned in the future (future service). Assumptions fall into two

categories when projecting and placing a value on the future benefit payments and accrual – financial and demographic.

These figures are presented for the purposes of IAS 26 only. They are not relevant for the calculations undertaken for funding

purposes or other statutory purposes under UK pensions legislation. This item is not recognised in the Net Asset Statement,

hence is considered not to be in opposition to the assertion included in the Net Asset Statement surrounding future liabilities

of the fund.

The main demographic assumption to which the valuation results are most sensitive is that relating to the longevity of the 

Fund’s members. For this valuation, the Fund has adopted assumptions which give the following sample average future life 

expectancies for members:

Financial assumptions

A summary of the financial assumptions underpinning the target funding basis and adopted during the assessment of the

liabilities of the Fund as at 31 March 2016 (alongside those adopted at the last valuation for comparison) are shown below.

In addition to the triennial funding valuation, the fund’s actuary also undertakes a valuation of the pension fund liabilities, on

an IAS 19 basis, every year using the same base data as the funding valuation rolled forward to the current financial year

taking account of changes in membership numbers and updating assumptions to the current year. This valuation is not carried

out on the same basis as that used for setting fund contribution rates and the fund accounts do not take account of liabilities to

pay pensions and other benefits in the future. 

54

D
R
A
FT

19. ACTUARIAL PRESENT VALUE OF PROMISED RETIREMENT BENEFITS19. ACTUARIAL PRESENT VALUE OF PROMISED RETIREMENT BENEFITS
the triennial funding valuation, the fund’s actuary also undertakesthe triennial funding valuation, the fund’s actuary also undertakes

19 basis, every year using the same base data as the funding valuation rolled forward19 basis, every year using the same base data as the funding valuation rolled forward

membership numbers and updating assumptionsmembership numbers and updating assumptions

out on the same basis as that used for setting fund contribution rates and the fund accounts do not take account ofout on the same basis as that used for setting fund contribution rates and the fund accounts do not take account of

pay pensions and other benefits in the future. pay pensions and other benefits in the future. D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT31 March 2013

22.6 years

24.0 years

24.6 years

26.5 years

The main demographic assumption to which the valuation results are most sensitive is that relating to the longevity of the The main demographic assumption to which the valuation results are most sensitive is that relating to the longevity of the 

Fund’s members. For this valuation, the Fund has adopted assumptions which give the following sample average future life Fund’s members. For this valuation, the Fund has adopted assumptions which give the following sample average future life 

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Page 101



Notes to Pension Fund Accounts

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

No senior officer or Pension Committee member had any interest with any related parties to the pension fund. 

Governance

Key Management Personnel

Short term benefits 69 61

Post employment benefits 31 105

100 166

This note highlights the funding by the pension fund for key officers and pension benefits of those staff accrued in year.

21. BULK TRANSFER

There were no bulk transfers into or out of the fund during the 2016/17 financial year.

22. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS

Outstanding capital commitments (investments) as at 31 March 2017 totalled £46,472k (£31,122k at 31 March 2016).

23. CONTINGENT ASSETS 

24. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The London Borough of Hillingdon is a related party to the pension fund. The revenue contributions the Council has made into

the pension fund are set out in note 4 to the Pension Fund accounts.

It is required under IAS 24 "Related Party Disclosures" that material transactions with related parties which are not disclosed

elsewhere should be included in a note to the financial statements.

There are no post balance sheet events.

There are two members of the Pension Fund Committee who are deferred or retired members of the pension fund. Cllr Philip

Corthorne (Chairman), a deferred member; and Cllr Tony Eginton, a retired member. Each member is required to declare their

interest at each meeting.

Three employees of the London Borough of Hillingdon hold key positions in the financial management of the London Borough

of Hillingdon Pension Fund. These employees are the Section 151 officer, Deputy Director - Strategic Finance and the Chief

Accountant. Total remuneration payable to key management personnel is set out below:

The Pensions Committee of the London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund ("the Fund") has prepared an Investment

Strategy Statement (ISS) in accordance with the DCLG Guidance on Preparing and Maintaining an Investment Strategy

Statement.

As set out in the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016, the Pensions

Committee will review this Statement from time to time, but at least every three years, and revise it as necessary. Also, in the

event of a significant change, changes will be reflected within three months of the change occurring. The current version of the

ISS is available on the pension fund pages of the Council's web site: www.hillingdon.gov.uk and included in the Annual

Report.

These commitments relate to outstanding call payments due on unquoted limited partnership funds held in the Private Equity,

Infrastructure and Credit Solutions (Permira) parts of the portfolio. The amounts called by these funds vary both in size and

timing over a period of between four and six years from the date of each original commitment.

Three admitted body employers in the London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund hold insurance bonds to guard against the

possibility of being unable to meet their pension obligations. These bonds are drawn in favour of the pension fund and

payment will only be triggered in event of employer default.

31 March 2017

£000's

31 March 2016

£000's

55

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

100

This note highlights the funding by the pension fund for key officers and pension benefits of those staff accrued in year.This note highlights the funding by the pension fund for key officers and pension benefits of those staff accrued in year.

The Pensions Committee of the London Borough ofThe Pensions Committee of the London Borough of HillingdonHillingdon

accordanceaccordance with thethe DCLGDCLG Guidance on Preparing and Maintaining an Investment Strategy

the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016, the Pensionsthe Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016, the Pensions

review this Statement fromreview this Statement from time totime to time, but at least every three years, and revise

significant change, changessignificant change, changes willwill be reflectedbe reflectedD
R
A
FT

available on the pension fund pages of the Council'savailable on the pension fund pages of the Council'sD
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT69

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT
the financial management of the London Boroughthe financial management of the London Borough

Pension Fund. These employees are the Section 151 officer, Deputy DirectorPension Fund. These employees are the Section 151 officer, Deputy Director

Accountant. Total remuneration payable to key management personnel is set out below:Accountant. Total remuneration payable to key management personnel is set out below:

31 March 2017

£000's

31 March 201631 March 2016

£000's

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

Page 102



POLICY STATEMENTS

Details of the following Statements can be found on the London Borough of 
Hillingdon website, using the links provided below.

Investment Strategy Statement

From 1 April 2017, the Fund is required to publish an Investment Strategy Statement 
(ISS), which replaces the requirement for a Statement of Investment Principles. The 
ISS will be kept under review and will be updated whenever there is a change in 
Fund Manager or mandate. The current ISS is available at:  
http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/article/6492/Pension-fund.  

Funding Strategy Statement

Since 2004, administering authorities have been required to prepare, publish and 
maintain a Funding Strategy Statement (FSS).  The current FSS was approved by 
Pensions Committee in March 2017 following the 2016 valuation. The statement is 
available at: http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/article/6492/Pension-fund.  

Communication Strategy

The London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund’s Communication Strategy was 
fully revised in 2016/17 and agreed at Pensions Committee in June 2017, and came 
into effect from 1 July 2017. It can be accessed at:
http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/article/6492/Pension-fund

Governance Policy Statement

Regulations introduced in December 2005 required Administering Authorities to 
publish and maintain a Governance Policy Statement.  The first statement was
approved by Pensions Committee in March 2008.  Later amendment regulations 
then required that by 1 December 2008 a Governance Compliance Statement should 
be published which required the addition of a Governance Best Practice Compliance 
Statement.  Governance arrangements of the fund are kept under review, and 
statements are updated with amendments. The documents are available at: 
http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/article/6492/Pension-fund . The local Pension Board has 
undertaken an in depth review of governance strategy and an updated document will 
be taken to Pensions Committee for approval in  September 2017.  

Risk Management Policy

A risk management policy was introduced during 2016 as part of the work 
undertaken by the local Pension Board.  While Committee regularly review Fund 
risks through the risk register, it was identified that a formal risk management policy 
had not been drafted.  The policy is available at: 
http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/article/6492/Pension-fund

56

D
R
A
FT

D
R
A
FT

http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/article/6492/Pension

D
R
A
FT

Since 2004, administering authorities have been required to prepare, publish and Since 2004, administering authorities have been required to prepare, publish and 
maintain a Funding Strategy Statement (FSS).  The current FSS was approved by maintain a Funding Strategy Statement (FSS).  The current FSS was approved by 

following the 201following the 2016 valuationvaluation. The statement is 

D
R
A
FThttp://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/article/6492/Pension-fund

D
R
A
FT

London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund’s Communication London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund’s Communication 
fully revised in 2016/17 and agreed at Pensions Committee in June 2017, and came fully revised in 2016/17 and agreed at Pensions Committee in June 2017, and came 
into effect from 1 July 2017. It can be accessed at:into effect from 1 July 2017. It can be accessed at:

D
R
A
FT

http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/article/6492/Pension

D
R
A
FT

Governance Policy StatementGovernance Policy Statement

Regulations introduced in December 2005 required Administering Authorities to Regulations introduced in December 2005 required Administering Authorities to 
publish and maintain a Governance Policy Statement.  The first statement wapublish and maintain a Governance Policy Statement.  The first statement wa
approved by Pensions Committee in March 2008.  Later amendment regulations approved by Pensions Committee in March 2008.  Later amendment regulations 
then required that by 1 December 2008 a Governance Compliance Statement should then required that by 1 December 2008 a Governance Compliance Statement should 

Page 103



Administration strategy

During 2016 it was agreed by Committee that best practice was to have an 
Administration Strategy and this was agreed in September 2016. The aims of the 
Pension Administration Strategy are to:

ensure that the parties to which it relates are fully aware of their responsibilities 
under the Scheme, and

outline the quality and performance standards expected of the Fund and its 
scheme employers to ensure the delivery of a high-quality, timely and 
professional administration service.  These performance standards are explained 
further in the employer service level agreement.

The strategy is available at:  http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/article/6492/Pension-fund

57

D
R
A
FT

Page 104



GLOSSARY

Active Management
A style of management where the fund manager aims to outperform a benchmark by 
superior asset allocation, market timing or stock selection (or a combination of these). 

Actuary
An independent consultant who advises the Council on the financial position of the Fund. 
See actuarial valuation.

Actuarial Valuation
This is an assessment done by an actuary, usually every three years. The actuary will work 
out how much money needs to be put into a pension fund to make sure pensions can be 
paid in the future.

Additional Voluntary Contribution
(AVC)
An option available to individuals to secure additional pensions benefits by making regular 
payments in addition to the 5.5%-12.5% of basic earnings payable.

Administering Authority
In this instance the 'Administering Authority' is London Borough Hillingdon. An administering 
authority is responsible, amongst other things, for maintaining member records, dealing with 
member queries/requests, investment of the fund and paying your LGPS pension.

Admitted Bodies
Employers whose staff can become members of the Fund by virtue of an admission 
agreement made between the administering authority and the employer.

Asset Allocation
The apportionment of a fund’s assets between asset classes and/or world markets. The 
long-term strategic asset allocation of a fund will reflect the fund’s investment objectives. In 
the short term, the fund manager can aim to add value through tactical asset allocation 
decisions.

Asset Liability Modelling
Models the interaction and the allocation of assets to meet to meet present and future 
financial liabilities over time 

Benchmark
A yardstick against which the investment policy or performance of a fund manager can be 
compared. Each Fund’s benchmark is customised, meaning that it is tailored to the Fund’s 
liability profile. 

Bond
A debt investment with which the investor loans money to an entity (company or 
government) that borrows the funds for a defined period of time at a specified interest rate.

Book cost
The value of an asset as it appears on a balance sheet, equivalent to how much was paid for 
the asset (less liabilities due). Book cost often differs substantially from market value. 

58

D
R
A
FT

An option available to individuals to secure additional pensions benefits by making regular An option available to individuals to secure additional pensions benefits by making regular 
.5% of basic earnings payable..5% of basic earnings payable.

D
R
A
FTIn this instance the 'Administering Authority' is London Borough Hillingdon. An administering 

D
R
A
FT

authority is responsible, amongst other things, for maintaining member reco

D
R
A
FT

member queries/requests, investment of the fund and paying your LGPS pension.

Employers whose staff can become members of the Fund by virtue of an admission Employers whose staff can become members of the Fund by virtue of an admission 
agreement made between the administering authority and the emploagreement made between the administering authority and the emplo

The apportionment of a fund’s assets between asset classes and/or world markets. The The apportionment of a fund’s assets between asset classes and/or world markets. The 
term strategic asset allocation of a fund will reflect the fund’s investment objectives. In term strategic asset allocation of a fund will reflect the fund’s investment objectives. In 

the short term, the fund manager can aim to add value through the short term, the fund manager can aim to add value through 

D
R
A
FT

Asset Liability Modelling D
R
A
FT

Models the interaction and the allocation of assets to meet 

Page 105



Broker

An individual or firm that charges a fee or commission for executing buy and sell orders 
submitted by an investor.

CARE
'Career Average Revalued Earnings'.  LGPS 2014 is a career average scheme, and is a 
method used for calculating pensions earned from April 2014.

Commission
A service charge assessed by an agent in return for arranging the purchase or sale of a 
security or real estate. The commission must be fair and reasonable, considering all the 
relevant factors of the transaction. (Underwriting commission)

Corporate Bond
A debt security issued by a corporation, as opposed to those issued by the government.

Corporate Governance
The system by which organisations are run, and the means by which they are responsible to 
their shareholders, employees and other stakeholders.

Coupon
The return earned on an investment.  Eg £5 received from a £100 debenture is the coupon.

Creditors
Amounts owed by the pension fund.

Custody
Safe-keeping of securities by a financial institution. The custodian keeps a record of the 
client’s investments and may also collect income, process tax reclaims and provide other 
services such as performance measurement.

Debtors
Amounts owed to the pension fund.

Defined Benefit
A type of pension plan in which an employer/sponsor promises a specified 
monthly benefit on retirement that is predetermined by a formula based on the employee's 
earnings history, tenure of service and age, rather than depending directly on individual 
investment returns.

Derivative
Used to describe a specialist financial instrument such as options or futures contracts.
Financial instruments are agreements to buy or sell something, under terms laid out in a 
contract.

Diversification
A risk management technique that mixes a wide variety of investments within a portfolio. It is 
designed to minimize the impact of any one security on overall portfolio performance.

59

D
R
A
FT

are run, and the means by which they are responsible to are run, and the means by which they are responsible to 

turn earned on an investment.  Eg £5 received from a £100 debenture is the coupon.turn earned on an investment.  Eg £5 received from a £100 debenture is the coupon.

eeping of securities by a financial institution. The custodian keeps a record of the eeping of securities by a financial institution. The custodian keeps a record of the 
client’s investments and may also collect income, process tax reclaims and provide other client’s investments and may also collect income, process tax reclaims and provide other 
services such as performance measurement.services such as performance measurement.

s owed to the pension fund.s owed to the pension fund.

D
R
A
FT

plan in which an employer/sponsor promises a specified D
R
A
FT

on retirement that is predetermined by a formula based on the employee's 

Page 106



Dividend

Distribution of a portion of a company's earnings, decided by the board of directors, to a 
class of its shareholders. The amount of a dividend is quoted in the amount  each share 
receives or in other words dividends per share.

Dividend Yield
An indication of the income generated by a share, calculated as Annual Dividend per 
Share/Price per Share

Emerging Markets
There are about 80 stock markets around the world of which 22 markets are generally 
considered to be mature. The rest are classified as emerging markets.

Equity
Stock or any other security representing an ownership interest.

Ex-dividend
Purchase of shares without entitlement to current dividends. This entitlement remains with 
the seller of the shares.

Final Salary Scheme
An employer pension scheme, the benefits of which are linked to length of service and the 
final salary of the member (also known as defined benefit).

Fixed interest
A loan with an interest rate that will remain at a predetermined rate for the entire term of the 
loan. See bond.

FTSE All-Share
An arithmetically weighted index of leading UK shares (by market capitalisation)  listed on 
the London Stock Exchange (LSE). The FTSE 100 Index covers only the largest 100 
companies.

Funding Level
A comparison of a scheme’s assets and liabilities.

Futures Contract
A contract to buy goods at a fixed price and on a particular date in the future. Both the buyer 
and seller must follow the contract by law.

Gilts
The familiar name given to sterling, marketable securities (or bonds) issued by the British 
Government.

Hedge
Making an investment to reduce the risk of adverse price movements in an asset. Normally, 
a hedge consists of taking an offsetting position in a related security, such as a futures 
contract. 

Index Linked
A bond which pays a coupon that varies according to some underlying index, usually the 
Consumer Price Index.

60

D
R
A
FT

chase of shares without entitlement to current dividends. This entitlement remains with chase of shares without entitlement to current dividends. This entitlement remains with 

An employer pension scheme, the benefits of which are linked to length of service and the An employer pension scheme, the benefits of which are linked to length of service and the 
final salary of the member (also known as defined benefit).final salary of the member (also known as defined benefit).

A loan with an interest rate that will remain at a predetermined rate for the entire term of the A loan with an interest rate that will remain at a predetermined rate for the entire term of the 

An arithmetically weighted index of leading UK shares (by market capitalisation)  listed on An arithmetically weighted index of leading UK shares (by market capitalisation)  listed on 
the London Stock Exchange (LSE). The FTSE 100 Index covers only the largest 100 the London Stock Exchange (LSE). The FTSE 100 Index covers only the largest 100 

rison of a scheme’s assets and liabilities.rison of a scheme’s assets and liabilities.

Page 107



Liability Profile
The future cash outflows for Scheme Member benefits as they mature.

LGPS
Local Government Pension Scheme

LSE
London Stock Exchange

Mandate
The agreement between a client and investment manager laying down how the portfolio is to 
be managed, including performance targets.

Market Value
A security's last reported sale price (if on an exchange) i.e. the price as determined 
dynamically by buyers and sellers in an open market. Also called market price.

Option
The name for a contract where somebody pays a sum of money for the right to buy or sell 
goods at a fixed price by a particular date in the future. However, the goods do not have to 
be bought or sold.

Passive Management
A style of fund management that aims to construct a portfolio to provide the same return as 
that of a chosen index. 

Pension Fund
A fund established by an employer to facilitate and organise the investment of employees' 
retirement funds contributed by the employer and employees. The pension fund is meant to 
generate stable growth over the long term, and provide pensions for employees when they 
reach the end of their working years and commence retirement.

Private Equity
When equity capital is made available to companies or investors, but not quoted on a stock 
market. The funds raised through private equity can be used to develop new products and 
technologies, to expand working capital, to make acquisitions, or to strengthen a company's 
balance sheet. Also known as development capital. 

Property Unit Trusts
Pooled investment vehicles that enable investors to hold a stake in a diversified portfolio of 
properties

Quantitative Easing (QE)
QE is monetary policy in which a central bank purchases government securities or other 
securities from the market in order to lower interest rates and increase the money supply

Resolution Bodies
Scheme employers with the power to decide if an employee or group of employees can join 
the scheme

Return
Synonymous with profit, be it income received, capital gain or income and capital gain in 
combination. Usually expressed as a percentage of the nominal value of the asset.

61

D
R
A
FT

e for a contract where somebody pays a sum of money for the right to buy or sell e for a contract where somebody pays a sum of money for the right to buy or sell 
goods at a fixed price by a particular date in the future. However, the goods do not have to goods at a fixed price by a particular date in the future. However, the goods do not have to 

A style of fund management that aims to construct a portfolio to provide the same return as A style of fund management that aims to construct a portfolio to provide the same return as 

established by an employer to facilitate and organise the investment of employees' established by an employer to facilitate and organise the investment of employees' 
retirement funds contributed by the employer and employees. The retirement funds contributed by the employer and employees. The 
generate stable growth over thegenerate stable growth over the long term, and provide plong term, and provide p
reach the end of their working years and commence retirement.reach the end of their working years and commence retirement.

When equity capital is made available to companies or investors, but not quoted on a stock When equity capital is made available to companies or investors, but not quoted on a stock 
market. The funds raised through private equity can be used to develop new products and market. The funds raised through private equity can be used to develop new products and 
technologies, to expand working capital, to make acquisitions, or to strengthen a company's technologies, to expand working capital, to make acquisitions, or to strengthen a company's 
balance sheet. Also known as balance sheet. Also known as development capitaldevelopment capital

Page 108



Risk

The likelihood of performance deviating significantly from the average. The wider the spread 
of investment in an investment sector or across investment sectors, i.e. the greater the 
diversification, the lower the risk.

Scheme Employers
Local authorities and other similar bodies whose staff automatically qualify to become 
members of the pension fund

Security
An investment instrument, other than an insurance policy or fixed annuity, issued by a 
corporation, government, or other organisation, which offers evidence of debt or equity

Socially Responsible Investment (SRI)
Investments or funds containing stock in companies whose activities are considered ethical.

Specialist Manager
A fund management arrangement whereby a number of different managers each 
concentrate on a different asset class. A specialist fund manager is concerned primarily with 
stock selection within the specialist asset class. Asset allocation decisions are made by 
the investment committee, their consultant or by a specialist tactical asset allocation 
manager (or combination of the three).

Stock
A type of security that signifies ownership in a corporation and represents a claim on part of 
the corporation's assets and earnings. Also known as shares or equity.

Stock Selection
The process of deciding which stocks to buy within an asset class.

The Fund

'The Fund' explicitly refers to London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund 

Tracking Error
An unplanned divergence between the price behaviour of an underlying stock or portfolio 
and the price behaviour of a benchmark. Reflects how closely the make-up of a portfolio 
matches the make-up of the index that it is tracking.

Transaction Costs
Those costs associated with managing a portfolio, notably brokerage costs and taxes.

Transfer Value
The amount transferred to/from another pension fund should a member change 
employment. The amount transferred relates to the current value of past contributions.

Transition
To move from one set of investment managers to another

Underwriting
The process by which investment bankers raise investment capital from investors on behalf 
of corporations and governments that are issuing securities (both equity and debt)

Unit Trust
A pooled fund in which investors can buy and sell units on an ongoing basis

62

D
R
A
FT

a number of different managers each a number of different managers each 
concentrate on a different asset class. A specialist fund manager is concerned primarily with concentrate on a different asset class. A specialist fund manager is concerned primarily with 

Asset allocationAsset allocation decisions are made by 
the investment committee, their consultant or by a specialist tactical asset allocation the investment committee, their consultant or by a specialist tactical asset allocation 

A type of security that signifies ownership in a corporation and represents a claim on part of A type of security that signifies ownership in a corporation and represents a claim on part of 
the corporation's assets and earnings. Also known as shares orthe corporation's assets and earnings. Also known as shares or

The process of deciding which stocks to buy within an asset class.The process of deciding which stocks to buy within an asset class.

'The Fund' explicitly refers to London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fun'The Fund' explicitly refers to London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fun

An unplanned divergence between the price behaviour of an underlying stock or portfolio An unplanned divergence between the price behaviour of an underlying stock or portfolio 
and the price behaviour of a benchmark. Reflects how closely the makeand the price behaviour of a benchmark. Reflects how closely the make

up of the index that it is tracking.up of the index that it is tracking.

Page 109



Unlisted Security
A security which is not traded on an exchange

Unrealised Gains/(losses)
The increase/(decrease) at year-end in the market value of investments held by the fund 
since the date of their purchase.

Yield
The rate of income generated from a stock in the form of dividends, or the effective rate of 
interest paid on a bond, calculated by the coupon rate divided by the bond's market price. 
Furthermore, for any investment, yield is the annual rate of return expressed as a 
percentage. 

63

D
R
A
FT

Page 110



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

Investment Strategy and Fund Manager Performance (Part 
I) 
 

Contact Officers  Sian Kunert, 01895 556578 
Scott Jamieson 

David O'Hara, KPMG 

   

Papers with this report  Northern Trust Performance Report 
Ministerial letter on pooling 

 
 
SUMMARY 
 

This is the main report which focuses on the investment of the Fund's assets.  The 
report includes an overview of fund performance as at 30 June 2017, an update on 
recent investment decisions, and progress of the London CIV.   
 
The total size of the fund was £965m at 30 June 2017 an increase from £956m at 
the end of last quarter, with an overall investment return over the quarter was 0.94%, 
giving rise to relative under-performance of the benchmark by 0.01%. Included with 
this report is the Northern Trust performance.  
 
Part II includes an update on each Fund Manager and the detailed current market 
backdrop. These papers all form background reading to inform Committee and to aid 
discussion. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
It is recommended that Pensions Committee, following consideration of the 
Part II papers: 
 

1. Discuss the Fund performance update and agree any required decisions 
in respect of mandates or Fund Managers; 

2. Delegate the implementation of any decisions to the Officer and Advisor 
- Investment Strategy Group;  

3. Note the follow up activity to previous investment decisions and 
progress in the development of the London CIV. 
 

 
INFORMATION 
 
1. Fund Performance 
 
Over the last quarter to 30 June 2017, the Fund returned 0.94% (2.88% March 2017) 
just 1 basis point below the fund benchmark of 0.95% (3.14% March 2017). The 
value of the Fund increased over the quarter by £9m, to bring the fund balance to 
£965.5m as at 30 June 2017.  

Agenda Item 6

Page 111



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

 

Period of measurement 
Fund Return 

% 
Benchmark 

% 
Arithmetic 
Excess   

Quarter 0.94 0.95 -0.01 

1 Year 14.27 12.57 +1.70 

3 Year 9.60 8.96 +0.64 

5 Year 10.33 9.41 +0.92 

Since Inception (09/1995) 7.19 7.03 +0.16 

 
During the quarter distributions were made from various mandates with funds being 
transferred to fund the commitment to Permira. Positive impacts were seen from 
Macquarie LGT and AEW negated by negative performance from UBS Property and 
Ruffer.  
 
Relative outperformance over a one year rolling period was 1.51% ahead of the 
benchmark with the largest contributions from Macquarie and M&G. 
 
2. Asset Allocation 
 
The current asset allocation, the key strategic tool for the Committee, is outlined in 
the table below. The assets of the Fund are currently invested across 13 different 
Fund Managers in a range of passive and active mandates, including a mix of liquid 
and illiquid allocations to reflect the Fund's long term horizon. 
 
Current Asset Allocation by Asset Class 

  
Market Value As 
at 30 June 2017 

Actual 
Asset 

Allocation 

Benchmark 

  

Allocation 

 ASSET CLASS £'000 % % 

UK Equities 212,661 22.0 
47.0 

Global Equities 247,245 25.5 

UK Index Linked Gilts 61,501 6.4 
12.0 

Corporate Bonds (Global) 86,417 9.0 

Property 117,053 12.1 12.0 

DGF/Absolute Returns 103,971 10.8 12.0 

Private Equity 25,656 2.7 4.0 

Infrastructure 27,418 2.8 3.0 

Private Credit 56,743 5.9 10.0 

Cash & Cash Equivalents 26,814 2.8 0.0 

Totals 965,479 100.0 100.0 

 
The underweight in Private Credit is due to a further £30.8 million committed to 
Permira awaiting drawdown of investment. 

Page 112



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

Current Asset Allocation by Manager 

    Market Value 
As at 30 June 

2017 
Actual Asset 
Allocation     

FUND MANAGER ASSET CLASS £'000 % 

ADAMS STREET Private Equity 16,592 1.7 

LGT  Private Equity 9,023 0.9 

AEW Property 49,186 5.1 

JP MORGAN Corporate Bonds (Global) 55,302 5.7 

LCIV RUFFER DGF/Absolute Returns 103,971 10.8 

M&G Private Credit 17,883 1.9 

MACQUARIE  Infrastructure 27,418 2.8 

NEWTON Global Equities 139,272 14.4 

PERMIRA Private Credit 38,860 4 

LGIM UK Equities 88,195 9.1 

  Global Equities 107,973 11.3 

  UK Index Linked Gilts 61,501 6.4 

  Corporate Bonds (Global) 31,115 3.2 

UBS EQUITIES UK Equities 124,466 12.9 

  Property 22 0 

  Private Equity 41 0 

  Cash & Cash Equivalents 4,946 0.5 

UBS PROPERTY Property 67,845 7 

  Cash & Cash Equivalents 1,736 0.2 

Non Custody Cash & Cash Equivalents 20,132 2.1 

    965,479 100 

 
Note: Asset Market Valuation is at BID price, as per accounting requirements, which 
differs from the attached Northern Trust Performance report which is measured at 
MID price.  
 
 
3. Market and Financial climate overview 
 
During the second quarter of 2017 the French and UK elections dominated the 
period resulting in volatile European and UK equity markets. However both markets 
finished the quarter broadly flat. The French election result and strong economic 
data helped drive confidence within the European area whilst in the UK, a reduced 
Conservative majority, uncertain Brexit negotiations and weakening economic data 
dampened the UK outlook. US equities delivered a positive return with the S&P 500 
up approximately 2.5% despite a confused message regarding the trajectory of 
rates. Strong corporate earnings and growing optimism regarding the economy also 
helped Japan to finish ahead. Taking all regions together, the FTSE World was up 
0.5% over the second quarter.  
 

Page 113



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

UK inflation ended June at 2.6% and below market expectations. This represented a 
fall from the May figure of 2.7% and the first reduction since April 2016.  The largest 
detractors came from the Transport sector as a result of a fall in fuel prices when 
compared to a 2.2% increase in the previous year and Recreational and Cultural 
Goods & Services which were again down from a year before.  However, consumers 
have started to feel the bite with Food, Household Goods and Restaurants & Hotels 
all providing upward pressure. Going forward the Monetary Policy Committee 
expects inflation to increase over the coming months peaking at 3% in October.  
With this outlook, UK government 10-year gilts yields were up 0.12% on the quarter 
and the FTSE All Stock Index down by 1.29%.    
 
 
4. LCIV update 
 
Since last quarter the LCVI have opened one more sub fund and three more are due 
to open for investment by the end of September. The London CIV are currently 
ahead of their business plan target for assets under management. The London CIV 
(LCIV) now have 9 active sub funds open.  
 
Sub funds available on the platform currently  

Fund Name Manager Fund Type 

LONDON LGPS CIV GLOBAL 
EQUITY ALPHA FUND 

Allianz Global equity 

LONDON LGPS CIV GLOBAL 
ALPHA GROWTH FUND 

Baillie Gifford Global equity 

LCIV RF ABSOLUTE RETURN 
FUND 

Ruffer Diversified growth Fund 

LCIV PY GLOBAL TOTAL RETURN 
FUND 

Pyrford Absolute return 

LONDON LGPS CIV DIVERSIFIED 
GROWTH FUND 

Baillie Gifford Diversified growth Fund 

LCIV NW REAL RETURN FUND Newton Absolute return 

LCIV MJ UK EQUITY FUND Majedie UK Equity 

LCIV NW GLOBAL EQUITY FUND Newton Global equity 

LCIV LV Global Equity Fund Longview Global equity 

 
The next funds to open for investment in September are Epoch (Income), RBC 
(Sustainable), Henderson (Emerging markets).  
 
The CIV developing its plans to add fixed income options and are investigating how 
to enable more illiquid sub funds into the pool as they are not supported on an ACS 
structure. 
 
Hillingdon Fund Investment with the London CIV 
 
The Hillingdon Pension Fund currently invests in Ruffer on the LCIV platform and 
LGIM which sits alongside the LCIV Platform accessing the economies of scale 

Page 114



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

created via the LCIV. The Fund has total LCIV holdings of £393m at 31 March 2017 
accounting for 41% of total assets.  
 
The Minister for Local Government recently sent a letter to all pools to highlight 
progress by the pools and the focus of government in this area. A copy of the 
ministers letter is included as a supporting paper to this report. The minster praises 
development of the pools and acknowledges resourcing implication on the pools. 
The letter highlights in some situations they do not have sufficient assurance relation 
to pools being operational with FCA approval in time. This is not relevant to the LCIV 
who have FCA approval and assets under management. The minster reiterates its 
stance on pooling stating that "In order to achieve the maximum savings funds must 
invest in the pools with minimum exceptions, where there is a value for money case, 
and they must delegate manager selection to the operator". The minister also goes 
on to discuss government want to see infrastructure increasing in line with pools 
ambitions. 
 
The Pensions Committee should consider the offers available, or as they become 
available, through the LCIV to continue to benefit from the cost savings of the pool 
where there is a match to strategic asset allocation. In September Epoch will provide 
the first income Global Equity Income sub fund available to invest in, which is 
equivalent to the funds current allocation through Newton. Officers are currently 
discussing and understanding the fee structure of this sub fund, but based on early 
discussions it looks like there will be a small ongoing saving initially (excluding 
transition costs) and this saving should increase assuming the LCIV management 
fees reduce over time with the efficient running of the operator. 
 
The Hillingdon fund are represented on two of the sub fund working groups and 
Investment Sub Committee as well as the Joint Committee enabling the fund to have 
insight into the workings 
 
 
Voting and ESG 

As part of the Pension Committees role in making investment decisions it is required 
to take into account factors which are financially material to the performance of an 
investment, balancing returns against risks. This includes risks to the long-term 
sustainability of a company’s performance which could arise from a number of 
factors including poor governance, environmental degradation, or the risks to a 
company’s reputation arising from the way it treats its customers, suppliers or 
employees. 
 
All the managers in which the Hillingdon Pension Fund invest have Responsible 
Investing and ESG policies which enable them to promote long term shareholder 
value and protect the interest of shareholders by only investing in well governed 
companies.  
 
During the quarter ended 30 June 2017 the Hillingdon Investment managers made 
the following votes 
 

Page 115



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

Fund 
Manager 

Meetings 
Voted 

Resolutions Votes With 
Management 

Votes Against 
Management 

Abstentions 

UBS 6,204 70,789 63,456 7,333 - 

Newton 297 507 279 218 10 

JP Morgan 1,015 14,276 12,636 1,626 14 

LGIM 2,173 31,213 26,884 4,292 37 

 

Overall, Newton Asset Management were quite distinct in their opposition of most 
management resolutions by voting against 43% of such proposals. 
 
On average, UBS, JP Morgan and LGIM opposed about 10% of proposals at 
meetings attended. UBS were the most active fund manager by attending and voting 
at 6,204 meetings, with Newton attending 297 shareholder meetings, the least, 
during the period under review. 
 
The Pensions Regulator (TPR) received a referral claiming LGPS firms were acting 
unlawfully by not taking climate risk factors into account when making investment 
decisions. The Pensions regulator has responded to reiterate their purpose is to how 
investment policy and decisions are made in the LGPS, and not what decisions were 
being made, however they have said they recognise come of the concerns raised 
and that funds should be paying attention to Environmental Social and Governance 
factors when setting investment strategy. TPR has been in discussion with the 
Scheme Advisory board over guidance in this area which will be issued in the winter 
to further guide investment decisions, and a paper will be brought to Pensions 
Committee once this has been published. 
 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The financial implications are contained within the body of the report 
 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no legal implications in the report. 
 

Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

Implementation of the Markets in Financial Instruments 
Derivative (MiFID II) 
 

Contact Officers  Sian Kunert, 01895 556578 
 

   

Papers with this report  APPENDIX 1 – Retail client protections 
APPENDIX 2 – Summary of FCA policy statement 

APPENDIX 3 – Opt up process flowchart 
APPENDIX 4 – Opt up letter template 

APPENDIX 5 – Opt up information template 
 

 
SUMMARY 
 

This report outlines the impact of the implementation of the Markets in Financial 
Instrument Directive 2014/65 (“MiFID II”) and in particular the risk to the of becoming 
a retail client on 3rd January 2018 and recommends that the committee agree that 
elections for professional client status should be made on behalf of the authority 
immediately. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
It is recommended that Pensions Committee: 
 

1. Notes the potential impact on investment strategy of becoming a retail 
client with effect from 3rd January 2018; 

2. Agrees to the immediate commencement of applications for elected 
professional client status with all relevant institutions in order to ensure 
it can continue to implement an effective investment strategy. 

3. In electing for professional client status the committee acknowledges 
and agrees to forgo the protections available to retail clients attached as 
APPENDIX 1. 

4. Agrees to approve delegated responsibility to The Corporate Director 
Finance for the purposes of completing the applications and 
determining the basis of the application as either full or single service. 
 

INFORMATION 
 
Context 
 
Under the current UK regime, local authorities are automatically categorised as per 
se professional clients in respect of non MiFID scope business and are categorised 
as per se professional clients for MiFID scope business if they satisfy the MiFID 
Large Undertakings test. Local authorities that do not satisfy the Large Undertakings 
test may opt up to elective professional client status if they fulfil certain ‘optup 
criteria’.  
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 133



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

Following the introduction of the Markets in Financial Instrument Directive 2014/65 
(“MiFID II”) from 3 January 2018, firms will no longer be able to categorise a local 
public authority or a municipality that (in either case) does not manage public debt 
(“local authority”) as a per se professional client or elective ECP for both MiFID and 
non-MiFID scope business. Instead, all local authorities must be classified as “retail 
clients” unless they are opted up by firms to an elective professional client status.  
 
Furthermore, the FCA has exercised its discretion to adopt gold-plated opt-up criteria 
for the purposes of the quantitative opt-up criteria, which local authority clients must 
satisfy in order for firms to reclassify them as an elective professional client. 
 
Potential Impact 
 
A move to retail client status would mean that all financial services firms like banks, 
brokers, advisers and fund managers will have to treat the fund the same way they 
do individuals and small businesses. That includes a raft of protections ensuring that 
investment products are suitable for the customer’s needs, and that all the risks and 
features have been fully explained. This provides a higher standard of protection for 
the client but it also involves more work and potential cost for both the firm and the 
client, to the regulator that all requirements have been met. 
 
Such protections would come at the price of not being able to access the wide range 
of assets needed to implement an effective investment strategy. Retail status would 
significantly restrict the range of institutions and instruments available to authorities. 
Many institutions currently servicing the LGPS are not authorised to deal with retail 
clients and may not wish to undergo the required changes to resources and 
permissions in order to do so.  
 
Even if the institution secures the ability to deal with retail clients the range of 
instruments it can make available to the client will be limited to those defined under 
FCA rules as ‘non-complex’ which would exclude many of the asset classes 
currently included in LGPS fund portfolios. In many cases managers will no longer 
be able to even discuss (‘promote’) certain asset classes and vehicles with the 
authority as a retail client.  
 
Election for professional client status 
 
MiFID II allow for retail clients which meet certain conditions to elect to be treated as 
professional clients (to ‘opt up’). There a two tests which must be met by the client 
when being assessed by the financial institution the quantitative and the qualitative 
test.  
 
The Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) and the LGA along 
with the Department of Communities and Local Government and the Investment 
Association (IA) have successfully lobbied the FCA to make the test better fitted to 
the unique situation of local authorities. 
 
The new tests recognise the status of LGPS administering authorities as providing a 
‘pass’ for the quantitative test while the qualitative test can now be performed on the 

Page 134



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

authority as a collective rather than an individual. A summary of and extracts from 
the FCA policy statement which set out these new tests is attached as APPENDIX 2 
 
The election to professional status must be completed with all financial institutions 
prior to the change of status on 3rd January. Failure to do so would result in the 
institution having to take ‘appropriate action’ which could include a termination of the 
relationship at a significant financial risk to the authority.  
 
The SAB and the LGA have worked with industry representative bodies including the 
IA, the British Venture Capital Association (BVCA) and others to develop a standard 
opt-up process with letter and information templates. This process should enable a 
consistent approach to assessment and prevent authorities from having to submit a 
variety of information in different formats. 
 
A flowchart of the process is attached as APPENDIX 3 and the letter and information 
templates are attached as APPENDICES 4 and 5 
 
Applications can be made in respect of either all of the services offered by the 
institution (even if not already being accessed) or a particular service only. A 
authority may wish to do the latter where the institution offers a wide range of 
complex instruments which the authority does not currently use and there is no 
intention to use the institution again once the current relationship has come to an 
end. It is recommended that officers determine the most appropriate basis of the 
application either full or single service.  
 
Authorities are not required to renew elections on a regular basis but will be required 
to review the information provided in the optup process and notify all institutions of 
any changes in circumstances which could affect their status; for example, if the 
membership of the committee changed significantly resulting in a loss of experience 
or if the relationship with the authority’s investment advisor was terminated. 
 
LGPS pools  
 
LGPS pools will be professional investors in their own right so the fund will not need 
to opt up with external institutions they use. Authorities will however need to opt up 
with their LGPS pool in order to access the full range of services and funds on offer. 
 
In some circumstances, in particular where the pool only offers access to fund 
structures such as ACS, the pool could use ‘safe harbour’ provisions resulting from 
local authorities continuing to be named as professional investors in both the 
Financial Promotion Order (the “FPO”) or in the Financial Services and Markets Act 
2000 (Promotion of Collective Investment Schemes) (Exemptions) Order (the 
“PCISO”). These provisions would enable the promotion and potential sale of units in 
fund structures to local authorities as retail investors. 
 
Elections to professional status will be needed for every institution the authority uses 
outside of the pool both existing and new together with a continuing review of all 
elections. If all new purchases are made via fund structures within the pool then no 
new elections will be required, only an ongoing review of the elections made with the 

Page 135



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

pool and any legacy external institutions, the number of which would reduce as 
assets are transferred. 
 
Next steps  
 
In order to continue to effectively implement the authority’s investment strategy after 
3rd January applications for election to be treated as a professional clients should be 
submitted to all financial institutions with whom the authority has an existing or 
potential relationship in relation to the investment of the pension fund. 
 
This process should commence as soon as possible in order to ensure complete in 
good time and avoids the need for appropriate action to be taken by institutions in 
relation to the authority’s pension fund investments. 
 
The officer named in the recommendations be granted the necessary delegation to 
make applications on the authority’s behalf and to determine the nature of the 
application on either full or single service basis.  
 
Note - Single service basis opt up is electing up with a fund manager for a single 
specific asset class. Full service basis opt up is for all future assets classes or advice 
the fund may require now or as part of its ongoing strategy. Opt up to either full or 
single service will be based on type of relationship and future service provision with 
the financial institution. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The financial implications are contained within the body of the report 
 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The legal implications are mentioned within the report. 
 
 

Page 136



Warnings - loss of protections as a Professional Client 

Professional Clients are entitled to fewer protections under the UK and EU regulatory regimes 
than is otherwise the case for Retail Clients.  This document contains, for information purposes 
only, a summary of the protections that you will lose if you request and agree to be treated as 
a Professional Client.   
 
1. Communicating with clients, including financial promotions 

As a Professional Client the simplicity and frequency in which the firm communicates 
with you may be different to the way in which they would communicate with a Retail 
Client.  They will ensure however that our communication remains fair, clear and not 
misleading.   

2. Information about the firm, its services and remuneration 

The type of information that the firm provides to Retail Clients about itself,  its  services 
and its products and how it is remunerated differs to what the firm provides to 
Professional Clients. In particular,   

(A) The firm is obliged to provide information on these areas to all clients but the 
granularity, medium and timing of such provision may be less specific for clients 
that are not Retail Clients; and  

(B) there are particular restrictions on the remuneration structure for staff providing 
services to Retail Clients which may not be applicable in respect of staff 
providing services to Professional Clients; 

(C) the information which the firm provides in relation to costs and charges for its 
services and/or products may not be as comprehensive for Professional Clients 
as it would be for Retail Clients, for example, they are required when offering 
packaged products and services to provide additional information to Retail 
Clients on the risks and components making up that package; and  

(D)  when handling orders on behalf of Retail Clients, the firm has an obligation to 
inform them about any material difficulties in carrying out the orders; this 
obligation may not apply in respect of Professional Clients. 

3.  Suitability 

In the course of providing advice or in the course of providing discretionary 
management services, when assessing suitability for Professional Clients, the firm is 
entitled to assume that in relation to the products, transactions and services for which 
you have been so classified, that you have the necessary level of experience and 
knowledge to understand the risks involved in the management of your investments.  
The firm will assess this information separately for Retail Clients and would be required 
to provide Retail Clients with a suitability report.  

4.  Appropriateness 

For transactions where the firm does not provide you with investment advice or 
discretionary management services (such as an execution-only trade), it may be 
required to assess whether the transaction is appropriate.  In respect of a Retail Client, 
there is a specified test for ascertaining whether the client has the requisite investment 

Page 137



knowledge and experience to understand the risks associated with the relevant 
transaction.  However, in respect of a Professional Client, the firm is entitled to assume 
that they have the necessary level of experience, knowledge and expertise to 
understand the risks involved in a transaction in products and services for which they 
are classified as a Professional Client.  

5.  Dealing 

A range of factors may be considered for Professional Clients in order to achieve best 
execution (price is an important factor but the relative importance of other different 
factors, such as speed, costs and fees may vary). In contrast, when undertaking 
transactions for Retail Clients, the total consideration, representing the price of the 
financial instrument and the costs relating to execution, must be the overriding factor 
in any execution. 

6.  Reporting information to clients  

For transactions where the firm does not provide discretionary management services 
(such as an execution-only transactions), the timeframe for our providing confirmation 
that an order has been carried out is more rigorous for Retail Clients’ orders than 
Professional Clients’ orders.  

7.  Client reporting 

Investment firms that hold a retail client account that includes positions in leveraged 
financial instruments or contingent liability transactions shall inform the Retail Client, 
where the initial value of each instrument depreciates by 10% and thereafter at 
multiples of 10%.  These reports do not have to be produced for Professional Clients. 

8.  Financial Ombudsman Service  

The services of the Financial Ombudsman Service may not be available to you as a 
Professional Client.  

9.  Investor compensation 

Eligibility for compensation from the Financial Services Compensation Scheme is not 
contingent on your categorisation but on how your organisation is constituted.  Hence, 
depending on how you are constituted you may not have access to the Financial 
Services Compensation Scheme.  

10. Exclusion of liability 

The FCA rules restrict the firm’s ability to exclude or restrict any duty of liability which 
the firm owes to Retail Clients more strictly than in respect of Professional Clients. 

11. Trading obligation 

In respect of shares admitted to trading on a regulated market or traded on a trading 
venue, the firm may, in relation to the investments of Retail Clients, only arrange for 
such trades to be carried out on a regulated market, a multilateral trading facility, a 
systematic internaliser or a third-country trading venue.  This is a restriction which may 
not apply in respect of trading carried out for Professional Clients. 

Page 138



12. Transfer of financial collateral arrangements 

As a Professional Client, the firm may conclude title transfer financial collateral 
arrangements with you for the purpose of securing or covering your present or future, 
actual or contingent or prospective obligations, which would not be possible for Retail 
Clients. 

13.  Client money 

The requirements under the client money rules in the FCA Handbook (CASS) are more 
prescriptive and provide more protection in respect of Retail Clients than in respect of 
Professional Clients. 

It should be noted that at all times you will have the right to request a different client 
categorisation and that you will be responsible for keeping the firm informed of any change 
that could affect your categorisation as a Professional Client. 

 

 

Page 139



Page 140

This page is intentionally left blank



FCA Markets in Financial Instruments Directive II Implementation – Policy 
Statement II 
 
The matters relating to the reclassification of local and public authorities as retail are covered in 
Chapter 8 pages 64 to 74 of the full document https://www.fca.org.uk/publication/policy/ps17-14.pdf 

 
Highlights (see highlighted sections following for context) 
 

1. Firms may take a collective view of the expertise, experience and knowledge of committee 
members, taking into account any assistance from authority officers and external advisers 
where it contributes to the expertise, experience and knowledge of those making the decisions 

 
2. Governance and advice arrangements supporting those individuals can inform and contribute 

to the firm’s assessment 
 

3. Adherence to CIPFA Codes or undertaking other relevant training or qualifications may assist 
in demonstrating knowledge and expertise as part of the qualitative test 

 
4. Rules will add a fourth criterion that the client is subject to the LGPS Regulation for their 

pension administration business. Local authorities must continue to meet the size requirement, 
as well as one of the two previous criteria or the new fourth criterion 

 
5. Compliance with the LGPS Regulations, including taking proper advice, will contribute 

to the assessment of knowledge and expertise of the local authority client when making 
decisions 

 
6. Retain the 10 transactions on average per quarter test   as one of the four available 

criteria for enabling a local authority body to opt up. 
 

7. Firms may reasonably assess that a professional treasury manager has worked in the financial 
sector for at least one year, if their role provides knowledge of the provision of services 
envisaged 

 
8. Changed the portfolio size threshold to £10m 

 
9. Proposed transitional arrangements that would allow investment firms to re-assess the 

categorisation of local authority clients between the 3 July 2017 implementation deadline and 3 
January 2018 are being taken forward 

 
Page 67 Our response on the qualitative test 
 
MiFID II requires the qualitative test to be applied to local authorities seeking to opt-up to 
professional client status, with the test itself unchanged from MiFID. It is important that an 
investment firm is confident that a client can demonstrate their expertise, experience and 
knowledge such that the firm has gained a reasonable assurance that the client is capable of 
making investment decisions and understanding the nature of risks involved in the context of 
the transactions or services envisioned.  
 
COBS 3.5.4 requires that the qualitative test should be carried out for the person authorised to carry 
out transactions on behalf of the legal entity. ‘Person’ in this context may be a single person or a 
group of persons. We understand that the persons within a local authority who invest on behalf of 
pension funds are elected officials acting as part of a pensions committee. In those circumstances, 
firms may take a collective view of the expertise, experience and knowledge of committee members, 
taking into account any assistance from authority officers and external advisers where it contributes to 
the expertise, experience and knowledge of those making the decisions. We also understand that 
typically the person(s) within local authorities who invest the treasury reserves of those authorities are 
likely to be officers of the authorities, who are delegated authority from elected members and act 
under an agreed budget and strategy.  
 
Given different governance arrangements, we cannot be prescriptive, but we would stress the 
importance of firms exercising judgement and ensuring that they understand the arrangements 
of the local authority and the clear purpose of this test. It remains a test of the individual, or Page 141



respectively the individuals who are ultimately making the investment decisions, but 
governance and advice arrangements supporting those individuals can inform and contribute to 
the firm’s assessment.  
 
We agree that adherence to CIPFA Codes or undertaking other relevant training or qualifications may 
assist in demonstrating knowledge and expertise as part of the qualitative test. 
 
Page 68 Our response on the quantitative test – approach for Local Government 
Pension Schemes (LGPS)  
 
We recognise that local authority pension schemes are established within the framework of the LGPS 
Regulations and are subject to the oversight of the Pensions Regulator, as well as the broader public 
policy in MiFID II, such as ensuring that local authority pension schemes receive appropriate 
investment services, and that they understand the costs and risks involved with such service.  
 
Some expressed concerns about interpreting the quantitative criteria in light of the common 
governance of local authority pension scheme administration, and recognise that the drafting of our 
proposed rules was not sufficient to achieve our policy intention of allowing all local authorities 
administering LGPS pension funds to have the ability to successfully opt up. Therefore, our rules will 
add a fourth criterion that the client is subject to the LGPS Regulation for their pension administration 
business. Local authorities must continue to meet the size requirement, as well as one of the two 
previous criteria or the new fourth criterion. This will assist all local authority pension fund 
administrators who wish to opt-up to meet the quantitative test, but maintain the need for local 
authorities to qualitatively demonstrate their sophistication to become professional clients. We agree 
with views that compliance with the LGPS Regulations, including taking proper advice, will contribute 
to the assessment of knowledge and expertise of the local authority client when making decisions. 
 
Page 69 Our response on the quantitative test – undertaking 10 transactions on 
average per quarter  
 
We accept that some local authorities will not be able to meet this part of the quantitative test 
(particularly when investing pension funds). However, it continues to be our view that regular 
and recent experience of carrying out relevant transactions remains a useful proxy for 
assessing sophistication. We have received no arguments against this view, and so confirm 
that we will retain this test as one of the four available criteria for enabling a local authority 
body to opt up. 
 
While theoretically this criterion could be ‘gamed’ by firms and clients by churning portfolios, 
we believe it is an unlikely course of action for local authorities who are accountable to the 
electorate and have specific statutory duties requiring prudent management of their financial 
affairs. In future, we could scrutinise any firm who appeared to be recommending this course 
of action to its client and question whether the firm was acting in the client’s best interest and 
whether the firm believed that an artificially higher number of trades contributed to the 
expertise, experience and knowledge of their client. 
 
Page 70 Our response on the quantitative test – employment in the financial sector for 
at least 1 year in a professional position  
 
We accept we could be clearer about who this test is applied to, while ensuring it can be 
applied flexibly to different governance arrangements. We also recognise that employment in 
the financial sector is a criterion that can only apply to a natural person.  
 
In response, we have amended the proposed drafting in COBS 3.5.3BR(b)(ii) to note that ‘the person 
authorised to carry out transactions on behalf of the client works or has worked in the financial sector 
for at least one year in a professional position, which requires knowledge of the provision of services 
envisaged’. This should allow local authorities to delegate authority to make investment decisions on 
their behalf to professional staff with at least one year’s experience. We recognise that this redrafted 
criterion may not be useful for assessing the collective decision making involved in investing local 
authority pension funds. However, we think this will be less problematic given our new fourth criterion 
aimed at LGPS administering authorities. 
 

Page 142



We do not interpret the term ‘financial sector’ in a limited way for the purposes of COBS 
3.5.3BR(2)(b)(ii), and firms may reasonably assess that a professional treasury manager has worked 
in the financial sector for at least one year, if their role provides knowledge of the provision of services 
envisaged. This meets the purpose of the test, to ensure the person acting on behalf of a client has 
the expertise, experience and knowledge necessary in relation to the investment or service being sold 
and the risks involved. 
 
Page 71 Our response on the quantitative test – portfolio size threshold 
  
We have changed the portfolio size threshold to £10m. This follows further data and case 
studies provided by local authorities, Department for Communities and Local Government 
(DCLG) new data, and wider CP responses.  
 
We believe £10m is closer to our policy goal of restricting the ability of the smallest, and by 
implication the least sophisticated, local authorities (town and parish councils, and the smallest 
county and district councils) to opt-up, but giving larger ones the ability to do so more readily, 
(provided they meet the other criteria).  
 
Based on the number of local authorities we estimated were investing in MiFID scope instruments and 
understanding the quoted portfolio size in the DCLG dataset for 2014/15, in CP16/29 we estimated 
that 63 additional local authorities would not be able to opt-up to professional client status for the 
purposes of engaging in MiFID business as a result of our consulted upon policy.  
 
At a £15m portfolio size threshold, this increased to 78 additional local authorities which would 
not be able to opt-up to professional client status for the purposes of engaging in MiFID 
business when we used the new 2015/16 DCLG dataset. 
 
Applying the £10m threshold to data over the following years:  
 
2014/15 – 27 local authorities would not be able to opt-up to professional client status; and the 
estimated one-off costs for investment firms would decrease from £1.7m to £0.8m and on-going costs 
from £0.8m to £0.3m.  
2015/16 – 42 local authorities would not be able to opt-up, and the one-off costs for investment firms 
would decrease from £2.0m to £1.1m, and on-going costs would reduce from £0.9m to £0.5m.47  
 
While a local authority’s ability to borrow extra funds to ‘game’ this requirement may be possible, it is 
questionable whether local authorities would be able to justify this approach while at the same time 
making budgets and investment strategies available for public scrutiny. 
 
Page 74 Our response on transitional arrangements  
 
MiFID II gives us very limited discretion with regard to transitional arrangements for applying 
these rules in respect of local authorities and provides no ability to extend the deadline for 
compliance with this requirement beyond 3 January 2018. We consulted in CP16/43 on 
proposed transitional arrangements that would allow investment firms to re-assess the 
categorisation of local authority clients between the 3 July 2017 implementation deadline and 3 
January 2018. These proposals are being taken forward (see Chapter 24). However, firms will 
not be expected to re-consider categorisation of existing clients other than local authorities, 
where MiFID II rules are the same as existing MiFID rules transposed at COBS 3.  
 
Otherwise, we have made further consequential drafting changes to transitional provisions at 
COBS TP 1 that were added when MiFID was implemented in 2007, but that are no longer 
carried across into MiFID II.  
 
More generally, COBS 3.5.8G notes that professional clients have the responsibility to keep 
investment firms informed about any changes that affect their current categorisation. Further, at 
COBS 3.5.9R, if the firm becomes aware that the client no longer fulfils the initial conditions that made 
the client eligible to be an elective professional client, it must take “appropriate action”. Neither MiFID 
II, nor our rules specify what ‘appropriate action’ is, which will depend on the facts of the case and 
what would be in the client’s best interest. Firms must exercise judgement and consider what would 
be in the best interests of the client. For example, if a client no longer meets the quantitative test to 

Page 143



opt up to professional client status, a firm may decide it is appropriate to cease providing investment 
services but to do so in a way that minimises losses to the client. 

Page 144



UK Local Authority Client Opt-Up Process 

 

 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Investment firms to validate information received from local 

authorities to determine information is (i) sufficient; and (ii) 

appropriate. 

Once the steps above are complete, as of 3 January 2018, the firm 

may continue to treat the local authority as a professional client. 

Local authorities to complete and send investment firms:  

(i) request and consent letter to be opted-up to 

professional client status; and 

(ii) completed quantitative and qualitative questionnaire (to 

allow investment firms to satisfy themselves that the 

local authority passes the qualitative test). 

 

Assess the information received by the local authority and confirm 

that it:  

(i) has provided the request and consent letter to be 

treated as a professional client; and  

(ii) passes (i) the quantitative test and (ii) the qualitative 

test 

 

Log and store the local authority information and the results of the 

internal assessment. 

Stage 1 

Local authorities 

to complete 

letter and 

questionnaire 

and send to 

investment firms 

 

Stage 4 

Client re-

categorisation 

Stage 2 

Investment 

Firms to validate 

the information 

and run the 

client status 

assessment  

 

Stage 3 

Dispatch the 

confirmation 

letter to LA 

clients 

confirming 

professional 

client status  

If a local authority has provided the request and consent letter and 

has satisfied the requirements for both: 

(i) the quantitative test; and 

(ii) the qualitative test, send a letter confirming the 

classification of the client as a professional client.  

STAGES  GUIDANCE TIMELINE 

Preparatory 

Stage 

Finalise standard 

opt-up process 

 

End July 2017 (i) Finalise industry standard quantitative and qualitative 

questionnaire;  

(ii) Finalise request  and consent letter from Local 

Authority to be opted-up; and  

(iii) Finalise response letter from investment firms agreeing 

to the opt-up.  

August – 

September 2017 

September – 

October 2017 

 

October 2017 

3 January 2018 

 
 

   

 

   

Page 145



Page 146

This page is intentionally left blank



Letter requesting categorisation as an elective professional client  

[ON [AUTHORITY] HEADED PAPER] 

[Manager name] 

[Manager address] 

[Date] 

 

Dear [●] 

Request to be treated as a professional investor  

I am writing to you ahead of the implementation in the UK of the Markets in Financial Instruments 
Directive (2014/65/EU) (MiFID II). I have been authorised by NAME OF AUTHORITY (the “Local 
Authority”) to inform you that, in its capacity as an administering authority of a local government 
pension scheme, it wishes to be treated as a professional client for the purpose of: 

(a) any and all investment service(s) which it receives from you (the “Services”); and/or  

(b) the promotion to us of, and investment in, any and all fund(s) managed or advised by you 
(the “Fund Promotions/Investments”). 

We understand you are required to categorise all of your clients as either professional clients or retail 
clients and that you currently categorise the Local Authority as a Professional Client (“Professional 
Client”). However as of 3 January 2018, under new rules deriving from MiFID II, you will be obliged to 
re-categorise the Local Authority as a Retail Client (“Retail Client”) as regards receiving Services from 
you and/or as regards existing fund investments and any future Fund Promotions/Investments, unless 
you are satisfied you can otherwise treat the Local Authority as an elective Professional Client and 
opt-up the Local Authority to this particular client status.  

I confirm and acknowledge that the Local Authority is aware that, being categorised as a Professional 
Client, it will not benefit from the protections and investor compensation rights set out in more detail in 
Schedule 1. In doing so, I confirm that the Local Authority has reviewed and considered the loss of 
these protections and rights very carefully and has, if it felt so appropriate, taken advice from legal, 
financial or other advisors.  

 

I wish to inform you that the Local Authority wishes to be categorised as a Professional Client for the 
purposes of the Services and/or Fund Promotions/Investments, as applicable in its capacity as an 
administrating authority of the Local Government Pension Scheme.  

Prior to re-categorising the Local Authority, as a Professional Client, I understand that you will be 
required to assess the Local Authority on certain quantitative and qualitative grounds. In order to 
facilitate this assessment, please find attached a completed questionnaire for your review and 
consideration.  

Subject to you being reasonably assured that, as of 3 January 2018, the Local Authority satisfies the 
necessary quantitative and qualitative grounds and may be categorised as an elective Professional 
Client, the Local Authority confirms the following:  

(a) its request to be categorised as a Professional Client, in its capacity as an administrating authority 
of the Local Government Pension Scheme, in relation to the Services and/or Fund 
Promotions/Investments.   

(b) all information provided to you by us (for the purposes of facilitating your assessment of the Local 

Authority’s request to be categorised as a Professional Client) is true, accurate and complete.   

Page 147



(c) the Local Authority understands the contents of Schedule 1 which contains summaries of the 
protections and investor compensation rights, if any, that the Local Authority will lose once it is 
categorised as a Professional Client. Please note that I can confirm that the Local Authority is fully 
aware of the consequences of losing such protections and still wishes to apply to be categorised 
as Professional Client in respect of the Services and/or Fund Promotions/Investments.     

(d) the Local Authority has had sufficient time to consider the implications of categorisation as a 
Professional Client and has separately taken any legal, financial or other advice that it deems 
appropriate. 

(e) the Local Authority will inform you of any change that could affect its categorisation as a 
Professional Client.  I also confirm that the Local Authority understands its responsibility to ask 
you for a higher level of protection if it is unable to properly assess or manage the risks involved 
with the investments comprised within the portfolio management mandates which you have been 
appointed to manage. 

(f) I acknowledge the Local Authority understands that you shall be permitted, in your sole discretion 
and without providing any reason, to re-categorise the client as a Retail client or cease to provide 
the Services or otherwise carry out any fund promotion to us or allow future investment in funds 
by us.  

If you have any questions regarding this application please contact [name] on [number] or 
alternatively e-mail us at [email address]. 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 

……………………………………………… 

[insert name and position] [Authority]  
 

Page 148



Schedule 1  

Warnings - loss of protections for the Local Authority if categorised as a Professional Client  

Professional Clients are entitled to fewer protections under the UK and EU regulatory regimes than is 
otherwise the case for Retail Clients.  This Schedule contains, for information purposes only, a 
summary of the protections lost when requesting and agreeing to be treated as a Professional Client.   

 

Part 1 – Loss of protections as a Professional Client when receiving Services 
 
1. Communicating with clients, including financial promotions 

As a Professional Client the simplicity and frequency in which firms communicate with you 
may be different to the way in which we would communicate with a Retail Client.  Firms will 
ensure however that their communication remains fair, clear and not misleading.   

2. Information about the firm, its services and remuneration 

The type of information that a firm provides to Retail Clients about itself, its services and 
products and how it is remunerated differs to what it provides to Professional Clients. In 
particular,   

(A) It is obliged to provide information on these areas to all clients but the granularity, 
medium and timing of such provision may be less specific for clients that are not 
Retail Clients;  

(B) the information which it provides in relation to costs and charges for its services 
and/or products may not be as comprehensive for Professional Clients as it would be 
for Retail Clients, for example, it is required when offering packaged products and 
services to provide additional information to Retail Clients on the risks and 
components making up that package; and  

(C)  when handling orders on behalf of Retail Clients, it has an obligation to inform them 
about any material difficulties in carrying out the orders; this obligation may not apply 
in respect of Professional Clients. 

3.  Suitability 

In the course of providing advice or in the course of providing portfolio management services, 
when assessing suitability for Professional Clients, a firm is entitled to assume that, in relation 
to the products, transactions and services for which Professional Clients have been so 
classified, that they have the necessary level of experience and knowledge to understand the 
risks involved in the management of their investments.  Firms cannot make such an 
assumption in the case of Retail Clients and must assess this information separately. Firms 
would be required to provide Retail Clients with a suitability report, where they provide 
investment advice.  

4.  Appropriateness 

For transactions where a firm does not provide investment advice or portfolio management 
services (such as an execution-only trade), a firm may be required to assess whether the 
transaction is appropriate for the client in question.  In respect of a Retail Client, there is a 
specified test for ascertaining whether the client has the requisite investment knowledge and 
experience to understand the risks associated with the relevant transaction.  However, in 
respect of a Professional Client, a firm is entitled to assume that they have the necessary 
level of experience, knowledge and expertise to understand the risks involved in a transaction 
in products and services for which they are classified as a Professional Client.  

Page 149



5.  Dealing 

A range of factors may be considered for Professional Clients in order to achieve best 
execution (price is an important factor but the relative importance of other different factors, 
such as speed, costs and fees may vary). In contrast, when undertaking transactions for 
Retail Clients, the total consideration, representing the price of the financial instrument and 
the costs relating to execution, must be the overriding factor in determining best execution. 

6.  Reporting information to clients  

For transactions where a firm does not provide portfolio management services (such as an 
execution-only transactions), the timeframe for providing confirmation that an order has been 
carried out is more rigorous for Retail Clients’ orders than Professional Clients’ orders.  

7.  Client reporting 

Firms that manage a retail portfolio that includes positions in leveraged financial instruments 
or contingent liability transactions shall inform the Retail Client, where the initial value of each 
instrument depreciates by 10% and thereafter at multiples of 10%.  These reports do not have 
to be produced for Professional Clients. 

8.  Financial Ombudsman Service  

The services of the Financial Ombudsman Service may not be available to you as a 
Professional Client.  

9.  Investor compensation 

Eligibility for compensation from the Financial Services Compensation Scheme is not 
contingent on your categorisation but on how your organisation is constituted. Your rights (if 
any) to make a claim under the Financial Services Compensation Scheme in the UK will not 
be affected by being categorised as a Professional Client.   

10. Exclusion of liability 

A firms’ ability to exclude or restrict any duty of liability owed to clients is narrower under the 
FCA rules in the case of Retail Clients than in respect of Professional Clients. 

11. Trading obligation 

In respect of shares admitted to trading on a regulated market or traded on a trading venue, a 
firm may, in relation to the investments of Retail Clients, only arrange for such trades to be 
carried out on a regulated market, a multilateral trading facility, a systematic internaliser or a 
third-country trading venue.  This is a restriction which may not apply in respect of trading 
carried out for Professional Clients. 

12. Transfer of financial collateral arrangements 

As a Professional Client, a firm may conclude title transfer financial collateral arrangements 
for the purpose of securing or covering your present or future, actual or contingent or 
prospective obligations, which would not be possible for Retail Clients. 

13.  Client money 

The requirements under the client money rules in the FCA Handbook (CASS) are more 
prescriptive and provide more protection in respect of Retail Clients than in respect of 
Professional Clients. 

Page 150



Part 2 – Loss of protections for the Local Authority as a potential investor if categorised as a 
Professional Client for the purposes of Fund Promotions 

 

1. Fund promotion 

It is generally not permitted for firms to market alternative investment funds (AIFs) to investors 
who are Retail Clients (although there are certain limited exceptions to this rule).   As a 
Professional Client, firms will (subject to complying with applicable marketing rules) be 
generally permitted to market shares or units in AIFs to you, without being subject to this 
restriction.   

2. Non-mainstream pooled investments 

For the purposes of the UK regulatory regime, AIFs typically fall within the definition of an 
“unregulated collective investment scheme”. The UK regulator considers unregulated 
collective investment schemes to be a high-risk investment, which are not generally suitable 
investments for Retail Clients.  As such, firms are not permitted to promote investments in 
unregulated collective investment schemes to Retail Clients (although there are certain limited 
exceptions to this rule).  As a Professional Client, firms will be generally permitted to promote 
an investment in unregulated collective investment schemes to you, without being subject to 
this restriction (and without making any assessment of whether the investment would be 
suitable or appropriate for you). 

3. Communicating with clients, including financial promotions 

Detailed rules govern generally the form and content of financial promotions which are issued 
to investors who are Retail Clients.  However, these detailed form and content rules apply 
less rigorously where a promotion is issued only to investors who are Professional Clients.  As 
a Professional Client, firms will be generally permitted to issue promotions to you which do not 
satisfy the detailed form and content rules for Retail Clients. Firms must ensure however that 
communications remains fair, clear and not misleading.   

4. Financial Ombudsman 

The services of the Financial Ombudsman Service may not be available to you as a 
Professional Client  

5.  Investor compensation 

Eligibility for compensation from the Financial Services Compensation Scheme is not 
contingent on your categorisation but on how your organisation is constituted. Your rights (if 
any) to make a claim under the Financial Services Compensation Scheme in the UK will not 
be affected by being categorised as a Professional Client.   

 

Page 151



Page 152

This page is intentionally left blank



 

FMFS/OPEN/-1/CZZF  czzf(LDN7L32052) L_LIVE_EMEA1:37165946v2 

Elective Professional Client - Status Assessment 

NAME OF LOCAL AUTHORITY:________________________________________________ 

 
CAPACITY: As administering authority of the local government pension scheme 

 
NAME OF OFFICIAL COMPLETING QUESTIONNAIRE:_____________________________ 

 
DATE:___________________ 

QUANTITATIVE TEST 

Answer questions (a) - (d) below. Please ensure that the detail forming the basis of the determination is 
recorded.  

Please answer question (a) with a “Yes” / “No” answer  

(a) Does the size of the local authority’s financial instruments portfolio (including 
both cash deposits and financial instruments) for the purposes of its 
administration of a local government pension scheme exceed 
GBP 10,000,000?  

Portfolio size_______ as at date: ……………………………………………………. 
 
 

 Yes   No 

(b) Is the local authority an ‘administering authority’ of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme within the meaning of the version of Schedule 3 of The Local 
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 or, (in relation to Scotland) 
within the meaning of the version of Schedule 3 of The Local Government 
Pension Scheme (Scotland) Regulations 2014 in force at 1 January 2018, 
and is acting in that capacity? 

 Yes   No 

If the answer is “Yes” to question (b) above, it is not necessary to carry out the assessment in question (c) or 
question (d) and the answer “N/A” can be given in both cases 

(c) Has the local authority carried out transactions (in significant size) on the 
relevant market, at an average frequency of at least 10 per quarter for the 
previous four quarters (i.e. at least 40 investments on the relevant market 

in the last year)? 

Transaction total: ……………………………………………………………………... 

 Yes  No    N/A 

(d) Does the person authorised to carry out transactions on behalf of the local 
authority work or has that person worked in the financial sector for at least 
one year in a professional position, which requires knowledge of the provision 
of services envisaged?  

Details of role: ………………………………………………………………………… 

 Yes  No    N/A 

 

Page 153



 

FMFS/OPEN/-1/CZZF   czzf(LDN7L32052) 2  L_LIVE_EMEA1:37165946v2 

QUALITATIVE TEST 

The “qualitative test” requires a firm to undertake an assessment of the expertise, experience and 
knowledge of the local authority, in order for the firm to be reasonably assured, in light of the nature of the 
transactions or services envisaged, that the local authority is capable of making its own investment 

decisions and understanding the risks involved1. 

In order for a firm to undertake the assessment required for the purposes of the qualitative test, certain 
information must be received from local authorities. Local authorities should provide answers to the questions 
set out below in as comprehensive a fashion as possible. The responses received from the local authority 
client should be considered and assessed internally by the firm.  

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE LOCAL AUTHORITY CLIENT 
 
Section 1: Decision making body for pension investing within your authority 
 
Please complete the following section in relation to the decision making body within the authority. 
 

1. Please indicate which one of the models below is used for investment decisions in the 
administering authority. 

 

a All decisions delegated to committee or sub-committee. 
 
 
(Please tick whether you have enclosed or provided a link to the minute giving 
the officer completing this document the necessary authorisation to do so) 

YES   
NO 

 
Enclosed 

Link 
       

 
 

 
 
 

b Decisions delegated to committee or sub- committee with partial delegation 
to an officer or officers. 
 
(Please tick whether you have enclosed or provided a link to the minute giving 
the officer completing this application the necessary authorisation to do so) 

YES   
NO 

 
Enclosed 

Link 
 

 
 

 
 
 

c All decisions delegated to an officer or officers. 
 
 

YES 
NO 

 
 

d Other 
 
 

YES 
NO 

 
 

 

2. Please enclose or provide a link to the relevant scheme of delegations, which 
confirm details of the model elected above. 
 

Enclosed 
Link 

 
 

 
 

3. If you have selected model “d - other” above, please use the box below to describe the composition 
of the decision making model giving details of the parties and their functions. 
 
Details should include information on how the decision making body is constructed, constituted 
and periodically reviewed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

                                                
1 COBS 3.5.3R (1)  

Page 154



 

FMFS/OPEN/-1/CZZF   czzf(LDN7L32052) 3  L_LIVE_EMEA1:37165946v2 

Section 2: Expertise, experience and knowledge 
 
Please answer the following questions in relation to the members of the committee or sub-committee (not 
officers, investment advisors or consultants) which makes investment decisions of behalf of the authority. 
 
If you answered (c) to Section 1 Question 1, please move to Section 3. 
 

1 Are members provided with a written brief on joining the committee? 
 
 
(Please tick whether you have enclosed or provided a link to a copy of an 
example of the briefing) 
 

YES 
NO 

 
Enclosed 

Link 

 
 

 
 
 

 

2 Are members provided with training on investment matters?  
 
 
(Please tick whether you have enclosed or provided a link to examples of the 
training offered to members in the last 12 months) 

YES 
NO 

 
Enclosed 

Link 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 Please indicate the total number of hours of training offered and delivered to 
the committee over the last 12 months. 

 
hours offered 

 
hours delivered 

 

3 Is the attendance of members at training monitored and recorded?  
 
    

YES 
NO 

 
 

4 Please state the average number of hours of training committee members 
have attended over the last 12 months. 
 

 
hours 

5 Please state the average number of hours at investment conferences that 
committee members have attended over the last 12 months. 
 

 
hours 

6 Are members required to complete a self-assessment with regard to their 
knowledge of investments? 
 
(Please tick whether you have enclosed or provided a link to details of the self-
assessment tool used) 

YES 
NO 

 
Enclosed 

Link 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

7 Please state the number of years served on the committee (or other such 
investment committees) on average for each member 
 

 
years 

8 Please provide any other information which may assist with the assessment 
of the knowledge, experience and expertise of the committee or sub-
committee - (such as the average number of years of independent investment 
experience by members).  
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 155



 

FMFS/OPEN/-1/CZZF   czzf(LDN7L32052) 4  L_LIVE_EMEA1:37165946v2 

Section 3: Investment history and strategy 
 

1 Please complete the following questions in relation to the authority’s history and current strategy 
with regard to investments which are acquired through an investment manager’s investment 
mandate or invested in directly (e.g. funds). 

 

Asset class or investment vehicle Number of years held Currently Held 

Fixed interest securities 
 

0   1-3   4-5   5+  YES  NO  

Index-linked securities 
 

0   1-3   4-5   5+  YES  NO  

Listed equities 
 

0   1-3   4-5   5+  YES  NO  

Pooled investment vehicles (PIVs) – authorised 
funds (e.g. UCITS, NURS, PAIFs) 
 

0   1-3   4-5   5+  YES  NO  

Pooled investment vehicles (PIVs) – 
unauthorised (e.g. investment trusts, close-
ended real estate funds, hedge funds) 
 

0   1-3   4-5   5+  YES  NO  

Property PIVs 
 

0   1-3   4-5   5+  YES  NO  

Private equity funds 
 

0   1-3   4-5   5+  YES  NO  

Property 
 

0   1-3   4-5   5+  YES  NO  

Exchange traded derivatives (ETDs) 
 

0   1-3   4-5   5+  YES  NO  

Over-the-counter derivatives (OTCs) 0   1-3   4-5   5+  YES  NO  
 

Commodities 
 

0   1-3   4-5   5+  YES  NO  
 

Cash deposits 0   1-3   4-5   5+  YES  NO  
 

Commercial paper 0   1-3   4-5   5+  YES  NO  
 

Floating rate notes 0   1-3   4-5   5+  YES  NO  
 

Money market funds  0   1-3   4-5   5+  YES  NO  
 

Other asset classes or investment vehicles 
where the authority has experience (Please give 
details below) 

  

 1-3   4-5   5+  YES  NO  

 1-3   4-5   5+  YES  NO  

 1-3   4-5   5+  YES  NO  

 1-3   4-5   5+  YES  NO  

 
 

2 Please tick whether you have enclosed or provided a link to the most recent 
version of the authority’s Investment Strategy Statement. 
 

Enclosed 
Link 

 

 
 

3 Has the authority taken the appropriate advice, as required by regulation, in 
preparing its Investment Strategy Statement? 
 

YES 
NO 

 
 

 
  

Page 156



 

FMFS/OPEN/-1/CZZF   czzf(LDN7L32052) 5  L_LIVE_EMEA1:37165946v2 

Section 4: Understanding risks 
 
Please answer the following questions in relation to the members of the committee or sub-committee or 
officers (not investment advisors or consultants) making investment decisions of behalf of the authority. 
 

1 Does the authority have a risk framework and/or risk management policy in 
place in relation to investments? 
 
(Please tick whether you have enclosed or provided a link to a details of the 
framework/policy) 

YES 
NO 

 
Enclosed 

Link 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

2 Was external advice taken with regard to the preparation, monitoring and 
review of the framework/policy? 
 

YES 
NO 

 
 

  
If yes, please provide the name of the advisor:  
 

3 Is the risk framework/policy reviewed on a regular basis? 
 
 

YES 
NO 

 
 

 If YES please state the frequency of the review. 
 

 
 

 (Please tick whether you have enclosed or provided a link to details of the last 
review)  
 

Enclosed 
Link 

 
 

 

4 Are those directly involved in decision making provided with training on risk 
management, including focused training on understanding the risks involved 
with investments? 
 
(Please tick whether you have enclosed or provided a link to examples of the 
training offered in the last 12 months) 
 

YES 
NO 

 
Enclosed 

Link 

 
 

 
 
 

5 Are those directly involved in decision making required to complete a self-
assessment with regard to their understanding of risk management? 
 
(Please tick whether you have enclosed or provided a link to details of the self-
assessment tool used) 
 

YES 
NO 

 
 

Enclosed 
Link 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
  

Page 157



 

FMFS/OPEN/-1/CZZF   czzf(LDN7L32052) 6  L_LIVE_EMEA1:37165946v2 

Section 5: Support for investment decisions taken by committee/sub-committee of the authority 
 
Please answer the following questions in relation to those officers, advisors or consultants who directly 
contribute to assisting the committee/sub-committee of the authority take investment decisions or those 
officers who have delegated decision making powers.  
 
In Section 1 Question 1, if you answered: 

· Model a - please complete Question 1 below  

· Model b - please complete Questions 1 and 2 below  

· Model c - please complete Question 2 below 

· Model d - please complete the below questions as appropriate 
 

1. For each officer providing support to the committee or sub-committee please provide the following 
information. 
 

 

Job title Relevant qualifications Years 
experience in 

role2 

   

   

   

   

   

 

2. For each officer with delegated investment powers please provide the following information (these 
may be the same officers as above). 

 

Job title Limit on asset classes or investment vehicles  Limit on 
delegation (£m) 

   

   

   

   

   

 

3 Does the authority have a written succession plan in place to manage key 
person risk in relation to the above officers? 
 
(Please tick whether you have enclosed or provided a link to details of the 
succession plan) 

YES 
NO 
 
Enclosed 
Link 

 
 

 
 
 

 

4. For each individual investment advisor used by the authority please provide the following 
information only to be completed where these individual investment advisors are engaged on an 
independent basis and not acting on behalf of an entity listed in point 5 below). 

 

Name Relevant qualifications Years 
experience in 

role3 

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 

                                                
2 Or similar role which would provide knowledge of the provision of the services envisaged, which may have 
been carried out at a different organisation. 
3 Or similar role which would provide knowledge of the provision of the services envisaged. 

Page 158



 

FMFS/OPEN/-1/CZZF   czzf(LDN7L32052) 7  L_LIVE_EMEA1:37165946v2 

 

5. For each investment advisory firm used by the authority please provide the following information. 

 

Name of firm Details of FCA authorisation  Years employed 
by authority 

   

   

   

   

   

 

6. For each individual investment consultant used by the authority please provide the following 
information (only to be completed where these consultants are engaged on an independent basis 
and not acting on behalf of an entity listed in point 7 below). 

 

Name Relevant qualifications Years 
experience in 

role4 

   

   

   

   

   

 

7. For each investment consultancy firm used by the authority please provide the following information. 

 

Name of firm Details of FCA authorisation Years employed 
by authority 

   

   

   

   

   

 

8. Please confirm whether the officer, investment advisor firm/individual, 
investment consultancy firm/individual, is aware of the reliance being placed 
on it for the purposes of the client categorisation of Local Authorities.  

YES  NO  
 

                                                
4 Or similar role which would provide knowledge of the provision of the services envisaged. 

Page 159



 

FMFS/OPEN/-1/CZZF   czzf(LDN7L32052) 8  L_LIVE_EMEA1:37165946v2 

Section 6 General questions 
 

1. In the last three years has the authority been censured for a material breach 
of Local Government investment regulations in force from time to time or any 
other related legislation governing investment? 
 
(If yes please tick whether you have enclosed or provided a link to a details of 
the breach) 

YES 
NO 

 
 
Enclosed 
Link 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

2. Please use the box below to provide any further information which may be useful in the support of 
your application. 

 

 

 

 

Page 160



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

Pensions Administration Report 
 

Contact Officers  Ken Chisholm, 01895 250847 

   

Papers with this report   KPI report 
Draft Governance Policy and Compliance Statement  

 

 
SUMMARY 
 
This report is for information and provides an update on the administration of the 
London Borough of Hillingdon Fund of the LGPS, both in relation to Surrey and 
internally at Hillingdon. 
 
Attached to the report is a draft Governance Policy and Compliance Statement for 
approval by Pensions Committee.  This strategy was developed by officers, assisted by 
AON Hewitt, the Fund's governance advisor and reviewed by Pensions Board. It is 
proposed to bring into effect from 1 October 2017. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that Pensions Committee: 
 

1. Agree to the amended list of Authorised Signatories for payment of Death 
Grants. 

2. Approve the Governance Policy and Compliance Statement for the London 
Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund. 

 
INFORMATION 
 

Lump Sum Death Grant - Authorised Signatory 
 
It has been a number of years since the officers delegated to approve Death Grants 
have been updated. As the administering authority for the London Borough of 
Hillingdon Pension Fund, the Council has absolute discretion in deciding who should 
receive payment of a Death Grant. When a payment is due, a report outlining the 
amount due and the circumstances of the death is provided by the Corporate 
Pensions Manager, or the Technical officer Pensions, with a recommendation as to 
who should receive payment of the Death Grant. This is then passed to two 
authorised signatories to either agree or otherwise, the recommendation. The 
payment of the grant cannot be made until two authorised signatories have signed to 
agree the recommendation. 
 
It is recommended that the delegated officers who may authorise a Death Grant are, 
The Head of HR, The Head of Legal Service, HR and OD Service Manger, Director of 
Finance, Legal Services - Office Managing Partner and the Chief Accountant, or the 
equivalent officer if the post name changes.    

 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 161



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

Surrey Administration Update 
 
As reported previously to Committee, the Pension Administration system used by 
Surrey - Altair - includes a sophisticated task management system which allows the 
progress of all case work to be managed and monitored on a daily basis.  The Key 
Performance Indicators (KPIs) against which Surrey are being monitored were all 
contained within the agreed Section 101 agreement.    
 
Surrey, continue to identify errors in members records that they inherited from Capita. 
However, Surrey will be issuing Annual Benefit statements to scheme members within 
the legislative deadline of 31 August. Included with the statements will be details of 
how members may now log-in to the pensions administration system to look at their 
own record. 
 
Surrey is having difficulty in recruiting experienced staff, and have recently decided to 
recruit to trainee positions and train staff themselves. Additionally, an experienced 
member of their team is due to return from maternity leave in September who will be 
able to work exclusively on cleaning Hillingdon data.  Officers are awaiting a detailed 
business plan from Surrey, which will include a request for increased funding to 
provide additional recourses, on a temporary basis, to help with general data 
cleansing issues.  That said the Pensions Manager is very keen that they deliver 
progress with recovering the data quality issues which are causing so much 
additional work.  He has reiterated Surrey's commitment to working together with LB 
Hillingdon to recover the administration service on behalf of the Hillingdon fund and 
has every confidence we can jointly move towards providing an efficient and effective 
service in the future.   
 
Key Performance Indicators 1 July 2017 to 28 August 2017 
 
The attached KPI Report shows a number of areas of concern, especially regarding 
death cases; however, having checked all the cases included in the report, officers 
were able to confirm an acknowledgment was sent out to the Next of Kin within 3 
working days of Surrey being able to identify the relevant person for this purpose. 
Notification of the death may of come from the deceased's bankers or solicitor, and 
Surrey have to then investigate to ascertain who is the Next of Kin. Another major 
area of concern is the late calculation of Spouse's Benefits. This was brought to our 
attention at the last contract review meeting with Surrey and has arisen due to 
Spouses details not being transferred over as part of the transition between Capita 
and Surrey. It has been agreed that the in-house team will look at and correct records 
where a Spouses Benefit is due, to ensure cases are completed with the agreed 
deadline. The next KPI Report submitted to committee will include figures relating to 
the issuing of Annual Benefit Statement,.   
 
Hillingdon Process update 
 
Previous reports to Committee have explained how the in-house team have adapted 
their processes to support the work with Surrey, to ensure that all new starters and 
leavers are identified and checked against information held in the Altair system. 
Processes are still being monitored and amended where necessary. All Scheme 
employers are aware that it is their responsibility to fully inform Surrey of all activity.  

Page 162



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

Monthly monitoring of pension contributions deducted, for both employees and 
employers is undertaken and as part of the process, amounts deducted from scheme 
members are reconciled with contributions paid in to the Pension Fund bank account.  
Discrepancies are immediately referred back to the employer.  These checks enable 
the internal team to identify any new employees or leavers where no documentation 
had been sent to Surrey.   Issues are being addressed as they are identified to ensure 
quality of data is maintained going forward. 
 
Governance Policy and Compliance Statement 
 
Regulation 55 of the Local Government Pension Scheme  Regulations 2013 requires 
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Administering Authorities to publish 
Governance Compliance Statements setting out information relating to how the 
Administering Authority delegates its functions under those regulations and whether it 
complies with guidance given by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 
Government. It also requires the Authority to keep the statement under to review and to 
make revisions as appropriate and where such revisions are made to publish a revised 
statement. 
 
Supported by Daniel Kanaris of AON Hewitt, a draft updated Governance Policy was 
taken to Local Pensions Board for consideration and review in June.  Minor 
amendments have been made in line with Boards suggestions and now the policy is 
with Pensions Committee for approval. 
 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no financial implications within this report. 
 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no legal implications within this report.  

Page 163



Page 164

This page is intentionally left blank



Activity Measure Impact Target Commentary 

Scheme members Pensioners, Active & Deferred

New starters set up/welcome letters 

ABS sent - Councillors Statutory deadline

ABS sent - Active Statutory deadline

ABS sent - Deferred Statutory deadline

Volume Score Volume Score Volume Score May/June

Death notification acknowledged, 

recorded and documentation sent 

5 working days M 100% 7 86% 9 44%   1 case late in July. Legacy case. Same

Payment of death grant made 10 working days H 100% 2 NA 1 100%   DTHDGRA1

Retirement notification 

acknowledged, recorded and 

documentation sent 

10 working days M 100% 30 60% 17 71%   Same - deferreds exc

Payment of lump sum made 10 working days H 100% 29 97% 27 81%    

Calculation of spouses benefits 10 working days M 100% 2 0% 14 36%   These cases are all late because of complexities and resource required to reconstruct the pensioner 

records 

Transfers In - Quote (Values) 20 working days L 100% 5 100% 0 100%   

Transfers In - Payments 20 working days L 100% 0 100% 1 100%   

Transfers Out - Quote 20 working days L 100% 0 100% 2 100%   

Transfers Out - Payments 20 working days L 100% 0 100% 1 0%   

Employer estimates provided 10 working days M 100% 3 67% 4 75%   

Employee projections provided 10 working days L 100% 7 71% 10 40% Some cases took longer than 10 days but forward projections only and we aim to make MSS 

available for this purpose

Refunds 20 working days L 100% 10 100% 8 100%   

Deferred benefit notifications 20 working days L 100% 25 84%     

Complaints received- Admin 1 2   

Complaints received- Regulatory 0 0 0

Compliments received Not recorded Not recorded Not recorded

Queries Handled by Helpdesk 544

Hillingdon Pensions Administation - Key Performance Indicators 2017-18 Q2

July Aug Sept

21510

Due by 

31 Aug

  37

P
a
g
e
 1

6
5



P
a
g
e
 1

6
6

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

London Borough of 

Hillingdon 

Pension Fund 
 

Governance Policy and Compliance 
Statement 

 
 

 
 

 

 

Page 167



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

Governance Policy and Compliance Statement– 
Administering Authority 
 

London Borough of Hillingdon is the Administering Authority of the London Borough 

of Hillingdon Pension Fund and administers the Local Government Pension Scheme 

on behalf of participating employers. 

Regulation 55 of the Local Government Pension Scheme  Regulations 2013 requires 

Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Administering Authorities to publish 

Governance Compliance Statements setting out information relating to how the 

Administering Authority delegates its functions under those regulations and whether it 

complies with guidance given by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 

Government. It also requires the Authority to keep the statement under to review and 

to make revisions as appropriate and where such revisions are made to publish a 

revised statement.  

Aims and Objectives  

The London Borough of Hillingdon recognises the significance of its role as 

Administering Authority to the London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund on behalf 

of its stakeholders which include (at time of drafting):  

§ around 22,100 current and former members of the Fund, and their dependants 

§ over 40 employers within the London Borough of Hillingdon Fund 

§ local taxpayers within the council areas participating in the London Borough of 
Hillingdon Pension Fund. 

 
In relation to the governance of the Fund, our objectives are to ensure that: 

§ all staff and Pensions Committee Members charged with the financial 
administration and decision-making with regard to the Fund are fully equipped 
with the knowledge and skills to discharge the duties and responsibilities 
allocated to them 

§ the Fund is aware that good governance means an organisation is open in its 
dealings and readily provides information to interested parties 

§ all relevant legislation is understood and complied with 

§ the Fund aims to be at the forefront of best practice for LGPS funds 

§ the Fund manages Conflicts of Interest appropriately 

Structure  

The Constitution of the Council sets out how the Council operates, how decisions are 
made and the procedures which are followed to ensure that these are efficient, 
transparent and that those who made the decisions are accountable to local people. 
The Constitution sets out the framework under which the Pension Fund is to be 
administered as shown in the diagram below. 

 

Page 168



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

 

 

Terms of Reference for the Pensions Committee 

The Pensions Committee's principal aim is to carry out the functions of the London 
Borough of Hillingdon as the Scheme Manager and Administering Authority for the 
London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund in accordance with Local Government 
Pension Scheme regulations and any other relevant legislation.  

In its role as the administering authority, the London Borough of Hillingdon owes 
fiduciary duties to the employers and members of the London Borough of Hillingdon 
Pension Fund and must not compromise this with its own particular interests. 
Consequently this fiduciary duty is a responsibility of the Pensions Committee and its 
members must not compromise this with their own individual interests.  

The Pensions Committee operates under the following terms of reference: 

Terms of Reference 

1. To review and approve all aspects of investment policy relating to the Pensions 
Fund, including agreeing the strategic asset allocation and authorisation or 
prohibition of particular investment activities.  

2. To review the Investment Strategy Statement and amend it when necessary.  

3. To agree benchmarks and performance targets for the investment of the Fund’s 
assets and review periodically.  

4. To agree to transfer funds into mandates managed by the London Collective 
Investment Vehicle (CIV) as soon as appropriate opportunities become available.  

London Borough of Hillingdon Council

Pension Committee

Corporate Director of Finance

Delegated Officers

London 
Collective 
Investment 

vehicle

Local Pension Board

Page 169



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

5. To receive regular reports from the London CIV and to agree and resultant actions 
from a review of the investments held with the London CIV.  

6. To keep the performance of the investment managers under regular review and 
extend or terminate their contracts as required. To appoint new managers when 
necessary.  

7. To agree policy guidelines for the exercise of voting rights attached to the Fund’s 
shares.  

8. To review the appointment of specialist advisors and service providers and make 
new appointments as necessary.  

9. To consider the overall implications of the Council’s policies for employment and 
benefits issues and their impact on the Pension Fund and agree any strategic 
changes. 

11. To approve the appointment of persons to hear appeals under the Internal 
Dispute Resolution Procedure.  

12. To consider issues concerning the administration of the Fund, including 
approving responses to consultation papers.  

13. To consider and decide whether to approve proposals for discretionary enhanced 
early retirement packages for officers.  

14. The Corporate Director of Finance be authorised to take urgent decisions in 
relation to the pensions fund and investment strategy on behalf of the Committee, 
reporting back to the Pensions Committee any exercise of these powers for 
ratification.  

Membership of the Pensions Committee 

Councillor membership of the Committee will be 5, will be politically balanced and 

have voting rights. In addition, the Independent Adviser and Investment Consultant 

would normally attend meetings along with relevant officers in an advisory, non-

voting capacity.  

Meetings 

The Council shall fix the day of meetings of the Pensions Committee and the ordinary 

meetings for the Pensions Committee shall be at Hillingdon Civic Centre, but they 

may arrange to meet elsewhere when they see fit. The Chair may cancel meetings. 

The Pensions Committee meets every quarter and the dates are arranged annually 

in advance. The Chairman of the Committee may call a special meeting if required.  

 

Access to Agenda, Reports and Minutes of Meetings 

The Council will give at least seven clear working days notice of any meeting by 

posting details of the meeting at the Hillingdon Civic Centre and on the Council’s 

website. The Council will make copies of the agenda and reports open to the public 

available for inspection at least five clear working days before the meeting. If an item 

Page 170



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

is added to the agenda later, the revised agenda will be open to inspection from the 

time the item was added to the agenda. The reason for lateness will be specified in 

the report. There may on occasions be items, which may be exempt from the 

agenda, reports and minutes of the meetings when it is likely in view of the nature of 

the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that confidential 

information would be disclosed. Items which are most likely to be excluded are 

issues where to disclose information would contravene an individual’s privacy or 

where there are financial interests which may be compromised as a result of 

disclosure for example discussions surrounding contracts. The Council will make 

available copies of the minutes of the meeting and records of decisions taken. 

Minutes of meetings and records of decisions are available for inspection on the 

Council’s website: http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk  

The Committee’s full terms of reference can also be found on the Council’s website. 

  

Scheme of Delegation 

Where Council functions are not specifically reserved to the Pensions Committee in 

relation to the Pension Fund, the functions are deemed to be delegated to the 

relevant Chief Officers, or the Corporate Director of Finance in the case of the 

Pension Fund. The Corporate Director of Finance is responsible for the 

establishment of a scheme of delegation for their department which includes the 

Pension Fund function. The scheme of delegation specifies the function, names the 

post which may carry out that delegated decision and the limits if any on the 

delegation. The limits on delegation may include the obligation to consult record 

and/or refer back to the Chief Executive or Corporate Director of Finance in certain 

circumstances. The Finance Directorate has a scheme of delegation which sets out 

the delegated powers to individual officers within the directorate. In relation to the 

Pension Fund the management is delegated to the Corporate Director of Finance 

and responsible officer for the pension Fund. The scheme of delegation is reviewed 

regularly by the Council. 

 

London CIV 

The London CIV was formed as by the 33 London Boroughs in 2014 to pool their 

LGPS investments. It received regulatory authorisation from the Financial Conduct 

Authority in November 2015. The London CIV has been established as a collective 

investment vehicle for LGPS Funds. The current regulatory permissions allow for 

operation as an Authorised Contractual Scheme (ACS) Fund.  

The governance structure of the LCIV has been designed to ensure that there are 

both formal and informal routes to engage with the investing Funds both as 

shareholders and investors, making the LCIV accountable at both levels. 

Governance is achieved through the Sectoral Joint Committee, comprising 

nominated Member representatives from each investing Fund within the pool. In 

addition there is an Investment Advisory Committee (“IAC”) formed of nominated 

officers from the investing Boroughs.  

Page 171



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

As an FCA Authorised Contractual Scheme, the CIV is required to publish a 

prospectus which details how the CIV will operate including the valuation, pricing and 

administration of the Scheme.  

 

  

Page 172



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

London CIV - Pensions CIV Sectoral Joint Committee 

The Pensions CIV Sectoral Joint Committee was established in accordance with 

recommendations made to London Councils Leaders Committee on 11 February 

2014 and operates under the London Councils governance arrangements. Each 

London Local Authority participating in the London CIV appoint a representative to 

the Pensions CIV Joint Committee. The Pensions CIV Joint Committee shall meet at 

least once each year to act as a forum for participating authorities to consider and 

provide guidance on the direction and performance of the CIV. In addition members 

shall meet at least once each year at an AGM of the ACS Operator in their capacity 

as representing shareholders of the ACS Operator. If decisions are required on 

specialist matters where the committee do not have expertise advisers will be 

arranged at attend the committee meetings. Committee meeting are called in 

accordance with London Councils' Standing Orders which covers procedures, 

quorum and voting. 

London CIV - Investment Advisory Committee (IAC)  

The IAC is responsible in supporting the Joint Committee in the investment decision 

making process and to liaise with the Fund Operator on the CIV in defining 

Shareholders' investment needs. It was formed from nominated borough officers, 

which includes both London Local Authority Treasurers and Pension Officers from a 

number of Authorities. The IAC is involved in reviewing the needs of the London local 

authority Pension Funds in terms of investment strategies and investment mandates 

for the CIV and it supports the review of investment managers and performance 

reports from the ACS Operator. Membership of the IAC is reviewed annually based 

on nominations and the committee is required to review the effectiveness of the 

committee annually. 

 

Pension Board 

With effect from 1 April 2015, each Administering Authority is required to establish a 

local Pension Board to assist them with  

§ securing compliance with the LGPS Regulations and any other legislation 
relating to the governance and administration of the Scheme, and requirements 
imposed in relation to the LGPS by the Pensions Regulator 

§ ensuring the effective and efficient governance and administration of the 
Pension Fund  

Such Pension Boards are not local authority committees; as such the Constitution of 

London Borough of Hillingdon does not apply to the Pension Board unless it is 

expressly referred to in the Board’s terms of reference.  The London Borough of 

Hillingdon Pension Board was established by London Borough of Hillingdon on 1st 

April 2015 and the full terms of reference of the Board can be found on the Fund's 

website hillingdon.gov.uk/pensions. The key points are summarised below:  

Role of the Pension Board 

The Pensions Board is not a decision making body, rather it has a compliance and 
scrutiny role to ensure the Pensions Committee effectively and efficiently complies 
with the code of practice on the governance and administration of public service 

Page 173



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

pension schemes issued by the Pension Regulator. Additionally the Pension Board 
will help ensure that the London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund is managed 
and administered effectively and efficiently and complies with the code of practice on 
the governance and administration of public service pension schemes issued by the 
Pension Regulator.     
 

Membership of the Pension Board 

The membership of the Board must be equally split between employer and scheme 
member representatives with relevant experience and the capacity to represent. 
Council has determined that membership shall be:  
 

• 3 employer representatives - elected Members, appointed on the basis of 
political balance and appointed annually by Council. No elected Member may 
sit on both the Pensions Committee and the Pensions Board.  

 

• 3 employee/scheme member representatives - selected at interview by the 
Chairman and one other Member of the Pensions Committee and a Senior 
Officer, on the basis of capacity and/or experience. Term of Office to be 
indefinite  

 
Meetings 
 
The Pension Board meets quarterly in the ordinary course of business and additional 

meetings may be arranged as required to facilitate its work.  

The Pension Board is treated in the same way as a Committee of the London 

Borough of Hillingdon and, as such, members of the public may attend and papers 

will be made public in the same was as described above for the Pensions 

Committee.   

Policy Documents 

In addition to the foregoing, there are a number of other documents which are 

relevant to the Governance and management of the Pension Fund. Brief details of 

these are listed below and the full copies of all documents can be found on the 

Pension Fund Website: hillingdon.gov.uk/pensions. 

Funding Strategy Statement 

The Funding Strategy Statement forms part of the framework for the funding and 

management of the Pension Fund. It sets out how the Fund will approach its liabilities 

and contains a schedule of the minimum contribution rates that are required of 

individual employers within the Fund. The Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) is 

drawn up by the Administering Authority in collaboration with the Fund’s actuary and 

after consultation with the Fund’s employers. The FSS forms part of a broader 

framework which covers the Pension Fund and applies to all employers participating 

in the Fund. The FSS represents a summary of the Fund’s approach to funding the 

liabilities of the Pension Fund. 

Investment Strategy Statement 

Page 174



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) 

(Amendment) Regulations 2016 require pension fund administering authorities to 

prepare, maintain and publish a statement of the principles governing their decisions 

on the investment of the pension fund.  

The areas covered in the Investment Strategy Statement are as follows: 

§ Investment objectives. 
§ Asset allocation 
§ Pooling of assets 
§ Investment implementation 
§ Investment governance 
§ Performance management 
§ Risk Management 
§ Environment, Social and Governance (ESG) policy  

Governance Compliance Statement 

This sets out the Pension Fund’s compliance with the Secretary of State’s Statutory 
Guidance on Governance in the LGPS.  This is attached as Appendix A and shows 
where the Fund is compliant or not compliant with best practice and the reasons why 
it may not be compliant. 

Training Policy 

London Borough of Hillingdon has a Training Policy which has been put in place to 

assist the Fund in achieving its governance objectives and all Pensions Committee 

members, Pension Board members and senior officers are expected to continually 

demonstrate their own personal commitment to training and to ensuring that the 

governance objectives are met.   

To assist in achieving these objectives, the London Borough of Hillingdon Pension 

Fund aims to comply with: 

§ the CIPFA Knowledge and Skills Frameworks and  

§ the knowledge and skills elements of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 and 
the Pensions Regulator's (TPR) Code of Practice for Public Service Schemes 

as well as any other LGPS specific guidance relating to the knowledge and skills of 

Pensions Committee members, Pension Board members or pension fund officers 

which may be issued from time to time. 

Members of the Pensions Committee, Pension Board and officers involved in the 

management of the Fund will receive training to ensure that they meet the aims of 

the Training Policy with training schedules drawn up and reviewed on at least an 

annual basis.  

Conflicts of Interest 

Conflicts of interest have always existed for those with LGPS administering authority 
responsibilities as well as for advisers to LGPS funds. This simply reflects the fact 
that many of those managing or advising LGPS funds will have a variety of other 
roles and responsibilities, for example as a member of the scheme, as an elected 

Page 175



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

Member of an employer participating in the LGPS or as an adviser to more than one 
LGPS administering authority.  Further any of those persons may have an individual 
personal, business or other interest which might conflict, or be perceived to conflict, 
with their role managing or advising LGPS funds. 

It is generally accepted that LGPS administering authorities have both fiduciary and 
public law duties to act in the best interest of both the scheme beneficiaries and 
participating employers.  This, however, does not preclude those involved in the 
management of the Fund from having other roles or responsibilities which may result 
in an actual or potential conflict of interest.   

Annual Report and Accounts 

As part of the financial standing orders it is the duty of the Corporate Director of 
Finance to ensure that record keeping and accounts are maintained by the Pension 
Fund. The Pension Fund accounts are produced in accordance with the accounting 
recommendations of the Financial Reports of Pension Schemes - Statement of 
Recommended Practice. The financial statements summarise the transactions of the 
Scheme and deal with the net assets of the Scheme.  The statement of accounts is 
reviewed by both the Pensions Committee and the Audit Committee and 
incorporated in the Statement of Accounts for the Council. Full copies of the Report 
and Accounts are distributed to employers in the Fund and other interested parties 
and a copy placed on the website: hillingdon.gov.uk/pensions.  

Communication Policy 

This document sets out the communications policy of the administering authority and 
sets out the strategy for ensuring that all interested parties are kept informed of 
developments in the Pension Fund. This helps to ensure transparency and an 
effective communication process for all interested parties. A copy of the policy can be 
found on the Pensions website: hillingdon.gov.uk/pensions. 

Discretions Policies 

Under the LGPS regulations, the Administering Authority has a level of discretion in 
relation to a number of areas, and maintains a policy document detailing how it will 
exercise these discretions. The Administering Authority reviews these policies as 
appropriate and will notify interested parties of any significant changes. Employing 
Authorities are also required to set out their discretions policies in respect of areas 
under the Regulations where they have a discretionary power. Copies of both the 
Administering Authority and London Borough of Hillingdon's Employing Authority 
Discretions can be found on the website: http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

Pension Administration Strategy 

In order to assist with the management and efficient running of the Pension Fund, the 
Pension Administration Strategy encompassing administrative procedures and 
responsibilities for the Pension Fund for both the Administering Authority and 
Employing Authorities has been distributed to employers within the Fund following 
consultation and can be found on the website: hillingdon.gov.uk/pensions. This 
represents part of the process for ensuring the ongoing efficient management of the 

Page 176



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

Fund and maintenance of accurate data and forms part of the overall governance 
procedures for the Fund. 

Monitoring Governance of the London Borough of Hillingdon Pension 
fund 

The Fund's governance objectives will be monitored as follows: 

Objective Monitoring Arrangements 

Have robust governance arrangements in 

place, to facilitate informed decision 

making, supported by appropriate advice, 

policies and strategies. 

 

• The Pension Board prepares and publishes an 
annual report.  

• In line with the Regulations this document will 
be filed with the DCLG. 

Ensure the Pension Fund is managed and 

its services delivered by people who have 

the appropriate knowledge and expertise 

• A Training Policy is in place together with 
monitoring of all training by Pensions 
Committee members and key officers. 

 

Act with integrity and be accountable to our 

stakeholders for our decisions, ensuring 

they are robust and well based 

 

• Pension Committee meetings are open to all 
stakeholders to attend and papers and minutes 
are published. 

• The Pension Board includes representatives 
from scheme members and employers in the 
Fund. 

• The Pension Board prepares and publishes an 
annual report which may include comment on 
decision making.  

Understand and monitor risk  

 

• A Risk Policy and register is in place. 

• Ongoing consideration of key risks at Pensions 
Committee meetings. 

Strive to ensure compliance with the 

appropriate legislation and statutory 

guidance and to act in the spirit of other 

relevant guidelines and best practice 

guidance  

 

• The Governance of the Fund is considered by 
both the External and Internal Auditors. All 
External and Internal Audit Reports are 
reported to Committee. 

• The Fund maintains a log of all breaches of the 
law in accordance with the Fund's breaches 
procedure. 

Key Risks 

The key risks to the delivery of this Strategy are outlined below. Pensions Committee 
members will monitor these and other key risks and consider how to respond to 
them. 
 

§ Changes in Pensions Committee membership, Pension Board membership 
and/or key officers resulting in loss of continuity and potentially diminishing 
knowledge and understanding 

§ Changes in government / legislative requirements meaning insufficient time 

Page 177



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

allocated to ongoing management, either at Pensions Committee meetings or 
as part of key officers' duties 

§ Ineffective delegation of duties and/or presentation of Pensions Committee 
items resulting in insufficient time spent on key matters  

§ Poor attendance and/or a lack of engagement at training and/or formal 
meetings by Committee members, Board members and/or other key officers 
resulting in a poor standard of decision making and/or monitoring 

§ Conflicts of interest not being appropriately managed by Committee members, 
Board members and/or key officers.  

Approval, Review and Consultation 

This Governance Policy and Statement was approved at the London Borough of 

Hillingdon Pensions Committee meeting on xxxxxx following consultation with all the 

participating employers in the Fund and London Borough of Hillingdon union 

representatives.  It will be formally reviewed and updated at least every three years 

or sooner if the governance arrangements or other matters included within it merit 

reconsideration. 

Contact Information 

Any enquiries in relation to the Fund's governance or the principles or content of this 

Strategy, or for further information on the Fund, contact:  

Ken Chisholm, Corporate Pensions Manager  
London Borough of Hillingdon 
Civic Centre 
High Street 
Uxbridge 
UB8 1UW 
 
E-mail - kchisholm@hillingdon.gov.uk 
Telephone - 01895 250847 

Website: hillingdon.gov.uk/pensions   

Page 178



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

Appendix A 

Governance Best Practice – Compliance Statement  
 

Appendix A – London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund Governance Compliance Statement 

 

Best Practice Compliant or not? Explanatory Note 

A. STRUCTURE & REPRESENTATION   

a. The management of the administration of benefits 

and strategic management of fund assets clearly 

rests with the main committee established by the 

appointing council. 

Fully compliant  

b. That representatives of participating LGPS 

employers, admitted bodies and scheme members 

(including pensioner and deferred members) are 

members of either the main or secondary committee 

established to underpin the work of the main 

committee. 

Non-compliant Prior to establishment of the local Pensions 

Board, both employees and Unions were 

represented on Pensions Committee. However, 

they now sit on Pensions Board. 

B. REPRESENTATION   

P
a
g
e
 1

7
9



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

Best Practice Compliant or not? Explanatory Note 

a. That all key stakeholders are afforded the 

opportunity to be represented within the main or 

secondary committee structure. These include:- 

i) employing authorities (including non-scheme 

employers, e.g. admitted bodies); 

ii) scheme members (including deferred and 

pensioner scheme members), 

iii) where appropriate, independent professional 

observers, and 

iv) expert advisors (on an ad-hoc basis). 

Non-compliant Council took the decision to only have Council 

Members as voting members on Committee. 

Meetings are open to all to attend, but main 

representation comes through Pensions Board.  

b. That where lay members sit on a main or 

secondary committee, they are treated equally in 

terms of access to papers and meetings, training and 

are given full opportunity to contribute to the decision 

making process, with or without voting rights. 

N/A  

C. SELECTION AND ROLE OF LAY MEMBERS   

a. That committee or panel members are made fully 

aware of the status, role and function they are 

required to perform on either a main or secondary 

committee. 

Fully compliant  

b. That at the start of any meeting committee 

members are invited to declare any financial or 

pecuniary interest related to specific matters on the 

agenda. 

Fully compliant  

D. VOTING   

a. The policy of individual administering authorities 

on voting rights is clear and transparent, including 

the justification for not extending voting rights to each 

body or group represented on main LGPS 

committees. 

Fully Compliant  

P
a
g
e
 1

8
0



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

Best Practice Compliant or not? Explanatory Note 

E. TRAINING / FACILITY TIME / EXPENSES   

a. That in relation to the way in which statutory and 

related decisions are taken by the administering 

authority, there is a clear policy on training, facility 

time and reimbursement of expenses in respect of 

members involved in the decision-making process. 

Fully compliant  

b. That where such a policy exists, it applies equally 

to all members of committees, sub-committees, 

advisory panels or any other form of secondary 

forum. 

Fully Compliant  

c. That the administering authority considers the 

adoption of annual training plans for committee 

members and maintains a log of all such training 

undertaken. 

Partially compliant No annual training plan as training is developed 

according to need and workplan. 

A training log is maintained. 

F. MEETINGS (FREQUENCY/QUORUM)   

a. That an administering authority’s main committee 

or committees meet at least quarterly. 

Fully compliant  

b. That an administering authority’s secondary 

committee or panel meet at least twice a year and is 

synchronised with the dates when the main 

committee sits. 

N/A  

c. That an administering authority who do not include 

lay members in their formal governance 

arrangements, must provide a forum outside of those 

arrangements by which the interests of key 

stakeholders can be represented 

Fully compliant Pensions Board  

G. ACCESS   

P
a
g
e
 1

8
1



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

Best Practice Compliant or not? Explanatory Note 

a. That subject to any rules in the council’s 

constitution, all members of main and secondary 

committees or panels have equal access to 

committee papers, documents and advice that falls 

to be considered at meetings of the main committee. 

Fully compliant  

H. SCOPE   

a. That administering authorities have taken steps to 

bring wider scheme issues within the scope of their 

governance arrangements. 

Fully compliant Through Pensions Board 

I. PUBLICITY   

a. That administering authorities have published 

details of their governance arrangements in such a 

way that stakeholders with an interest in the way in 

which the scheme is governed, can express an 

interest in wanting to be part of those arrangements. 

Fully compliant  

P
a
g
e
 1

8
2



 

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

  

Appendix B 

Delegation of Functions to Officers by Pensions Committee – June 2017 
 

Key: 
PC – Pensions Committee  CDF – Corporate Director of Finance    FA – Fund Actuary 
Advisers – Investment, actuarial and/or benefits consultants as appropriate 

 

Function delegated to PC Further Delegation to Officer(s) Delegated Officer(s) 
Communication  and Monitoring of 
Use of Delegation 

Investment strategy - approving the 

Fund's Investment Strategy Statement 

including specific liability profile and 

risk appetite.  

Monitoring the implementation of these 
policies and strategies on an ongoing 
basis. 

Rebalancing and cash 
management  
 
Implementation of strategic 
allocation  
 

CDF (having regard to ongoing 
advice of advisers) 

High level monitoring at PC with more 
detailed monitoring by CDF 

Selection, appointment and dismissal 
of the Fund’s advisers, including 
actuary, benefits consultants, 
investment consultants, global 
custodian, fund managers, lawyers, 
pension funds administrator, and 
independent professional advisers. 

Ongoing monitoring of Fund 
Managers 

CDF (having regard to ongoing 
advice of advisers and subject to 
ratification by PC) 

High level monitoring at PC with more 
detailed monitoring by advisers 

P
a
g
e
 1

8
3



 

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

Function delegated to PC Further Delegation to Officer(s) Delegated Officer(s) 
Communication  and Monitoring of 
Use of Delegation 

Agreeing the terms and payment of 

bulk transfers into and out of the Fund.  

 

Agreeing the terms and payment 
of bulk transfers into and out of 
the Fund where there is a bulk 
transfer of staff from the Fund.   
Exceptions to this would be 
where there is a dispute over the 
transfer amount  or it relates to 
significant assets transfers 
relating to one employer or the 
Fund as a whole 

CDF after taking appropriate 
advice from the FA. 

Ongoing reporting to PC for noting 

Making decisions relating to employers 

joining and leaving the Fund. This 

includes which employers are entitled 

to join the Fund, any requirements 

relating to their entry, ongoing 

monitoring and the basis for leaving 

the Fund.  

 

Making decisions relating to 
employers joining and leaving the 
Fund and compliance with the 
Regulations and policies. This 
includes which employers are 
entitled to join the Fund, any 
requirements relating to their 
entry, ongoing monitoring and the 
basis for leaving the Fund where 
the employer.  

CDF after taking appropriate 
advice from the FA. 

Ongoing reporting to PC for noting 

To review the Pension Fund’s policy 

and strategy documents on a regular 

cycle and review performance against 

the Fund’s objectives within the 

business plan 

Changes to Administering 
Authority discretionary policies 
necessitated by changes to 
regulations - authority to amend 
the policies to reflect the 
requirements of such new 
regulations, subject to those 
decisions having no significant 
financial implications.  
 

CDF and the Head of HR  
 

Copy of policy to be circulated to PC 
members once approved. 

P
a
g
e
 1

8
4



 

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 
 

Function delegated to PC Further Delegation to Officer(s) Delegated Officer(s) 
Communication  and Monitoring of 
Use of Delegation 

Agreeing the Administering Authority 
responses to consultations on LGPS 
matters and other matters where they 
may impact on the Fund or its 
stakeholders.  

Agreeing the Administering 
Authority responses where the 
consultation timescale does not 
provide sufficient time for a draft 
response to be approved by PC. 

CDF, subject to agreement with 
Chairman  

PC advised of consultation via e-mail (if 
not already raised previously at PC) to 
provide opportunity for other views to be 
fed in.  Copy of consultation response 
provided at following PC for noting.   

Overall responsibility  the Fund's 

Knowledge and Skills Policy for all 

Pensions Committee members and for 

all officers of the Fund, including 

determining the Fund’s knowledge and 

skills framework, identifying training 

requirements, developing training 

plans and monitoring compliance with 

the policy.  

Implementation of the 

requirements of the CIPFA Code 

of Practice1  
CDF Regular reports provided to PC  

The Committee may delegate a limited 
range of its functions to one or more 
officers of the Authority. The Pensions 
Committee will be responsible for 
outlining expectations in relation to 
reporting progress of delegated 
functions back to the Pensions 
Committee. 

Other urgent matters as they 
arise 

CDF, subject to agreement with 
Chairman  

PC advised of need for delegation via e-
mail as soon as the delegation is 
necessary.  Result of delegation to be 
reported for noting to following PC. 

Other non-urgent matters as they 
arise 

Decided on a case by case basis 
As agreed at PC and subject to 
monitoring agreed at that time. 

 
 

                                                           
1 CIPFA Code of Practice recommends each administering authority delegates responsibility for implementation to a senior officer. 

P
a
g
e
 1

8
5



Page 186

This page is intentionally left blank



 
PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 

 

Local Pension Board - Annual Report 
 

Contact Officers  Sian Kunert, 01895 556578 

   

Papers with this report  n/a 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
The report is compiled to provide feedback to Pensions Committee on the work 
undertaken by the Local Pension Board since its inception and to meet the legislative 
requirement for producing an annual report.  The need for an annual report was first 
discussed on 5th April 2016, when it was agreed that the production of the first report 
should wait until early 2017. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Public Service Pensions Act 2013 introduced the requirement to have a Local 
Pensions Board to assist in the good governance of the scheme.  

The purpose of the Board is to assist the Administering Authority in its role as a 
Scheme Manager of the Scheme.  Such assistance is to: 

• Secure compliance with the regulations and any other legislation 
relating to the governance and administration of the Scheme, and 
requirements imposed by the Pensions Regulator in relation to the 
Scheme; and 

• To ensure the effective and efficient administration of the Scheme.  

London Borough of Hillingdon Council ratified the establishment of the Board on 6th 
November 2014 to commence with effect from 1st April 2015.  The Board meets four 
times a year and consists of three Employer representatives, all members of the 
Council, and three scheme member representatives.  

Membership and Attendance at Meetings 

The membership of the local Pension Board is: 

Employer Representatives: 
Councillor David Simmonds CBE (Chairman) 
Councillor Alan Chapman (Vice-Chairman)  

 Councillor John Morse 
 
Scheme Member Representatives:  
Venetia Rogers  Active Member 
Andrew Scott   Active Member  
Roger Hackett  Retired Member   
 

Attendance at meetings has been high with an attendance rate of 88%. 

Agenda Item 9

Page 187



 
PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 

 

AON Hewitt was appointed as Governance advisers to support the development and 
work of the local Pension Board and attend meetings as necessary. 

Training 

Internal training for all Board Members has been specific to the topics they have 
considered and been provided at the start of those meetings. The early focus was on 
the role of the Pension Board, Scheme Governance and the Pension Regulator's 
Code of Practice, with later sessions focussing on Investment of the Fund's assets 
and the Triennial Valuation process.  Relevant external training opportunities are 
made available to Board Members and have been well supported, particularly by the 
scheme member representatives.   

Using CIPFA's Training Needs analysis, specific training needs have been identified, 
and will continue to be identified, and will be built into future training. 

Work of the Local Pension Board 

The first meeting of the Hillingdon local Pension Board was in July 2015 and an 
outline workplan for the first two of years was agreed. There were four meetings in 
each municipal year - 30/07/15; 07/10/15; 12/01/16; 05/04/15; 29/06/16; 05/10/16; 
10/01/17; and 04/04/17. 

Each meeting undertakes a review of the most recent Pensions Committee reports 
and decisions, raising any issues for clarification with officers.  To date there have 
been no issues referred back to Pensions Committee.  All Committee papers are 
shared with Board Members who are encouraged to attend Committee meetings to 
fully understand the reports. 

The first meeting of the Board agreed the Terms of Reference for the Board: 

• The Pensions Board will be chaired by an elected Member of the 
Council and will meet quarterly in the month following Pensions 
Committee. 

• Reports to the Board will either reflect decisions taken by Pensions 
Committee or be reports for noting already seen by Pensions 
Committee. 

• The role of the Board will be to assist London Borough of Hillingdon 
Administering Authority as Scheme Manager: to secure compliance 
with the LGPS regulations and any other legislation relating to the 
governance and administration of the LGPS. 

• To secure compliance with requirements imposed in relation to the 
LGPS by the Pensions Regulator; and in such other matters as the 
LGPS regulations may specify. 

• To secure the effective and efficient governance and administration of 
the LGPS for the London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund. 

• To provide the Scheme Manager with such information as it requires 
ensuring that any member of the Pension Board or person to be 

Page 188



 
PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
Pensions Committee - 25 September 2017 

 

appointed to the Pension Board does not have a conflict of interest. 
NB: Being a member of the LGPS is not seen as a conflict of interest. 

 
The key work of the Pension Board to date has related to improving Fund 
governance through refreshing and drafting policy documentation and in ensuring 
compliance with the Pension Regulator's code of practice.  Pension Board have 
undertaken some significant pieces of work since inception including: 

• Development of a policy to Report Breaches of the Law; 

• Development of a refreshed Communication Strategy; 

• Supporting the development and introduction of an Administration 
Strategy; 

• Review initial self assessment against Pension regulator's Compliance 
checklist and agreement of actions for improvement; and  

• Maintaining a watching brief on the transition of Pensions 
Administration from Capita Employee Benefits to Surrey County 
Council.  

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 
There are no financial implications within the report 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The legal implications are mentioned within the report. 
 

 

Page 189



Page 190

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

Page 191

PART II by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted



Page 192

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 193

PART II by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted



Page 202

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 203

PART II by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted



Page 216

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 217

PART II by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted



Page 234

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 235

PART II by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted



Page 252

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11

Page 253

PART II by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted



Page 254

This page is intentionally left blank



P
a
g
e
 2

5
5

P
A

R
T

 II b
y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h
e
d
u

le
 1

2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t (A
c
c
e
s
s
 to

 In
fo

rm
a
tio

n
) A

c
t 1

9
8
5
 a

s
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 2

5
6

T
h

is
 p

a
g
e

 is
 in

te
n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



P
a
g
e
 2

5
7

P
A

R
T

 II b
y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h
e
d
u

le
 1

2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t (A
c
c
e
s
s
 to

 In
fo

rm
a
tio

n
) A

c
t 1

9
8
5
 a

s
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g
e
 2

5
8

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting - 14 June 2017
	5 External Auditor Report on the Pension Fund Accounts
	1a EY audit report Pension Fund
	1b. Draft Annual Pension Fund Report 2017

	6 Investment Strategy and Fund Manager Performance (Part I)
	2a. NT quarterly report 2q17
	2b. Ministerial letter

	7 Implementation of the Markets in Financial Instruments Derivative (MiFID II)
	3a. Appendix 1 Retail Protections
	3b. Appendix 2 FCA Highlights
	3c. Appendix 3 Flowchart
	3d. Appendix 4 Application Letter pdf
	3e. Appendix 5 Stand_alone_questionnaire_for_completion pdf

	8 Pensions Administration Report
	4a. Hillingdon KPI report July-Sept 2017
	4b. LB Hillingdon Draft Governance Policy and Compliance Statement - Latest

	9 Local Pension Board - Annual Report
	10 Investment Strategy and Fund Manager Performance
	6a. Market Report SJ August 17 (PDF)
	6b. Manager Review Report Q2 2017
	6c. June 2017 Fund Report  - LCIV RF Absolute Return Fund
	6d. IAC Chair & LCIV CEO  CIV Update - July 2017

	11 Pension Fund Risk Register
	7a. Pension Fund Risk Register
	7a. Pension Fund Risk Register matrix


